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Director’s Profile
BEEEN

Executive Directors

Shum Siu Hung, aged 52, is Chairman of the Company. Mr.
Shum is responsible for the formulation and implementation of
corporate policies and strategies. Mr. Shum has over 20 years
of experience in international trading and investment in China.

Shum Chun, Lawrence, aged 32, is Managing Director of the
Company since 2009. Mr. Shum graduated from the University
of Saskatchewan with a degree in Bachelor of Arts, majoring
in Economics. Prior to joining the Company in 2004, Mr.
Shum has pursued a career in finance and accountancy in an
international accounting firm. He is the son of Mr. Shum Siu
Hung.

Cai Xikun, aged 63, had over 40 years’ industrial experience
and experience in management and control of manufacturing
businesses. Mr. Cai began his career in the manufacturing
industry in Mainland China in the early 1970s on the opening
up of the Chinese economy. In the late 1980s Mr. Cai took
up duties at the top management level in Guangdong Wan
Jia Le LPG Equipment Company Limited, a large scale state-
owned enterprises in the Zhujiang Delta region that was one of
the front runners in the rapid expansion of the manufacturing
industry in the region. This was followed by his chairmanship
of Guangdong Yue Hai Dish Washing Machine Company
Limited, and his position of Deputy General Manager of
Guangdong Huabao Group Limited and General Manager of
Guangdong Huabao Air Conditioning Factory. Mr. Cai joined
the Group in 2003 when he was appointed Managing Director
of NewOcean Energy (Zhuhai) Company Limited.

Cen Ziniu, aged 42, graduated from Shanghai Jiao Tong
University and has been involved in trading businesses in
Hong Kong and China, holding senior managerial positions.
Mr. Cen has extensive experience in dealership management,
business formation and marketing. He is responsible for
market development of the Group and overseas operations.
He is a cousin of Mr. Shum Siu Hung.
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Director’s Profile
BFEBHN

Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond, aged 52, has been executive
director and head of the Group’s liquefied petroleum gas
operations since August 2003 and is now in charge of liquefied
petroleum gas operations in China and worldwide. Prior to
joining the Company Mr. Chiu had over 20 years’ experience
in banking and management. He has been involved in the
financing and supervision of business projects in China since
the late 1980’'s and was in charge of the management and
control of a wide range of projects.

Siu Ka Fai, Brian, aged 48, graduated from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Arts degree.
He conducted a further course of study in real estate at the
University of British Columbia in Canada and then had over
20 years experience in the investment and real estate field,
working with various reputable companies in Hong Kong and
China. Mr. Siu joined the Group in 2005 and is currently in
charge of the Group’s purchasing and re-export operations.

Wang Jian, aged 31, graduated from Guangzhou Jinan
University with a Bachelor’'s Degree in Economics and a
Master’s Degree in Finance. Prior to joining the Group in 2008,
Mr. Wang was engaged by a major bank in Mainland China
and worked in its banking business department.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony, aged 59, has been
independent non-executive director since August 2001.
Mr. Cheung is an associate member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Cheung graduated from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University (formerly: the Hong
Kong Polytechnic) with a higher diploma in Accountancy. Mr.
Cheung has over 30 years of experience in account, finance
and investment banking profession specializing in equity/
debt fund raising, mergers and acquisition and corporate
restructuring before working with publicly listed companies
undertaking corporate management, planning and strategies
development functions. Mr. Cheung is an independent non-
executive director of PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited,
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Director’s Profile
BEEEN

Great Harvest Maeta Group Holdings Limited and Mobile
Telecom Network (Holdings) Limited, whose shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict, aged 52, has been independent
non-executive director since March 2006. Mr. Chan is a holder
of a Master of Science Degree in Applied Mechanics (Cranfield
Institute of Technology, U.K.) and a registered professional
engineer in Hong Kong and the U.K. Mr. Chan is the recipient
of the U.K. Institution of Mechanical Engineers Outstanding
Project Price Award, 1981. For the last 20 years, Mr. Chan
has taken up key management positions in engineering and
technology businesses in Hong Kong, ranging from pumping
equipment and control systems, mini-piling, and software and
hardware engineering businesses.

Xu Mingshe, aged 55, was accredited a doctor’s degree in
economics by the Xiamen University. He graduated from the
Guangzhou Institute of Foreign Languages with a bachelor’s
degree in English, holds the title of Senior Economist, and
has over 20 years’ experience in the banking-finance field.
Since 1980, Dr. Xu has held in succession a series of position
in the top management level in banking sector in China,
and has been well connected in the finance and corporate
sectors both in China and overseas. Dr. Xu's expertise ranges
from public listings to project financing, syndicated loan,
debt restructuring and merge and acquisition. He has taken
part in a considerable number of overseas listing of Chinese
enterprises and other major fund raising exercises. Dr. Xu
was an independent non-executive director of EPI (Holdings)
Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange) from
October 2006 to September 2009.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

On behalf of NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited (the
“Company”), | am pleased to present the audited results of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2010.

Market conditions in 2010 had not been as favourable as
expected. Despite this the Group successfully overcame all
major adverse market elements that surfaced during the year
and strived to achieve liquefied petroleum gas (“LPG”) sales
of approximately 1,219,000 tons and an after-tax profit of
approximately HK$137,384,000, a substantial improvement
when compared with the results of the previous year.
Continuing to implement development plans set down in 2009,
the Group put major efforts in its own market development
while at the same time carried out important business
acquisitions, both of which will provide a robust foundation for
the Group’s continued development.

The year 2010 marked the 10th anniversary of the Group’s
LPG business. During this decade the Group adopted a two
prong development strategy. On the one hand the Group
committed a substantial portion of its resources in building up
a fully integrated asset chain, which ensures the just-in-time
flow and a stable quality for our LPG. On the other hand the
Group brought in technical expertise so as to widen the fields
of application of LPG in Southern China, which created new
markets and expanded existing ones. Through this two prong
strategy the Group, which started as a bottled LPG retailer
in a single local market, grew into the market leader in the
LPG industry in Southern China. We take particular pride to
note that, through our dedication and hard work during this
decade, all the facilities of the Group now function together
as a high capacity logistic base with all-round functions. Our
facilities now simultaneously handle bulk purchase, cargo
handling, warehousing and distribution of both imported
and local goods. At the same time the same facilities have
ample additional capacity to lend support to the Group in its
development of the end-user market.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERS

Traditionally, LPG finds its application as a domestic fuel
and is of relatively limited use. However as environmental
awareness grew, LPG is generally recognized as a clean
form of energy and its use has widened from the home to a
broad range of industrial applications and to transportation.
As an example, Hong Kong and Guangzhou, two of the most
important cities in South China, have followed the steps of
developed nations in advocating the use of LPG as a clean
motor fuel.

Looking forward, with the strong market potential presented
to the Group and our fully developed business capabilities, the
Group’s LPG business will make new breakthroughs and bring
higher contributions to shareholders.

The Company recommends a final dividend of HK1 cent per
share.

| take this opportunity to express on behalf of the Board the

appreciation we have to our staff for their dedication, hard
work and their contribution to the success of the Group.

Shum Siu Hung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 March 2011
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EREZHRRA

During the year 2010, the Group dedicated major efforts to
further strengthen the foundations for our LPG business.
Corporate performance remained stable during the period
and at the same time the Group made substantial progress
towards the development targets set down in 2009. It
successfully opened up new downstream markets for direct
sales of bottled LPG and also planned to enter into the
autogas business by creating an opportunity to acquire
17 autogas refueling stations in Guangzhou. Although the
contribution from the new downstream markets in 2010 is still
not material, their earnings and growth potential will make
significant contribution to the results of the Group in the
coming years.

1. Performance Appraisal and Analysis
1.1 Overall Performance

Group total revenue increased to approximately
HK$8,477,715,000, a growth of about 30.8%
comparing with that of approximately
HK$6,483,119,000 for the year ended 31 December
2009. Profit attributable to the equity holders of
the Company for the year ended 31 December
2010 surged to approximately HK$136,647,000,
an increase of about 21.5% in comparison with
that of about HK$112,451,000 for the year ended
31 December 2009. On 5 November 2010, the
Company completed a new issue of 150,000,000
shares by way of a top-up placing of shares at
HK$1.78 per share, and raised net proceeds
of approximately HK$263,237,000, which were
applied for the autogas refueling stations project
as announced by the Company on 25 October
2010. Basic earnings per share for the year 2010,
calculated on the weighted average of ordinary
shares of 1,179,278,032 shares as at 31 December
2010, increased slightly by approximately 0.5% to
HK11.59 cents per share when compared with that
of HK11.53 cents per share for the year ended 31
December 2009.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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1.2 Business Performance

The Group recorded an aggregate gross profit of
approximately HK$446,798,000 in 2010, a moderate
increase of about 13.0% compared with that of
approximately HK$395,318,000 for year 2009.
Overall gross profit margin however was reduced
to about 5.3% (2009: 6.1%) as a result of the
shrinkage in LPG gross margin.

The bulk of the Group’s turnover has been derived
from LPG business, which is conducted through
the Group’s Zhuhai terminal, by way wholesale in
both the domestic and the international markets;
and through retail networks in the PRC and Macau,
mainly by way of retail.

Driven by both the increase in price and sales
volume, total LPG turnover surged to approximately
HK$7,232,294,000 representing a growth of
about 26.4% when compared with that of about
HK$5,722,622,000 in 2009. Total LPG sales volume
amounted to about 1,219,000 tons in 2010, an
increase of about 15.0% compared with that of
about 1,060,000 tons in 2009.

Sales and distribution of LPG through Zhuhai
terminal and in the international market

Even though the total imported LPG volume
decreased by 39.2% to 485,000 tons from last
year’s figure of 798,000 tons, the turnover of sales
and distribution of LPG through the Zhuhai terminal
and in the international market increased by 17.6%
to approximately HK$5,904,895,000 as the drop
was compensated by increased domestic LPG trade
and the rise in price of LPG at the same time.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EREZHRRA

The gross margin decreased to 4.3% comparing
to last year’'s 5.2% as most of the sales premiums
have been set at fixed dollar amount per ton,
therefore the gross profit margin (presented in
percentage) reduced inevitably when the price level
of LPG was raised generally in 2010.

We exercised tighter control over the expenses
especially on the saving in the ship chartering
expenses by renting the ships on spot basis instead
of signing long term contracts. At the same time we
yield more other income from foreign exchange gain
as detailed in the section 1.3 Financial Performance
below. Overall, we managed to achieved an increase
in segment profit of approximately HK$57,233,000
to approximately HK$216,356,000.

Sales and distribution of LPG through retail
networks in the PRC and Macau

The turnover of sales and distribution of LPG
through retail networks in the PRC (together with
the Macau network which came into operation in
the second quarter of 2010) increased by 88.9%
to approximately HK$1,327,399,000 partly due to
the contribution of the new acquisitions in €%, %k
& and Macau, and partly due to our success in
penetrating into the end-user market with a view
to stabilize and improve the Group’s overall LPG
gross margin. Foundation work relating to the end-
user market had almost been completed in 2010,
but the anticipated effect would take time to come.
We have strong confidence that the direct sales
volume will grow at a much faster rate than that of
wholesaling in the ensuing years. By then, overall
LPG gross margin will be less affected by price
fluctuations in the market.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Gross profit increased by 17.3% to approximately
HK$116,095,000. Although the new acquisitions
have brought us increases in payroll and
depreciation expenses, these increase in cost
have partly been offset by the increases in other
income from foreign exchange gain and the
segment profit increased by 41.1% to approximately
HK$50,537,000.

Electronics

The turnover of electronics components and
cellular phones (collectively “Electronics”) altogether
amounted to approximately HK$1,245,421,000, an
increase of about 63.8% in comparison with that
of about HK$760,497,000 in 2009. Gross profit
amounted to about HK$77,343,000, an increase of
about 109.2% when compared with that of about
HK$36,969,000 for year 2009.

Amongst the two Electronics categories, the
electronics components business achieved better
performance than the cellular phones business in
2010. Turnover of electronics components increased
by about 156.7% to about HK$897,650,000 (2009:
HK$349,648,000); its gross profit margin also
rebounded to about 5.1% from the abnormally
low level of about 1.0% for year 2009. Turnover
of cellular phones reduced by about 15.4% to
about HK$347,771,000 (2009: HK$410,849,000)
mainly due to weakened consumption power in
the aftermath of the political instability in Thailand.
Its gross profit margin nevertheless rose slightly to
about 9.1% from that of 8.1% in 2009.

Although the performance of electronics
components trading had been outstanding in both
turnover growth and margin improvement in 2010,
the management still considers it not part of the
Group’s core business. Unlike LPG where significant
investment was made in 2010, there are no plans
to allocate any additional resources for further
expansion of the Group’s Electronics business.
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1.3 Financial Performance 1.3 M#HKR
Foreign Exchange Gain SMEY &7
Given the continual appreciation of Renminbi HRAREITARE DEBES

(“RMB”) in the past few years, the Group has from
time to time endeavoured to minimize the cost of
exchanging RMB to United States Dollars (“USD”)
by applying appropriate financial arrangements.
According to the LPG business model, the Group
pays USD to purchase imported LPG, and receives
RMB for its sales inside China. Whenever USD
payment has to be made to suppliers, an equivalent
amount of RMB is always available in hand, and
normally, the RMB will be changed straight into
USD in the spot market. Alternatively, the Group
may deposit its RMB with a bank (usually a bank in
PRC) for a selected tenor, and uses the deposit as
collateral for equivalent amount of USD borrowing at
the same tenor to fund the payment. Concurrently,
the Group will enter into either Deliverable Forward
Exchange Contract (“DF”) or Non-Deliverable
Forward Exchange Contract (“NDF”) with a bank as
the counterparty in order that the future exchange
rate on the maturity is fixed for applying the
RMB deposit to repay the USD borrowing. The
management will compare the effective rates that
the two approaches will generate and choose the
more favourable one to process the exchange. The
deposit, borrowing and either DF or NDF have to
be done altogether in a package to produce the
effect same as a straight exchange transaction. The
management has never adopted merely the deposit/
borrowing arrangement without entering into DF or
NDF; otherwise the Company will be exposed to
future exchange risks.

Over the year 2010, RMB appreciated about 3.4%
in the spot market; it was anticipated to appreciate
even more in the DF and NDF markets. As such,
the management adopted mostly the deposit/
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borrowing approach to handle its RMB exchanges
in 2010, and achieved a net gain in foreign
exchange of about HK$66,097,000. Such gain, from
the management’s point of view, can be interpreted
as a saving of the exchange cost or a reduction of
cost of goods sold for LPG, resulting in a moderate
enhancement of the LPG gross profit.

Financial Expenses

Financial expenses of the Group amounted to about
HK$109,294,000 in 2010. These comprised interest
expenses of about HK$97,046,000 and bank
charges of about HK$12,248,000. Interest expenses
increased by about 103.2% when compared with
that of about HK$47,757,000 in 2009. The increase
was mainly due to escalating interest rate for
RMB borrowing and that higher interest margin
was required for USD borrowing and, despite the
base rate (mostly LIBOR) remained stable at a low
level, the higher interest margin required for USD
borrowing.

For the whole of year 2010, the market had high
expectations on the appreciation of RMB. The
People’s Bank of China also announced on a
number of occasions the raise in RMB interest rate
and its objective to slow down credit expansion. At
the beginning of the year, the management made
an analysis on its bank borrowing portfolio and
the market situation, and concluded that certain
measures had to be taken to hedge against the
interest risk. It was decided that more weight
should be put on USD borrowings to replace RMB
borrowings, and to acquire medium term fixed
rate borrowings to replace short term floating
rate borrowings. Up to the end of the second
quarter, the Group had successfully secured term
loan facilities of USD40,000,000. The USD loans
drawn were exchanged into RMB and injected
into the subsidiaries in China partly for its capital
expenditure and partly to repay a portion of the
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then outstanding RMB borrowings. Concurrently,
the Group entered into some Non-Deliverable Swap
Contracts (“NDS”) with the bank as the counterparty
and effectively locked in the corresponding interest
payment at a fixed rate which was much lower than
that of RMB loan offered by the Chinese bank at
that moment.

The measures taken have effectively controlled
interest expenses at a manageable level
commencing from the second half of year 2010
and will continue for the ensuing 3 years, but the
increase in interest expenses in the first half of the
year was unavoidable. Furthermore, in arranging
the USD term loan facilities, bank management fee
had to be paid in addition to the interest and thus
caused the bank charges to increase.

Fair Value Change of Derivatives Financial
Instruments

In 2010, the Group recorded a fair value change
of derivatives financial instruments of about
HK$82,087,000 and that caused a superficial
jeopardy to our net earnings. According to the
prevailing accounting standards, DF, NDF and NDS
are all defined as derivatives financial instruments
and the value of these need to be assessed at
the end of the financial year on a mark to market
basis. Such value changes, though, contingent
in nature, have to be recorded in the income
statement as an item similar to gain or loss (as
required by the accounting standard). In substance,
these derivatives contracts (as explained in the
above in the section headed “Foreign Exchange
Gain”) are the constituents of a package of financial
instruments arranged on fully hedged basis for
cost saving purposes. Accordingly, such fair value
change actually causes no impact to our financial
position.
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1.4 Operational Performance

The sales and distribution expenses of the Group,
which comprised mainly salary, transportation
cost, warehouse rental and demurrage charges,
amounted to about HK$79,093,000 in total in 2010
(2009: about HK$84,957,000). In this respect, a
reduction of about HK$5,864,000 was achieved
notwithstanding the growth of sales volume and
turnover. Assuming that these expenses are equally
shared by the LPG sales volume of each year,
the unit sales and distribution expenses would be
about HK$124.6/ton for 2008, about HK$80.1/
ton for 2009, and about HK$64.9/ton for 2010.
The improvement is indeed quite impressive, but
such improvement could be achieved only because
our LPG sales in these years were mostly on
wholesaling basis and the expenses related thereto
were effectively cut down by the enhancement of
our logistic efficiency. In the forthcoming years, the
situation is anticipated to change. LPG retailing
volume which generally incurs higher distribution
cost will be expanding much faster than that of LPG
wholesaling, and further reduction in the sales and
distribution expenses of the Group are therefore
unlikely. The management however will keep on
enhancing the logistic efficiency and use further
savings in wholesaling to make good the additional
expenses for retailing expansion. The absolute
amount of expenses may still increase despite such
measure being taken, but the unit cost is expected
to be maintained at a level more or less the same
as that in 2010.
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The administrative expenses of the Group for 2010
amounted to about HK$136,432,000, an increase
of about 46.1% when compared with that of
about HK$93,413,000 for 2009. Amongst all the
administrative expenses items, salary and welfare
recorded the most obvious increase. Additional
human resources were deployed for execution of
the expansion plan at head office level and for
day to day operation at subsidiary level given that
bottled LPG business in Maoming, Zhuhai and
Macau had started all in one year. Additional pre-
opening expenses were also incurred in the process
of qualifying ourselves as registered gas supply
company for entering into the Hong Kong bottled
LPG market. Other items that showed significant
increase included legal and professional fees that
were mainly incurred for the autogas refueling
station project in Guangzhou. As a whole, the
additional expenditures were all related to expanding
direct sales to the downstream markets which, we
anticipate, would bring about significant business
growth as well as earnings improvement. As most
of the foundation work for business expansion has
been completed in 2010, further expenditure of this
nature are unlikely to occur and the administrative
expenses for 2011 are expected to be reduced
moderately.
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Source: China Custom

In line with the continual increase in oil price
globally, the international price of LPG kept on
rising over the year of 2010. At the same time,
local refineries in China had substantially increased
their LPG output. Massive supply of domestic
LPG flooded the market, damping domestic price
adjustments. The price difference between imported
LPG and domestic LPG was much widened. Market
demand for imported LPG was weakened and LPG
terminals were quite cautious in placing import
orders. As a result, for the whole of the year 2010,
the LPG import volume of China dropped 22.2%
and that of Guangdong dropped 21.0%.
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2. LPG Business Overall 2.
2.1 The Market Situation (Guangdong)
Units: "000 tons 2010
By - FIE —E—ZfF
China’s total demand FEEEAESkE 23,8377 100%
Guangdong's total BREBLFRE
demand 5,100 22%

Source: Guangdong Oil and Gas Associations
Units: ’000 tons 2010
Bl T —E—8F
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2.2

In Guangdong, although its import volume had a
21.0% reduction, its export volume increased by
about 28.3% signifying that the domestic market
had indeed lost appetite in imported LPG.

As a whole, 2010 was quite a difficult year to the
import sea terminals, each of them having to make
certain adjustment to their purchase and sales
strategy in order to maintain their share in the
supply market.

Business Situation

In view of the high import price and the widened
difference between the prices of import and
domestic supply, the Group had to make
appropriate adjustment to its purchase strategy to
avoid the risk of taking any position on imported
LPG. Purchase of imported LPG was reduced while
that of domestic LPG was substantially increased.
Thanks to the change in strategy, the Group was
able to maintain sales volume growth to about
1,219,000 tons in 2010, an increase of about 15.0%
in comparison with that of about 1,060,000 tons in
2009.

Through our Zhuhai Terminal, the Group imported
about 485,000 tons in 2010, 39.2% less than that
of about 798,000 tons in 2009. Accordingly, Zhuhai
Terminal’s ranking in China’s import fell to the
second place for the first time in the past 3 years.
Export volume recorded a 14.0% decrease to about
227,000 tons from that of about 264,000 tons in
2009, ranking it number two in China’s total export.
With respect to domestic LPG, purchase volume
surged to about 734,000 tons in 2010, an increase
of 180.2% compared with that of about 262,000
tons in 2009.

2.2
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21.0% BEEOSEARmMEMNT
28.3% ' 1= B ABRAB AT 5 H i
ORR B RKEMET AR -

HREDRAERBEmS - 2010
FRIEFMEH—F - SRFERQ
AATREEMSBEEE  HHMAE
HEREREENRBETEED
FEE o

E 0390

EZRIENZELSE  MEOR
HEERMNEZNUREE £
BATES B H IR E R IE
HEENAR  NEeRAEOR
MIEBASIBNERESHRERR -
2010 Eifdl - KERIEKED R
g - BIENMAERERORE -
HAREZEE  SEE2010F A
REERBIHEEMBEEIER &
FHEEETIH1,219,000HF - £
2009 4F [7] & #9 1,060,000 & HY 4
ESMA - EIBA15.0%Lh -

& B33 B IR 515 B8 1 049 485,000
WE R 1L & - B 2009 £ #7798,000
WEXE QN E ML - WA T 439.2% o
AAELOENRELD  KKEIHHELE
FEKICREDENEES 36
BRTUES (- KWEBHED
A E A FTREE - B2009F
#49264,000MF Lt & - 2010F H
O & T 414.0% = #227,000
g - HEFRBERIRE OSMEESR
NEABETRELE - EREE
KRB RIRBIR A E47734,000
WE - Lt ¥ 2009 4F [ HY 49 262,000
WE - FFHIEEIES180.2% °

Annual Report 2010 —ZE—TBHF{

19



Management Discussion and Analysis

ERELHREAN

The Group’s Purchase Categories $£EFHESE 2010 2009
—E-Bf —TENF

Term contract - ship import cargo ~ REIAR — EOME 270,000 tonslif  22% 383,000 tonsiE  36%
Spot purchase - ship import cargo ~ ENEIREE — EOME 215,000 tonsif  18% 415,000 tonsE  39%
Import Volume Enws 485,000 tons 40% 798,000 tonsME 75%
Domestic purchase volume EERRR

— spot — EpR3 734,000 tons i 60% 262,000 tons/if 25%
The Group’s total purchase SEUERRE 1,219,000 tons®#  100% 1,060,000 tonsHf  100%
The Group’s Sales Categories SERENE 2010 2009
Imported LPG: 0K : —Z-2% ZTTNE
Export - term contract 40 — REAR 120,000 tonsi  25% 186,000 tonsl  23%
Export - spot sales 40— fig 107,000 tonsi  22% 78,000 tons i 10%
Export Total HOo#E 227,000 tons 47% 264,000 tons i 33%
Domestic sales - term contract BAHE — REAE 131,000 tonsi  27% 178,000 tonsE ~ 22%
Domestic sales - spot EAEE — fIE 45,000 tons fi§ 9% 292,000 tons lE 37%
Domestic sales - in bottle for EANHE — TZAM%E

industrial use 82,000 tons i 17% 64,000 tons 8%
Domestic Sales Total BEARELE 258,000 tonsi  53% 534,000 tons & 67%
Imported LPG Distribution Total ENREHER 485,000 tonsi  100% 798,000 tonsME  100%
Domestic LPG: BER:
Bottled LPG MERHEE 127,000 tons#  17% 124,000 tonshE  47%
Domestic LPG bulk selling B 607,000 tons  83% 138,000 tons®f  53%
Domestic LPG Distribution Total ElEREHES 734,000 tonsi§  100% 262,000 tonsE  100%
The Group’s total LPG sales SERtREHER 1,219,000 tons i 1,060,000 tons
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2.3

Imported LPG Distribution
Export

The Group’s LPG export volume in 2010 dropped
about 14.0% as the result of losing about 60,000
tons of sales under term contract. The Group
intended to compensate for the volume loss by
the increase in spot sales. But as spot sales
occasionally puts the Group at the risk of running
imported LPG positions, the Group decided not to
take an aggressive approach. Ultimately, spot sales
volume was increased by only about 30,000 tons.
Although we were ultimately unable to maintain the
previous year’s export volume, the management had
not given up any opportunity to compensate for the
loss in export volume in 2010. A new term contracts
for about 50,000 tons of export was secured at the
end of the year which, we believe, will contribute
significantly to the rebound of export volume in
2011.

In the second quarter 2010, the Group acquired
a distributor of bottled LPG in Macau for
commencement of its operation in the Macau
bottled LPG market. At the same time, keen
efforts had been put on applying for the license
of registered gas supply company for entering
the bottled LPG market in Hong Kong. These two
markets, which rely heavily on imported LPG, will
help to boost up our export from China and also to
improve our earnings.
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Imported LPG Distribution in the Domestic
Market

Distribution of imported LPG in the domestic market
did face a difficult business environment as the
price of domestic LPG was much lower than that
of imported LPG most of the time in 2010. In many
cases, industrial customers tolerated the price
differential for the quality of the gas, but voiced
strong demands for price concessions. In these
cases, the Group took the initiative to analyze the
genuine needs of the client and supplied to them
the mixture of imported and domestic gas with the
quality that suited their minimum requirement. By
doing so, the sales of imported LPG had to reduce,
but our customer base and the volume of sales to
them would all be maintained, or even increased.

Amongst all industrial customers, autogas operators
require exclusively imported LPG. No tolerance
on quality would be allowed. Our sales in this
respect therefore were not affected. Since under
the autogas refueling stations project, the Group
has acquired an initial 5% interest in 17 refueling
stations in Guangzhou at the end of 2010, an
increase in the supply of imported LPG to the
existing operator of the stations is possible in the
coming year.

The distribution of imported LPG (in bottles) through
our bottling plants had achieved remarkable growth
of about 28.1% from about 64,000 tons in 2009 to
about 82,000 tons in 2010. The industrial customers
that needed to be supplied in bottles consumed
relatively small volume of the gas. The rise in
imported LPG price did not impose significant
impact on their cost of production, thus there are
no serious obstacles to our sales promotion. The
sales growth in this respect was all attributable to
the dedication of our bottling plants, and the growth
trend is highly likely to continue.
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2.4 Domestic LPG Distribution (including bottled

LPG distribution)
Domestic LPG wholesaling

The distribution of domestic LPG recorded a
significant growth in 2010. Total volume reached
about 734,000 tons, an increase of 180.2% as
compared with that of about 262,000 tons in 2009.
Zhuhai NewOcean Energy Technology Company
Limited (“NewOcean Technology”), the purchase
centre for domestic LPG, was able to achieve a
substantial increase in purchase and in sales. Apart
from its role of assuring the supply of domestic LPG
to our own bottling plants, NewOcean Technology
also assisted in maintaining our customer base in
the domestic wholesaling sector, The Group has
been able to keep customers which would otherwise
be deterred by the high prices of imported LPG. In
this respect, NewOcean Technology successfully
wholesaled about 607,000 tons of domestic LPG,
about 339.9% increase comparing with that of
about 138,000 tons in 2009.

Domestic LPG Retailing

With respect to bottled LPG, the Group had
continued to reduce its sales through dealers by
establishing our own direct sales network. The
logistic facilities and manpower in Guangzhou and
Shenzhen had been strengthened, and direct sales
of bottled LPG to both restaurants and households
were all increased.

In 2010, the Group had completed the construction
of a new bottling plant in the Zhuhai Terminal
which now focuses on the supply to industrial
customers in Zhuhai Industrial Zone, Xinhui and
Kaiping area. It also acquired a bottling plant in
Zhuhai Hengqin for penetration into the neighboring
household/commercial market. By making these
investments, the number of bottling plants of the
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3.

Group increased from 14 in 2009 to 16 in 2010.
These plants all together achieved a sales volume
of about 209,000 tons, an increase of about 11.2%
compared to that of about 188,000 tons in 2009. It
is worth noting that out of the about 209,000 tons
of retail sales, about 127,000 tons were domestic
LPG sold to household customers. The remaining
about 82,000 tons were imported LPG supplied to
industrial customers.

2.5 Wholesaling and Retailing Proportion

Wholesaling and retailing volumes were respectively
about 1,010,000 tons and about 209,000 tons in
2010 while those of 2009 were respectively about
872,000 tons and about 188,000 tons. The volume
growth rates were respectively about 15.8% and
11.2%. The wholesaling and retailing proportion in
2010 was about 83:17 which was more or less the
same as that of 82:18 in 2009. According to our
development plan, the Group has been accelerating
the expansion of direct sales to the lucrative
downstream markets aiming at improvement in
earnings. The proportion between wholesaling
and retailing volume will from now on serve as an
indicator for monitoring the effect of such strategy.
Whilst not much change in the proportion was
observed in 2010, as the foundation work had
almost been completed in 2010, we are confident
that the increase in retailing will contribute much
better earnings in the forthcoming years.

Electronics Business

In 2010, we continued the cooperation with NewTel
Corporation Co. Ltd. (“NewTel”) and adopted the same
business model in selling cellular phones in the Thailand
market. The political uncertainty in 2009 did weaken
consumption power in Thailand and cause a moderate
decline in the sales volume in 2010.
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Electronics components trading has been a speculative
business. The Group will continue this business only on
the condition that the sales are to be conducted on cost
plus basis, and credit exposure will be kept at minimum
level.

Business Outlook

The Group’s LPG business will continue to be our main
development objective in the coming future, and our
focus will be put on the strengthening of our earning
capability.

The bottling plant in Zhuhai Henggin has attracted
distributors in Macau to enter into contract with the plant
for LPG bottle refilling. We have strong confidence that
the proximity of the plant to the distributors can help to
substantially reduce the cross border transportation cost
of the transaction and produce mutual benefits to both
parties.

Penetration into the bottled LPG markets for a
higher profit margin shall continue, in particular the
application for registration as a registered gas supply
company in Hong Kong will be accelerated to strive
for commencement of bottled LPG sales in the second
quarter of year 2011.

More resources shall be immediately deployed to promote
and extend the autogas projects into other cities of
Guangdong. In this respect our financial ability to invest
in building sufficient refueling stations and our assurance
of continual supply of autogas are the attributes that will
earn local government’s support to move the projects
forward.
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At the Zhuhai Terminal, construction work for both
the additional berths and the oil storage depot all
commenced in late 2010. These projects are planned
to complete by the end of 2011. By then, the annual
throughput capacity of the Zhuhai Terminal will increase
to about 1,600,000 tons of LPG, and the oil storage
depot project will start to contribute to the earnings of
the Group.

Since the foundation work for expanding our direct sales
to the downstream markets were by and large completed
in 2010, we are looking forward to a prominent growth of
the retail sales as well as their significant contribution to
the Group’s earnings in 2011.

Liquidity And Financial Resources

At 31 December 2010, the net current assets of the
Group amounted to approximately HK$727,881,000 (2009:
HK$191,116,000) and the Group’s bank balances and cash
was approximately HK$380,181,000 (2009: HK$194,716,000).
At the end of reporting date, current ratio was 1.18:1 (2009:
1.06:1), quick ratio was 1.06:1 (2009: 0.93:1), gearing ratio
was 0.17:1 (2009: 0.02:1) which was calculated based on
total long term borrowings of approximately HK$254,246,000
(2009: HK$17,800,000) and total equity of approximately
HK$1,478,591,000 (2009: HK$1,016,217,000).

Contingent Liabilities

The Group had no significant contingent liabilities at 31
December 2010 and 2009.

Pledge of Assets

At 31 December 2010, the Group pledged its bank deposits
amounting to approximately HK$2,035,865,000 (2009:
HK$1,392,355,000) to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group. At 31 December 2009, other bank loans
of the Group comprised of: (a) an amount of approximately
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HK$70,642,000 drawn under a term loan facility secured by
a floating charge over the assets of the Company, and by
share mortgages of the issued capital and floating charges
over the assets of the wholly owned subsidiaries, Sound Hong
Kong Limited and NewOcean (Shenzhen) Energy Investment
Limited; (b) an amount of approximately HK$23,347,000
drawn under a term loan facility guaranteed by the Company;
and (c) an amount of approximately HK$81,774,000 drawn
under a short term loan facility for PRC companies guaranteed
by the Company. Included in this amount, an amount of
approximately HK$13,629,000 drawn under a term loan
facility secured by fixed charge over the assets of a wholly
owned subsidiary, Shenzhen Baorun Liquefied Petroleum Gas
Company Limited, that represented additional charge of the
guarantee.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

At 31 December 2010, the Group employed 630 (2009:
500) full time employees in Hong Kong, Macau and the
PRC. The Group remunerated the employees based on their
performance, experience and prevailing market practice.
Employee benefits provided by the Group include a provident
fund scheme, medical insurance scheme and an employee
share option scheme.
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The Company is committed to good corporate governance
principles. Its Board recognises that an effective corporate
governance framework and high governance standard are both
essential to the Company’s long-term development.

Corporate Governance Practices

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2010 the Company
applied the principles and complied with all code provisions as
set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the
“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange, save for a
deviation from the provision governing tenure of non-executive
directors mentioned below.

Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code provides that non-executive
directors shall be appointed for specific term, subject to re-
election. The Company deviated from this provision in that
none of the non-executive directors are appointed for a
fixed term, instead their tenure of office are governed by
the provisions for retirement by rotation and re-election as
provided in the Bye-laws of the Company. (These provisions
are described in the paragraph headed “Non-executive
Directors” below). The Board believes that the fixing of
the tenure of non-executive directors by way of provisions
contained in the Bye-laws, and the shareholders’ right to re-
elect retiring non-executive directors as contained in the Bye-
laws, will serve the long term interests of the Company. In the
opinion of the Board, the measures adopted by the Company
are no less exacting than those in the CG Code.

Directors’ Securities Transaction

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by the directors.
Following specific enquiry by the Company, all directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the required standard
as set out in the Model Code during the year.
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Board of Directors

The Board currently comprises seven executive directors and
three independent non-executive directors. Biographical details
of all directors of the Company are set out in the paragraph
headed “Directors’ Profile” on page 4 to page 6.

Membership of the Board during the year ended 31 December
2010 were as follows:

Executive Directors

Shum Siu Hung (Chairman)

Shum Chun, Lawrence (Managing Director)
Cai Xikun

Cen Ziniu

Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond

Siu Ka Fai, Brian

Wang Jian

Non-executive Director

Wu Hong Cho (resigned on 14 June 2010)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony

Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict

Dr. Xu Mingshe

Managing director Shum Chun, Lawrence is the son of Shum

Siu Hung, Chairman of the Company and a cousin of Cen
Ziniu, executive director of the Company.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

The Board is vested with the following roles and functions,
with operational decisions and execution delegated to the
management:

° To establish the strategic direction for the development
of the Company and to set the objectives of the
management;

° To approve annual budgets, major funding proposals and
investment proposals;

o To decide on matters such as annual and interim results,
major transactions, directors appointment, dividend and
accounting policies; and

° To oversee the processes for evaluating the adequacy
of internal controls, risk management, financial reporting
and compliance.

With the assistance of the Company Secretary, Board
meetings are initiated by the Chairman and all directors are
consulted on the agenda. Procedures are established for all
directors to have free access to board papers and related
information, to review the Group’s internal control, and to have
the services of the Company Secretary to ensure matters are
transacted in the Board in accordance applicable rules and
practices. Directors may seek independent professional advice
upon reasonable request to discharge their duties.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Proposed regular Board meeting schedule for the current year
is circulated to the Board in the preceding year. The following
table shows the attendance of directors at meetings of the
Board during the year ended 31 December 2010:

g

EE®(E)

AFEERTEARZEFTSEZRBERE A
—FREEZLEH - TRATEZE2010F 12
ABHIEFEASEENEES SR 2EF
4WEE

Number of Meetings

Name of director Attended
BN HEZRRH
Executive Directors: HITEE -

Shum Siu Hung (Chairman) B (EE) 6/6
Shum Chun, Lawrence (Managing Director) BE(EFLIE) 6/6
Cai Xikun 2515 1 6/6
Cen Ziniu EFF 6/6
Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond AR 6/6
Siu Ka Fai, Brian EXE 6/6
Wang Jian FE 6/6
Non-executive Directors: FFHITESF -

Wu Hong Cho HEL 2/2
Independent Non-executive Directors: BB TER -

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony iR #9795 6/6
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict PR B & 6/6
Dr. Xu Mingshe HrEAELT 6/6
Chairman and Managing Director EITRREFHER

The offices of Chairman and Managing Director of the

ARAMEFEREZTALEZBUD R

Company are separated by written guidelines adopted by
the Board to ensure a clear division of responsibilities. The
responsibilities of the Chairman include leadership of the
Board, providing relevant information and mobilizing the
collective resources of the directors in the Board’s roles and
functions. The Managing Director is responsible for leadership
of the management, and for execution of business strategies
and front-line execution.
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Non-Executive Directors

As at the date of this report, three members of the Board are
independent non-executive directors. The term of appointment
of non-executive directors is governed by the Company’s Bye-
laws pursuant to which at each annual general meeting one-
third of the Directors of the time being (or, if their number is
not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not greater
than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that
the chairman of the Board and/or the managing director of the
Company shall not, whilst holding such office, be subject to
retirement by rotation or be taken into account in determining
the number of Directors to retire in each year.

The Company has received annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Board has assessed their independence and concluded
that all the independent non-executive directors are
independent within the definition of the Listing Rules.

Board Committees

The Board has set up two Committees in accordance with
the CG Code, namely the Remuneration Committee and the
Audit Committee. The Board has not set up a Nomination
Committee, the establishment of which is a recommended
best practice by the Stock Exchange, and the function of
nomination of new directors is undertaken by the full Board.
Under the Company’s Bye-laws, the Board has the power
from time to time and at any time to appoint any person as a
director either to fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the
Board, subject to authorization by the shareholders in general
meeting. Such power is also exercised by the full Board in
accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

In addition to the Remuneration Committee and the Audit
Committee, the Board has set up an Executive Committee
comprising all executive directors on the Board. Under its
terms of reference, the Executive Committee is responsible
for the oversight of the management of the Group and the
formulation of administrative guidelines.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company has adopted terms of reference for the
Remuneration Committee that are in line with the principles
of the CG Code. The Remuneration Committee comprises
three independent non-executive directors and two executive
directors as follows:

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony (Committee Chairman)
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict

Dr. Xu Mingshe

Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond

Shum Chun, Lawrence

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for ensuring
formal and transparent procedures for developing remuneration
policies and overseeing the remuneration packages of the
executive directors and senior management. It takes into
consideration on factors such as salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities of Directors
and senior management. The Remuneration Committee meets
at least once a year to access the performance and review the
annual salaries and bonus of the senior executives.

Two meetings of the Remuneration Committee was held in the
year 2010 to review, among other things, the remuneration
packages of the Chairman and the executive directors and the
attendance of each member is as follows:
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Number of Meetings

Name of Member Attended
REMSE HESERH
Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony (Committee Chairman) REB(ZEEFE) 2/2
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict BRIBAZ 2/2
Dr. Xu Mingshe wEAELT 2/2
Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond R 2/2
Shum Chun, Lawrence = 2/2
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Audit Committee

The Company has adopted terms of reference for the Audit
Committee that are in line with the principles of the CG Code.
The Audit Committee comprises all independent non-executive
directors on the Board as follows:

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony (Committee Chairman)

Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict

Dr. Xu Mingshe

The principal duties of the Audit Committee are to ensure the
objectivity and credibility of financial reporting and internal
control procedures as well as to maintain an appropriate

relationship with the external auditors of the Company.

The Audit Committee met twice during the year 2010 during
which the following matters were reviewed and discussed:

° Auditing and financial reporting matters;

° Appointment and remuneration of external auditor;

° Non-auditing work of external auditor;

° Maintenance of the Group’s internal control system; and

° Review of interim results and audited financial
statements.

Attendance of each member of the Audit Committee at
meeting during the year is as follows:
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Number of Meetings

Name of Member Attended
BMEKS HEEERRH
Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony (Committee Chairman) SRR (ZEEFE) 2/2
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict (=R Ep e 2/2
Dr. Xu Mingshe rEAEL 2/2
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Auditor’s Remuneration
During the year under review, the remuneration paid/payable

to the Company’s auditor, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
is set out as follows:

Services rendered

R REN N &

REBFER - BN BN TARRZEMD
®E « AEMRHSEENITZ2ERINT

Fees paid/payable

AR 75 1R it 2ft EfNER

HK$’000

FET

Audit services E RS 2,813

Non-audit services IEEFTARTS 607

Total A& 3,420
Internal Control RERET b

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of internal
controls and for reviewing its effectiveness. The management
of the Company has established a set of comprehensive
policies, standards and procedures in areas of operational,
financial and risk controls for safeguarding assets against
unauthorized use or disposition; for maintaining proper
accounting records; and for ensuring the reliability of financial
information to achieve a satisfactory level of assurance against
the likelihood of the occurrence of fraud and errors.

The evaluation of the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control is conducted by the internal audit function of the
management on an on-going basis, and the responsible
personnel will directly report to the Audit Committee on any
significant finding on internal controls.

Through out the year 2010, the Company complied with the
code provisions on internal controls as stipulated in the CG
Code. During the year the Company conducted a full review of
the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group
and discussed the assessment bases with the management.
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Accountability and Audit

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Group and ensuring that
the financial statements are in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
statement of the external auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on page
48.

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited ¥1S8EREBBR QA

RERERZH

EERERREAREZVBRE - LR
MBEBRENTAEAEERLRBERZ T ERR
BEERZBE MR Z PRB AL
RAFREE 48 AW ZBENRER ©



Directors’ Report
EEEWE

The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2010.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out
in note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group was
principally engaged in the sale and distribution of liquefied
petroleum gas and sales of electronic products.

Results and Appropriation

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2010 are set out in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on page 51.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend
of HK1.0 cent per share to the shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members on 7 June 2011 amounting
to approximately HK$13,059,000. At 18 March 2011, the
number of shares issued and fully paid is 1,305,853,374
(2009: 1,155,853,374).

Property, Plant and Equipment

During the year, the Group spent approximately
HK$115,004,000 (2009: HK$16,926,000) on property, plant
and equipment to expand and upgrade its gas plant.

During the year, the Group acquired, through the acquisition of
subsidiaries, property, plant and equipment of approximately
HK$671,000 (2009: HK$22,574,000).

Details of these and other movements during the year in
property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in note
16 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Reserves

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31 December 2010 were as follows:

it

AATR2010FE 12 A31 B Al DR PR E
BREBIT -

HK$’000 HK$’000

FETT FETT

Contributed surplus MAB R 1,667 1,667
Retained earnings IR &= 17,693 12,643
19,360 14,310

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus account of the Company is available for
distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(@) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less
than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share
capital and share premium accounts.

Raising of Funds and Use of Proceeds

On 1 November 2010, the Company entered into a placing
agreement to place 150,000,000 placing shares at the
placing price of HK$1.78 per placing share (the “Placement”).
The Placement has been completed and 150,000,000
shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company were duly placed
on 5 November 2010. There were total net proceeds of
approximately HK$263,237,000 raised in this Placement
the net proceeds raised served as a cash reserve for
the acquisition of Ef #T a2 R % E B R A A (Lianxin Energy
Development Company Limited) and any unutilised portion will
be used as general working capital at the Group.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

The largest customer of the Group by itself and the total of
the five largest customers accounted for 15% and 54% (2009:
18% and 57%) respectively of the Group’ s total turnover for
the year.

The largest supplier of the Group by itself and the total of the
five largest suppliers accounted for 22% and 76% (2009: 25%
and 60%) respectively of the Group’s total purchase for the
year.

At no time during the year did a director, an associate
of a director, or a shareholder of the Company (which to
the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) have an interest in any of the
Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Purchase, Sale and Redemption of the Company’s
Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 31 December 2010.

FEEFRRHER

TR AEENRAEEAG REBERERZD
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(2009 : 18% & 57%) °

FRAEESEABEEEAS MEREERN
AAEEE DGR EEERBE2% K
76% (2009 : 25% 2 60%) °

RERNEMER ARFEE EFHHE
AT ESMAREEARREHITRAE%
AEMEMERRBEREARBEAATPH
HERE A

Bz %

FAR ARFABRANBEEFBCEHRNZAH

EREMIFES0 -

MR HERMEFLAFZLTES

MR2010F12A31HIEFERN » ARAIsE
EAMBRATBIERE  HERELOEARQF
2 tWES -

Annual Report 2010 —E—ZBHF ]

39



40

Directors’ Report
EEEHE

Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Shum Siu Hung (Chairman)

Shum Chun, Lawrence (Managing Director)
Cai Xikun

Cen Ziniu

Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond

Siu Ka Fai, Brian

Wang Jian

Non-executive director:
Wu Hong Cho (resigned on 14 June 2010)
Independent non-executive directors:

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict
Xu Mingshe

In accordance with clauses 86 and 87 of the Company’s Bye-
laws, Mr. Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond, executive directors and
Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony, and Mr. Chan Yuk Wai,
Benedict, independent non-executive director shall retire by
rotation from office at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company. All the retiring directors, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election as directors.

No director being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

The term of office for each non-executive director is the

period up to his retirement by rotation in accordance with the
Company’s Bye-laws.

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #E82REBAER AT
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares

At 31 December 2010, the interests of the directors and chief
executives and their associates in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company and its associated corporations, as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies, were as follows:

(a) Long positions of ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
of the Company

EFRERTHRA RN RIEMERN
hziEa

R2010F12A31H  EFEREBTHAER
MESE2HBARARAREEBEE 2K
DEAERDT  BEARRBREESR
HE 1615 55 352 1648 T Re 8k A A& B Bt it 75
BEZERMAED  BREFESLTAAE
BRTEFRHZBRETRRE  AMNEAR
UNSIDNE- T 2 s (N

(a) FLTFISHREMEO0.10BTHBERPZLF
-

Percentage

of the issued

Number of share capital
issued ordinary of the Company

shares held FRr{iE&E 2T

Name of director Capacity FRISE 81T BRITRK

EERR S TERSE BifL

Shum Siu Hung Family interest (note 1) 490,779,280 37.58%

S0 Kt (Hat 1)

Shum Chun, Lawrence Beneficial owner 49,933,558 3.82%

ZE BEREAA

Other (note 2) 73,616,892 5.64%
Hi(Hfatz2)
123,550,450 9.46%

Cen Ziniu Other (note 2) 4,907,793 0.38%

L4 Hith(Hfatz)

Wu Hong Cho Other (note 2) 24,538,964 1.88%

HAEL H A (Kt 2)

Notes: Wit -

1. These represent the same block of 490,779,280 shares 1. SERMHEES DEZEEBE /R
held as corporate interest by Tong Shiu Ming, spouse of NEED BREBMIEBRAERAT
Shum Siu Hung, though Uniocean Investments Limited ([ 8 ) # A 2 490,779,280 % & 15
(“Uniocean”) as referred to in note 2 below and note 1 HME(ARTH 2RI =E/RE |aE i
under the section (a) headed “Substantial Shareholders”, 1) WHWRABRSDBURKER
and were deemed to be the family interest of Shum Siu A o

Hung.

2. These interests reflect respectively 1% and 15%
proportional interest of Shum Chun, Lawrence and Cen
Ziniu in the 490,779,280 shares held by Uniocean.

ZEEENIESANMSTHZLN
B P 1 B 2 490,779,280 % % 15
DRNE1% 2 15% 2 2 o
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in Shares

EFREERTHRA RN RIEMEH

and Underlying Shares (Continued) hziER(Z)
(b) Share options (b) FHERIE
Number of
Number of underlying
Name of executive director Capacity options held shares
BiTESEMR 517 FRiSHERRERE FiSHRKRGHE
Shum Siu Hung Beneficial owner 9,940,358 9,940,358
R EnlEA A
Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond Beneficial owner 6,626,905 6,626,905
i EmEEA
Siu Ka Fai, Brian Beneficial owner 4,970,179 4,970,179
LES: EmEB A
21,537,442 21,637,442
Number of
Name of independent Number of underlying
non-executive director Capacity options held shares
BIFRTEFRS S FRiSMBRRERE FriSHRKRKGHAE
Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony Beneficial owner 1,104,484 1,104,484

SREE EnERA

Other than as disclosed above and nominee shares in
certain subsidiaries held by certain directors in trust for
the Group, none of the directors, chief executives nor
their respective associates had any interests or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations as
at 31 December 2010.
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Share Options

Particulars of the Company’s share option schemes are set

RiaRz g

out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements. MEE3T -

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s
share options during the year:

Outstanding

ARB 2 BRAEFTBFBHENEA P ME

TERBEAL AT NBRIES 2

Outstanding

at at
31.12.2010 31.12.2009
Option type #1.1.2010 7 31.12.2009
X5 HERITE WRITE
Category 1: Directors
S%F1:ESE
Shum Siu Hung 2006B 9,940,358 9,940,358
e
Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond 2006B 6,626,905 6,626,905
AR
Siu Ka Fai, Brian (note) 2006A 4,970,179 4,970,179
BEREB(M:F)
Total directors 21,637,442 21,637,442
EEAH
Category 2: Independent
Non-Executive Directors
SE2: BUFRTES
Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony 20068 1,104,484 1,104,484
&899
Category 3: Employees
P3RBT 2006A 9,940,358 9,940,358
32,682,284 32,682,284
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Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures

Other than as disclosed above, at no time during the year was
the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries,
a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the
Company or their respective spouses or children under the
age of 18 to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

Directors’/Controlling Shareholders’ Interests in
Contracts of Significance

Details of related party transactions during the year are set out
in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, no other contracts of significance
to which the Company, its holding company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director or a
controlling shareholder of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly in any contract, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #E82REBAER AT
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Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2010, the register of substantial
shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance shows that
other than the interests disclosed above in respect of certain
directors and chief executive, the following shareholders had
notified the Company of relevant interests and short positions
in the issued share capital of the Company:

(a) Long positions of ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of
the Company

FERRE

R2010F 12 831 H @ RIEBEARAIKBES
N ERE 5B % 336 IR E AR FEREE
AR - THREMNSGAAREE AR F
BETRACE@ER AR

(@) REFLTFHRMEMEO.10ETH BRI
-

Percentage

Number of of the issued

issued ordinary share capital

shares held of the Company

Name of shareholder Capacity FREELT FRriEE QT

RS S ERTEERBE CSBRTRFESL

Tong Shiu Ming Held by corporation (note 1) 490,779,280 37.58%
=RNE A el A (Ma 1)

Yam Tak Cheung Held by corporation (nhote 2) 80,000,000 6.13%
FEE A e A (M 2)

Notes: Haz -

1. 490,779,280 shares of the Company are held as corporate
interest by Tong Shiu Ming through Uniocean which is
owned as to 64% by Tong Shiu Ming, 15% by Shum
Chun, Lawrence, 15% by Shum Ho, Neo, 5% by Wu Hong
Cho and 1% by Cen Ziniu.

2. 80,000,000 shares of the Company are held by Integrated
Asset Management (Asia) Limited (“Integrated Asset”). Yam
Tak Cheung owned 100% of Integrated Asset and was
deemed to be the controlling shareholder of Integrated
Asset.

1. AR 2Z490,779,280 B i% 19 B & /)
AR RERE  BBEHIEE - 8
RENH 28 2% HELERS
FHEDRNHEB64% - 15% * 15% * 5%
1%

2. A A 7 280,000,0008% & 5 H
Integrated Asset Management (Asia)
Limited ([ RE )#%E - EREHEA R
FME 100% #4174 AR R AN BE 2 4%
MRARER o

Annual Report 2010 —Z—ZFF

45



46

Directors’ Report

Substantial Shareholders (Continued)

(b) Share options

Name of shareholder Capacity

BB 313

Tong Shiu Ming Family interest (Note)
[&/]NEA Kk (H17F)

Note: Share option to subscribe 9,940,358 shares are held
by Shum Siu Hung, the spouse of Tong Shiu Ming as
referred to note 1 under the section (a) headed “Directors’
and Chief Executives’ Interests in Shares and Underlying
Shares” above, and are deemed to be the family interest
of Tong Shiu Ming.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not
been notified of any other relevant interests or short
position in the issued share capital of the Company as at
31 December 2010.

Emolument Policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to directors and eligible employees, details of the
scheme are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements.

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #E82REBAER AT
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Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

Sufficiency of Public Float

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended 31 December 2010.

Auditor

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to
re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board
Shum Siu Hung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 March 2011

=5 iR Bk 4
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Independent Auditor’s Report
&S Z B

Deloitte.
=2

TO THE MEMBERS OF NEWOCEAN ENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 51 to 170, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2010,
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that gives a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that gives a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

BBz |’ T

BEEZEARBREBEATZIER  BREHA
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31
December 2010 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

18 March 2011
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

NN G

For the year ended 31 December 2010

EZ2010F 12 431 HiEFZE

2010 2009

Note HK$’000 HK$’000
i3 FAET FAET
Revenue WA 6 8,477,715 6,483,119
Cost of sales SHEE AR (8,030,917) (6,087,801)
Gross profit E7 446,798 395,318
Interest income on pledged BEEMARB(TARE]
Renminbi (“RMB”) bank RITEIZF A
deposits PN 47,088 17,190
Other income E YA 8 68,232 10,839
Selling and distribution expenses  $5% &9 $Hx H (79,093) (84,957)
Administrative expenses T H (136,432) (93,413)
Written off of trade debtors FENE 5 BR 3R 2 Hf 85 = (2,256)
Written off of other assets HAth & 2 2 i 5E = (4,190)
Impairment on goodwill HREERE
recognised 19 - (7,500)
Changes in fair values of MEMBITAATE
derivative financial instruments AL (82,087) 2,607
Interests on bank trust receipts LA REESR 1T 17 51 B9
loans pledged with RMB bank RITE IR AR
deposits Z B (40,946) (19,677)
Other finance costs A & AR 9 (68,348) (52,896)
Share of profit (share of loss DI —REREGIEEE
and impairment) of a jointly %Tﬁ'J(JﬂEEETE
controlled entity KOmE) 239 (5,972)
Profit before taxation B 5 AT A 11 155,451 155,093
Taxation charge FRIE 10 (18,067) (42,642)
Profit for the year F A A 137,384 112,451
Other comprehensive income Hfh2mE
Exchange differences arising BEELZER
on translation =X 33,511 275
Total comprehensive income FRBzEZE
for the year 170,895 112,726
Profit for the year attributable to:  E{EEREA
Owners of the Company RAREEE A 136,647 112,451
Non-controlling interests FEPE A 737 —
137,384 112,451
Annual Report 2010 =B —ZBHE £ 3]
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

et HElaX

For the year ended 31 December 2010

ELZE20104F 12 431 HIFF/E
2010 2009
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
i3 FAET FAET
Total comprehensive income e 48 2 A s
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZINNGIEZE DN 169,778 112,730
Non-controlling interests PR 1,117 (4)
170,895 112,726
Earnings per share BRAF 15
Basic HAK HK11.59 centsi#fll  HK11.53 cents /il
Diluted g HK11.42 centsi#fll  HK11.53 cents /il

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited /88 REBERA T



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MRS R

At 31 December 2010

R2010F 12431 H
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
Kt FET FETT
Non-current assets ERDEE
Property, plant and equipment L E T RS 16 668,263 572,471
Prepaid lease payments for land 37810 & 5008 17 64,631 66,164
Prepaid lease payments for coast &= TaNTHERE 18 11,106 11,512
Goodwill GRS 19 130,224 120,509
Other intangible assets HmEpEE 20 12,498 15,961
Interest in a jointly controlled —%%H? Gl =N
entity Em 21 7,861 6,170
Available for sale investment AHEHERE 35 3,526 —
Other assets EMEE 22 125,613 68,111
Deferred tax assets EETRIBE B 32 1,610 1,190
1,025,332 862,088
Current assets :Ri)l?ﬁ
Inventories FE 23 469,727 425,846
Trade debtors and bills receivable J& U & 5 B 2 & fE Uk = 4% 24 756,361 762,023
Other debtors, deposits and HaEUWERR - Ee Rk
prepayments TETFRIE 24 446,371 579,588
Derivative financial instruments PTEBIE T A 42 44,023 6,057
Entrusted loan ZEENR 35 638,053 —
Prepaid lease payments for land ihﬁi‘ﬁﬁfﬂ‘é?ﬁ( 17 2,880 2,650
Prepaid lease payments for coast /iJ—i‘EﬁT & 18 806 778
Amount due from a jointly JEU —ZK & HT %'J,\E”EZ
controlled entity FKIB 25 - 341
Pledged bank deposits BIHIEITER 26 2,035,865 1,392,355
Bank balances and cash RITER RS 26 380,181 194,716
4,774,267 3,364,354
Current liabilities MR
Trade creditors and bills payable &N & SRR L EMNZE 27 460,611 954,001
Other creditors and accrued E S BRI FE AT
charges E=g33! 28 124,127 139,332
Amount due to a jointly controlled JEff—RELREHIEE 2
entity IR 25 458 —
Derivative financial instruments PTEMET A 42 88,172 3,450
Tax liabilities MIBEE 26,401 18,807
Borrowings — repayable Bk — AR —FR
within one year =g 29 3,341,329 2,052,545
Obligation for put option to BY—XRHMBA
non-controlling shareholder FE1E Il AR 3R 77 /E%
of a subsidiary ZEE 33 5,288 5,103
4,046,386 3,173,238
Net current assets mEEERE 727,881 191,116
Total assets less current liabilities #2&EREEE & 1,753,213 1,058,204
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BB SR
At 31 December 2010
R20104F 12 31 H

2010 2009

NO}‘e HK$°000 HK$’000
Kt FETT FEL
Capital and reserves BEER R
Share capital A&z 30 130,586 115,586
Share premium and other B0 (8 K F Atb
reserves G 1,338,122 899,104
Equity attributable to equity ZAN/NE W S E S TSN
holders of the Company FE(E R 1,468,708 1,014,690
Non-controlling interests FEPE G 9,883 1,527
Total equity R 1,478,591 1,016,217
Non-current liabilities ERBAR
Deferred tax liabilities ELERIAEE 32 20,376 19,187
Borrowings — repayable BR — AR —F1&
over one year B 29 254,246 17,800
274,622 36,987
1,753,213 1,053,204

X2 R2011F3 A 18 HE IR
FL1IR1T0B 2 &AW EHEX WA TN IIE
ERERRE

The consolidated financial statements on pages 51 to 170
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 18 March 2011 and are signed on its behalf by:

Shum Siu Hung Shum Chun, Lawrence

HOH =8
Director Director
EZE =
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

r_\_|/\ == N\ 7/ Z—
%, ? ﬁ/\,m,.\@%

For the year ended 31 December 2010

HZE20104F 12 31 HiFF/Z

Share
capital

Share Special
premium reserve

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
FLACHRREABERE
Statutory Share  Contributed
surplus  Exchange options surplus
reserves reserve reserve  accounts

e

Other  Retained
reserve profits

Total

Non-
controlling
interests

AL %

S

B RBER  HURE BRER ERER MBEGR HARBR  RMRR  REEN EL ]
HK$:000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$1000 HK8'000 HK8'000 HK8'000 HKS'000  HK$'000
AT AT AT FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT FET
(Note j (Note i (Note i
W) (i) (Witii)
THE GROUP 550
At 1 January 2009 H009E1A1R 96,336 293,490 122,085 6,290 51,952 5,663 1,667 - 138,594 716,077 1581 717,608
Prot for te year Emi - - - - - - - -t 1t Y
Other comprehensive income  EAE 2N
for the year - - - - 219 - - - - 19 (@) 215
Total comprehensive income. - £2EiEEE
for the year - - - - 279 - - - 112,451 12,730 @) 112,726
Appropriations Ak - - - 18,477 - - - - (18477) - - -
Dividend paid note 14 BiikahE 1) - - - - - - - - 26%) 26%) = (2,890)
Issue of new shares dueto ~ RAREEMEF
open ofer (note 30) R 0) 19250 173250 - - - - - - - 19250 - 192,500
Transaction costs atirbutable  EfTHRER {2
to issue of new shares RERE - (3721) - - - - - - - [3721) - (8,721)
At 31 December 2009 R2009E12A31R 115,586 463,013 122,085 24,167 52,231 5,663 1,667 - 29678 1,014,690 1521 1,016,217
Prot for te year & - - - - - - - - 1BAT 1364 W 13,3
Other comprehensive income. EMER2ENE
for the year - - - - 33,131 - - - - 33,131 380 33,511
Total comprehensive income - ERZENEAEE
for the year - - - - 33,131 - - - 136,647 169,778 1,117 170,895
Appropriations Ak = - - 3,004 - - - - 3,004 - - -
Disposal of partelinerest ~ HE-FHEAA
in a subsidiary without BhEaETE
losing controlof the KEHHELH
subsidry b = 2 - - 50 - - B SWE T4 40
Dvidend paid fote 14 EARA(KEM) - - - - - - - N O I o (s
Dividend paid to non- BREESERL
controling interests e - - - - - - - - - - 200 (200)
Issue of new shares dueto ~ RAREEMEAHR
open offer (note 30) (K30 15000 252,000 - - - - - - - 267000 - 267000
Transacton coss afirbutable  E/I3REA(E 2325
{0 issue of new shares s - (3,763) - - - - - - - 3763) - (3,769)
At 31 December 2010 H010E12831R 130,586 711,250 122,085 2,1 84,812 5,663 1,667 33,111 351,763 1,468,708 0883 1,478,591
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RAEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2010
ELZE20104F 12 431 HIFF/E

(i)

(ii)

(i)

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the share capital, share premium and capital
redemption reserve of the Group’s former ultimate holding
company whose shares were exchanged for the Company’s
shares and the nominal amount of the share capital issued by
the Company pursuant to a scheme of arrangement dated 14
April 1999.

The statutory surplus reserves represent enterprise development
and general reserve funds appropriated from the profit after
taxation of subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) in accordance with the PRC laws and
regulations.

The Group disposed of 10% equity interest of a subsidiary to an
independent third party without losing control. The other reserve
represents the difference between the consideration received
and the carrying amount of the 10% non-controlling interests
and the exchange reserve related to the disposed 10% equity
content of the subsidiary. The accounting impact of the disposal
are set out in note 2.

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #/E8REBAER AT

(i)

(il)

REE 2555 B IEA S B AT RASER A A
Z B h$mﬁ&§$k@ﬁﬁ EAR
AIRE1999F 4 A14 BT EHERE
BEFT BT MR AR ETARBERND ZEAEZ
R o

%i%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%$$AE%ﬂﬁU¢
B2 ERRRE  RPBERZZHEAR
BRBUREN T DR BEER R — &ﬁﬁﬁ

AEER-—BYF=FHE—RHBER

10% 2 A HE - 1830 S8 B R K42 Il 4 o E@
{1 B HER A (B 52 10% SFHE il 25 1O AR
EfE - KA B H &S % B R 5] 10% B rY
SR ER -  HEZ SR ERRME2 -



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AEETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2010

EZ2010F 12 431 HiEFZE

2010 2009

HK$°000 HK$’000
FAET FAET
(Restated)
(&%)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BERY
Profit before taxation R 35 Al A 155,451 155,093
Adjustments for: THE:
Share of (profit) loss of a jointly {5 — 5 H [E35 4= 22
controlled entity CsH)) E51a (239) 5,972
Other finance costs H{th g & Bk AR 68,348 52,896
Interests on bank trust receipts LA REESR 1T 17 5K 1R 59
loans pledged with RMB bank RITEFEWIRERZ
deposits B 40,946 19,677
Interest income FEUA (51,880) (18,038)
Loss (gain) on change in fair PTEMBIT AR ESRE
value of derivative financial Z BB (FTE)
instruments 82,087 (2,607)
Depreciation of property, plant M - MR REBHETE
and equipment 44,092 41,187
Impairment on goodwill REGERE
recognised — 7,500
Write off of trade debtors JEWE 5 BR K2 8 — 2,256
Write off of other assets A B B 2 M - 4,190
(Gain) loss on disposal and & s % - #es
write-off of property, plant Mgz (as)
and equipment 518 (100) 296
Amortisation of prepaid lease + Hb FE A A & RIS
payments for land 3,600 2,420
Amortisation of prepaid lease TR AR E BB
payments for coast 786 778
Amortisation of other intangible E R A
assets 3,820 3,271
Operating cash flows before EEESEPI LERS
movements in working capital = 346,911 274,891
Increase in inventories FEEN (40,310) (287,748)
Decrease (increase) in trade JEUE 5 BRI e W R
debtors and bills receivable B (35 0) 32,107 (315,254)
Decrease (increase) in other HA AR ~ e RIER
debtors, deposits and SRIERL A (42 h0)
prepayments 138,084 (164,730)
Decrease (increase) in amount FEUR — R AL [E ) B B SR IE
due from a jointly controlled B (380)
entity 341 (22)
(Decrease) increase in trade W E 5 R K E N 2B
creditors and bills payable R )3 an (505,051) 627,486
Increase (decrease) in other EMER R R BT B g
creditors and accrued charges mem4) 20,677 (118,228)
Refund of rental deposit for LPG  RILRMIEERSER
vessel = 10,898
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
meEReRER
For the year ended 31 December 2010

BE20104F 12431 HI1LF&
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FETT
(Restated)
(&%)
Cash (used in) generated from (A EERESE
operations (7,241) 27,293
PRC income tax paid SR B TSR (10,947) (31,468)
NET CASH USED IN BEEBFRASRBHE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES (18,188) (4,175)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BEEE
Interest received EIF B 51,880 18,038
Acquisition of subsidiaries (net e B B B8 2 5] (B 40BR PRS2
of cash and cash equivalents BeEMERRESER)
acquired) 34 (5,958) (19,192)
Purchase of property, plant and  BEEY% - #2N R
equipment (124,834) (18,900)
Realised gain on derivative TEFBTAZEER N
financial instruments 8,223 —
Increase in pledged bank BEEMIRITFRIL N
deposits (609,664) (660,156)
Proceeds from disposals of HEMS  WRRERES
property, plant and equipment 632 138
Increase in other assets HAth & E= 1N (57,502) (68,111)
Purchase of available for sale AR HHERE
investment (3,526) —
Entrusted loan advance to an BT REBIZTEER
entity 35 (681,607) —
NET CASH USED IN BRETEFMAR&SH
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (1,422,356) (748,183)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES Al R ED
Interest paid (Note) BRI E (HaE) (109,397) (74,976)
Borrowings raised EEER 8,272,829 5,180,721
Repayment of borrowings EEER (6,792,334) (4,526,960)
Proceeds from issue of shares BITRMDATE 267,000 192,500
Expenses on issue of shares BITRGH X H (3,763) (8,727)
Dividend paid BEARIRE (11,558) (2,890)
Deposit received from an W —B B =B S
independent third party 28 — 40,000
NET CASH GENERATED FROM RiEEZEELER&BHE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 1,622,777 804,668
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

= A A =~ —1
%/ aiiE PiTi==1 i%
For the year ended 31 December 2010
ELZE20104F 12 431 HIFF/E

2010 2009

HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
(Restated)
(E7)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND R&RERR&ERIZMBEHE
CASH EQUIVALENTS 182,233 52,310
EFFECT OF FOREIGN IERBRFEH ZE
EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES 3,232 456
CASH AND CASH FNRERERRLER
EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 194,716 141,950
CASH AND CASH FXASRERATRLER
EQUIVALENTS AT END OF
THE YEAR 380,181 194,716
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES HRe&RERMLSFHBESRS W
OF CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS
Bank balances and cash RITEBRNIR S 380,181 194,716

Note: The directors reassessed the classification of interest paid in
relation to the bank borrowings and considered that as interest
paid is at cost of obtaining financial resources, classifying
interest paid under financing activities better reflects the
Group’s financing cash flows. The interest paid of approximately
HK$109,294,000 (2009: HK$72,573,000) is now included in
cash flows from financing activities.

BEEETIHECMNRTERANEZHE - I
REBRRENFBEZRIETEERZKA
PIER B E R E D EARE EBE R
RBMAEB s RMERS R EFMELD
109,294,000 7 7T (2009 4F : 72,573,000/8 7T )
B ARBEBESRE ©
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59



60

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AN /s =3
iRE ISR M
For the year ended 31 December 2010
ELZE20104F 12 431 HIFF/E

General

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted company with limited liability and its shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). Its ultimate and immediate holding
company is Uniocean Investments Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The address of
the registered office of the Company is disclosed in the
“Corporate Information” section to the annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
The principal activities of the Group are the sale and
distribution of liquefied petroleum gas (“LPG”) and sale of
electronic products.

The functional currency of the Company is RMB, the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the Group operates. For the purpose of the consolidated
financial statements and convenience of the financial
statements users, the results and financial position of
the Group are expressed in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”),
the presentation currency for the consolidated financial
statements.

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and revised Standards and Interpretations issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”).

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #/E8REBAER AT
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=

AR DR EREERAT 2 BB A
REAAF  RAARGEEEHERS
FERARBRM) LT - ERAR
EEERATASHERERAT - —
MREBELSEMR T2 AR - A2
)2 S 30 2 0 A 2 4E BT A R R R
— B -

AARREERAT - AEMZ LS
A HERND HRILE BRI
FORHETTIES -

ARB 2N EER/ARE - BAKE
REMETERBEREZES - BF
HGEEMBRRMTERBHRERER
EF AKBEZRERBBRRIAB T
(BTDEERBHERRIKEEE) XK
o

ERHITRESITERMGRE
ER((FRMBREEDN )

RAFEE  AKEEEABATHELES
AR A ([EFEGEAE )RR
] RASIERT R a2 kg



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AL vAr 2
ire B ERR N T
For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE2010F 12431 AIEFE

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

HKFRS 2 (Amendments) Group cash-settled share-
based payment transactions

HKFRS 3 (as revised in  Business combinations
2008)

HKAS 27 (as revised in  Consolidated and separate
2008) financial statements

HKAS 39 (Amendments) Eligible hedged items

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs
issued in 2009

Amendments to HKFRS 5 as
part of Improvements to
HKFRSs issued in 2008

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HK(IFRIC)-INT 17 Distributions of non-cash
assets to owners
Presentation of financial
statements — Classification
by the borrower of a
term loan that contains
a repayment on demand

clause

HK-INT 5

Except as described below, the application of the
new and revised Standards and Interpretations in the
current year has had no material effect on the amounts
reported in these consolidated financial statements and/
or disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

ERHITREESITEEMERS
ER((FRMBREEN D2

BEMBREENS25R(BTE)

BRI BB ERE 3% (2008 F
a37)

BB HERE 275 (2008
L))

BASTENE 0% (BAE)

BRNBREEN(BHTE)

b e CHEY)

BhE(ERRRE2ERES)
- RREITH
&5 - 2BELE

SEAEERDAR

A RBUMBRR

AERYREE

R 2009 F Rz BAH
BHEER N

BRI BRLERES
FZETA  fEBR
2008 E R 2 A BE
BREE NS
—Bf

NEFREEETFRAA

Bkl 20 - B
NEBRREREE
B EHERL

BT aE SN - RANFE A FTR] R E

SRR RREY S

REMBHmRMZE

W2 BR/HISEEWBHRERAH
ZRBFEHEAIBEAZE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010

EIZ 20104 12 31 HIEFZE
2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008) Business combinations

HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008) “Business Combinations”
has been applied prospectively from 1 January 2010. Its
application has affected the accounting for the acquisition
of R AMARAR (“ERIFAM”) in the current period.
HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008) requires acquisition related
costs to be accounted for separately from the business
combination. As a result, the Group has recognised
approximately HK$60,000 of such costs as administrative
expense in profit or loss, whereas previously they would
have been accounted for as part of the cost of the
acquisition and additional goodwill of approximately
HK$60,000 would have been recognised.

The adoption of HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008) has
no other impact to the Group for the current or prior
accounting periods.

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2008) Consolidated and
separate financial statements

The application of HKAS 27 (as revised in 2008) has
resulted in changes in the Group’s accounting policies
for changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries of the
Group.

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #/E8REBAER AT

ERHITRESITEEMGERE
ER((FRMBREEN )2

& 8 B3 35 15 HE RN 58 38R (2008 F#E 18
LIDE £: 433

E 7S B 75 3k & ZE Al 55 3 5% (2008 F & 4&
s EB A B A RIERER 2010
F1A1BERAERA - KALELNS
TERNHBKER S ABERAR([E
FAEEDZREEEL BEBUBHREE
B 2 357 (2008 F & & 5] ) i 7& £ W BE
EBEZRARERAGHPOFALEE -
It A E B R B R4 60,0007
TLZBRAKRABITHRE S - miBERE
AR A SO BB A - IR FE IR EESN
P49 60,000 7 7T °

BR 40 78 B 76 9 45 4 B 55 387 (2008 F
KRB ET) 7R S B R S0 oK AT HA 8 A A
WImEAHE -

FEeat RIS 27 4R (2008 FHEERT)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010

EIZ 20104 12 31 HIEFZE
2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2008) Consolidated and
separate financial statements (Continued)

Specifically, the revised Standard has affected the
Group’s accounting policies regarding changes in the
Group’s ownership interests in its subsidiaries that do not
result in loss of control. In prior years, in the absence of
specific requirements in HKFRSs, increases in interests in
existing subsidiaries were treated in the same manner as
the acquisition of subsidiaries, with goodwill or a bargain
purchase gain being recognised, when appropriate; for
decreases in interests in existing subsidiaries that did
not involve a loss of control, the difference between the
consideration received and the adjustment to the non-
controlling interests was recognised in profit or loss.
Under HKAS 27 (as revised in 2008), all such increases
or decreases are dealt with in equity, with no impact on
goodwill or profit or loss.

These changes have been applied prospectively from 1
January 2010 in accordance with the relevant transitional
provisions.

The application of the revised Standard has affected
the accounting for the Group’s disposal of 10% of its
equity interest in Best Resources Base Limited in the
current year. The change in policy has resulted in the
difference of approximately HK$33,111,000 between
the consideration received of HK$40,000,000 and the
non-controlling interests recognised of approximately
HK$7,439,000 being recognised directly in equity, instead
of in profit or loss. Therefore, the change in accounting
policy has resulted in a decrease in the profit for the year
of approximately HK$33,111,000. The cash consideration
received as deposit in 2009 of HK$40,000,000 was
included in cash flows from financing activities.

ERAHMITREEITEEMBRE
ER((FRMBREEN D2

FH G 2ERI5E 27 5% (2008 F#EERT)
RERBIMBERE)

AEME  KETEAZELASEBN
AEBEREMBAREERELE(T
GRAREDE) ZRETEEK c RBESF
B - &7 BMBEmE LML ES IR E
ZIERT - RIRAME R R Z#EE
BRI A RIAMRR T BRI - A
AEENHEBURBRE(ER) o MR
BEMBARZ DR ML ARKEE
B - RIE KB E IR R
ZRNBmPER - REFEGTER
2757 (2008 F&EMERT) - FIAIE IR K
MBS R T EIE - TR EREXNE

Ng
S o
I

Al B EE R IE G BB KA KR R E
FEM 201051 B 1 HAEFRAERMA

FEAREI BN EREERAFE
HEBEBR AR Z210% K #E 2 52 iR
5 o BUR 8B E WA E 40,000,000
78 T B B i SR FE 122 il 4 25 4 7,439,000
B IT 2 =584933,111,00078 7T B R HE
mm B R - FIt - SRR

B & B F W m F & 2> 433,111,000 7
T 2000 F B RIERIESZHERE
40,000,000 B TLat ABVEEE) 2 RS 7

£ °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=AN AT 23

ARE ISR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2010
ELZE20104F 12 431 HIFF/E

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

(Continued)

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2008) Consolidated and
separate financial statements (Continued)

The effect of the changes in accounting policies
described above on the results for the current year
and prior year by line item presented in the condensed
consolidated statement of comprehensive income is as

follows:

AT REETESHISHE
AR ([ ERMBWEER ) (&)

FHert RIS 27 4k (2008 FH#EERT)
RERBUMBEER(E)

EREFRRZEHEAFREFES
FTENBREASE2EKERATIE
E2TDFURNE

2010 2009

HK$’000 HK$’000
TFREIT FET
Decrease in other income from HE —RM B A Rz
disposal of an interest in a (T RIEHIRE) M
subsidiary that does not result in & BCH A W AR A
loss of control 33,111 =
Increase in administrative expenses RUIE R R AN E A&
arising from the recognition of P& 21T
acquisition-related costs when 2 g AN
incurred 60 =
Decrease in profit before taxation for  E RIER £ AT i 13 2
the year 33,171 —
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=AN AT 23

ARE ISR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2010
ELZE20104F 12 431 HIFF/E

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2008) Consolidated and
separate financial statements (Continued)

The effect of changes in accounting policies described
above on the Group’s basis and dilutive earnings per
share is as follows:

ERHIIREETFEEMBEE
E((HFBMEBREEN ) (&)

FHaaatERI% 27 4k (2008 FHEEAT)

RERBIUMBEER(E)
bRt BRZESHAEEZERE

ARESRN ZEMT

2010 2009

HK cents HK cents
M Vel
Basic earnings per share before FERTBOREBEE 2
adjustments arising from changes AR ERER
in accounting policies 27 14.40 11.53
Adjustment arising from changes in SHBRREFELZ
accounting policies T (2.81) —
Reported basic earnings per share ERERELRZF 11.59 11.53
Diluted earnings per share before BETHREHELE L
adjustments arising from changes FHERFRES
in accounting policies & 14.19 11.53
Adjustment arising from changes in BEBREBELE S
accounting policies T (2.77) -
Reported diluted earnings per share 2 ®EREFEF 11.42 11.53
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4= A\ H

wIN [ /\ﬁﬁﬂ%i&% MqL%_I\I_

For the year ended 31 December 2010

EIZ 20104 12 31 HIEFZE
2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

Amendment to HKAS 17 Leases

As part of Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2009,
HKAS 17 “Leases” has been amended in relation to the
classification of leasehold land. Before the amendment to
HKAS 17, the Group was required to classify leasehold
land as operating leases and to present it as prepaid
lease payments in the condensed consolidated statement
of financial position. The amendment to HKAS 17 has
removed such a requirement. Instead, the amendment
requires the classification of leasehold land to be based
on the general principles set out in HKAS 17, that is,
whether or not substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of a leased asset have been
transferred to the lessee.

In accordance with the transitional provisions set out in
the amendment to HKAS 17, the Group has reassessed
the classification of unexpired leasehold land at 1
January 2010 based on information that existed at the
inception of the leases. In the opinion of the directors
of the Company, no reclassification is required because
none of the leasehold land qualifies for finance lease
classification. Hence, the adoption of the amendment to
HKAS 17 has had no material effect on the condensed
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
current or prior accounting periods.

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #/E8REBAER AT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010

EIZ 20104 12 31 HIEFZE
2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of financial
statements — Classification by the borrower of a
term loan that contains a repayment on demand
clause

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 “Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause”
(“HK INT 5”) clarifies that term loans that include a
clause that gives the lender the unconditional right to call
the loans at any time (“repayment on demand clause”)
should be classified by the borrower as current liabilities.
The Group has applied HK INT 5 for the first time in
the current year. Hong Kong Interpretation 5 requires
retrospective application.

The application of HK INT 5 has had no impact on the
reported profit or loss for the current and prior years.

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised Standards and Interpretations that have been
issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRSs (Amendments)  Improvements to HKFRSs
2010’
HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Disclosures — Transfers of
financial assets®
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments®
HKAS 12 (Amendments) Deferred tax: Recovery of
underlying assets®
HKAS 24 (as revised in  Related party disclosures®
2009)
HKAS 32 (Amendments) Classification of rights issues’
HK(FRIC) — INT 14 Prepayments of a minimum
(Amendments) funding requirement®
HK(IFRIC) — INT 19 Extinguishing financial liabilities
with equity instruments?
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4= A\ H

w3 /\ﬁﬂ?ﬂ%i&% BﬁL%_I\I_

For the year ended 31 December 2010

EIZ 20104 12 31 HIEFZE
2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July

2010 or 1 January 2011, as appropriate.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2010.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2011.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2012.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2011.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
February 2010.

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (as issued in November
2009) introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments” (as revised in November 2010) adds
requirements for financial liabilities and for derecognition.

Under HKFRS 9, all recognised financial assets that are
within the scope of HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement” are subsequently
measured at either amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding are generally
measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair values at the end
of subsequent accounting periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2010

EIZ 20104 12 31 HIEFZE
2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the financial year ending 31
December 2013. Based on the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities as at 31 December 2010, the
directors anticipate that the application of the new
standard will affect the measurement and classification of
the Group’s available for sale investment and entrusted
loan with an embedded option.

The application of the other new and revised standards
and interpretations issued but not yet effective is not
expected to have a material effect.

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis except for
derivative financial instruments, which are measured at
fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set
out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the HKICPA.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010

ELZE20104F 12 431 HIFF/E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is
achieved where the Company has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income from the effective date of acquisition.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interest in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-
controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. Prior to 1
January 2010, losses applicable to the non-controlling
interests in excess of the non-controlling interests in the
subsidiary’s equity were allocated against the interests of
the Group except to the extent that the non-controlling
interests had a binding obligation and were able to make
an additional investment to cover the losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NN bl

For the year ended 31 December 2010

ELZE20104F 12 431 HIFF/E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries on or after 1 January 2010

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
and any non-controlling interests. Where certain assets
of the subsidiary are measured at revalued amounts or
fair values and the related cumulative gain or loss has
been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity, the amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity are accounted for as if the Company had directly
disposed of the related assets (i.e. reclassified to profit or
loss or transferred directly to retained earnings). The fair
value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting
under HKAS 39 “Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement” or, when applicable, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or a jointly
controlled entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NN bl

For the year ended 31 December 2010

ELZE20104F 12 431 HIFF/E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries prior to 1 January 2010

Increases in interests in existing subsidiaries were treated
in the same manner as the acquisition of subsidiaries,
with goodwill or a bargain purchase gain being
recognised where appropriate. For decreases in interests
in subsidiaries, regardless of whether the disposals would
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries,
the difference between the consideration received and
the adjustment to the non-controlling interests was
recognised in profit or loss.

Business combinations

Business combinations that took place on or after 1
January 2010

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010
ELZE20104F 12 431 HIFF/E

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Business combinations that took place on or after 1
January 2010 (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value at the acquisition date, except that:

deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or
assets related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee
Benefits” respectively;

liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment transactions of the acquiree or the
replacement of an acquiree’s share-based payment
transactions with share-based payment transactions
of the Group are measured in accordance with
HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment” at the acquisition
date; and

assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations” are measured in accordance with that
Standard.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010

ELZE20104F 12 431 HIFF/E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’'s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation
may be initially measured either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on
a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-
controlling interests are measured at their fair value
or another measurement basis required by another
Standard.

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #/E8REBAER AT

EEW B (S
 TETIED

BEENMEERAE RNREBEEZE
M SEEHIER SR - RIREEAERE
ZHRKBEREWMB)ZAFEZLR
0 R FT U T 58 ) E B PR AT G
BEERERBREMZFERMBLZE
BRTE o MEAEHTER - AREZA
BB B E EATAE 2 AT E R B ERKE
BE 2 FREa N SR RE R
BEZEMAFZHRESEARMES
MERA 2 REBEER (WA ) ZAF
B2EM - AZEERRESANERR
= BRI  -

BEEES 2 Em ANERFERGA
BRI ERFEEZ I
LI R Ib 2 /NS R I eyl b ]
WEBEE R HRFEEND RS BEL
PIFtE - A EEER T BRI ZMIEL
EIE - Rt 2 RIS TIRA R
FEIZ-—FHEANRE2S BT EE
HEEHE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010

ELZE20104F 12 431 HIFF/E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
during the measurement period (i.e. the period after
acquisition date during which provisional amounts
may be adjusted, which does not exceed one year), or
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect
new information obtained about facts and circumstances
that existed as of the acquisition date that, if known,
would have affected the amounts recognised as of that
date.

Business combinations that took place prior to 1
January 2010

Acquisitions of businesses were accounted for using
the purchase method. The cost of the acquisition was
measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the
date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or
assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree, plus any costs
directly attributable to the business combination. The
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities that met the relevant conditions for recognition
were generally recognised at their fair value at the
acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition was recognised as an
asset and initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the cost of the acquisition over the Group’s interest in the
recognised amounts of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities recognised. If, after assessment,
the Group’s interest in the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities exceeded the cost of the acquisition, the excess
was recognised immediately in profit or loss.

EEWHBRE ()
I8 0 (27)

HREHEEZZEHMIRDRTRES
etz et EE - MAKERTIKR
STRERIECEEZREELHE ° %
FEFToRANENRNYE R #%R
THRB—FrHE - ZHEATAERY
ELR)NEHRAE  BRBIEE
HEBE - URBRESEHERNEERHD
FHEZERBRZHER - MHHEZ
FEH  HerERNERER 2R -

F2010F 15 1 AGii&fTE #% 2 H

WEXBERBEARIER - WERAX
BAKERZHE RRBRKEER
ZHIEMBENEE EEIEAED
BE ARBOTRATANQFER
B AMEHAHFEREENEMAMKRR
matE - WEBENABFNEE AfF
RARAE  BFRFAEBEERGERSE - A
— RN B B E A FERER

B mELENEE - 5 REXABER
AEEEBEAABHNEE BERKIRA
BEATEFENER  NHEIAREE
WHRERBKATE - WEEFHFE
% AKBEREREEENAHDE
E - BERIRBENRFEFENE
s A - Rl B8 = FR AN B HE AR

Annual Report 2010 —Z—ZF F

75



76

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010

ELZE20104F 12 431 HIFF/E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Business combinations that took place prior to 1
January 2010 (Continued)

The minority interest in the acquiree was initially
measured at the minority interest’s proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of the assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the acquiree.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses and is
presented separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition of a subsidiary is allocated to each
of the relevant cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating
unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication
that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on
an acquisition in a financial year, the cash-generating
unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that financial year. When
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is
less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment
loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to the other
assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss
for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss.
An impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010

ELZE20104F 12 431 HIFF/E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included
in the determination of the amount of profit or loss on
disposal.

Jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment
of a separate entity in which venturers have joint control
over the economic activity of the entity are referred to as
jointly controlled entities.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled
entities are incorporated in the consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, investments in jointly
controlled entities are carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost as adjusted for
post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the
net assets of the jointly controlled entities, less any
identified impairment loss. When the Group’s share of
losses of a jointly controlled entity equals or exceeds
its interest in that jointly controlled entity, the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. An
additional share of losses is provided for and a liability is
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of that jointly controlled entity.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities of the jointly controlled entity recognised at the
date of acquisition is recognised as goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010

ELZE20104F 12 431 HIFF/E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Jointly controlled entities (Continued)

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When a group entity transacts with its jointly controlled
entity, profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the jointly controlled entity are recognised in the
Group’ consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the jointly controlled entity that are
not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received and receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods sold in the normal course
of business, less discounts, sales related taxes, returns
and allowances.

Revenue from sales of goods are recognised when goods
are delivered and title has passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial assets to that
asset’s net carrying amount.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010

ELZE20104F 12 431 HIFF/E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purpose other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation and amortisation are provided to write off
the cost of items of property, plant and equipment, other
than construction in progress, over their estimated useful
lives and after taking into account of their estimated
residual value, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for
on a prospective basis.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production
or administrative purposes. Construction in progress
is carried at cost less any recognised impairment loss.
Construction in progress is classified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of
these assets, on the same basis as other property, plant
and equipment, commences when the assets are ready
for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010

ELZE20104F 12 431 HIFF/E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
identified and recognised separately from goodwill and
are initially recognised at their fair value at the acquisition
date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with
finite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives
is provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives (see the accounting policy in respect of
impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
below).

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. If the recoverable amount of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as
an expense immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

%

=Nyl b

For the year ended 31 December 2010

ELZE20104F 12 431 HIFF/E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above) (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-
out method.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the year in which
they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010

ELZE20104F 12 431 HIFF/E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
operations recorded at the functional currency are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of the reporting period, and their income
and expenses are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the year, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
(the exchange reserve). Such exchange differences are
recognised in profit or loss in the year in which the
foreign operation is disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
on or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and
liabilities of that foreign operation and translated at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in
the exchange reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010

ELZE20104F 12 431 HIFF/E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised
as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is
recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a
straight-line basis, except where another systematic
basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010

ELZE20104F 12 431 HIFF/E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leasing (Continued)
Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases, in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically,
the minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative fair
values of the leasehold interests in the land element
and building element of the lease at the inception of the
lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is amortised over the lease term on a
straight-line basis.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
because it excludes items of income or expenses that
are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items of income or expenses that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010

ELZE20104F 12 431 HIFF/E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010

ELZE20104F 12 431 HIFF/E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is recognised
in profit or loss, except when it relates to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

Retirement benefit cost

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit scheme
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are charged
as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit
or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010

ELZE20104F 12 431 HIFF/E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets except for derivative financial
instruments (see policy below) are classified as loans
and receivables and available for sale financial assets.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees on points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables including bank balances, pledged
bank deposits, trade debtors, bills receivable, other
debtors and deposits, loan receivable and amount due
from a jointly controlled entity are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment of financial assets below).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010

ELZE20104F 12 431 HIFF/E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

Available for sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated or not classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables
or held to maturity investments. The Group designated its
equity investments acquired for long term investments as
available for sale financial assets.

For available for sale equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives
that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of such
unquoted equity instruments, they are measured at cost
less any identified impairment losses at the end of the
reporting period (see accounting policy on impairment of
financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of the reporting period. Financial assets are
impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future
cash flows of the financial assets have been impacted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010

ELZE20104F 12 431 HIFF/E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
debtors and bills receivables, assets that are assessed
not to be impaired individually are subsequently assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence
of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group’s past experience of collecting payments
and observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there
is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the original effective interest
rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent
periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010

ELZE20104F 12 431 HIFF/E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade debtors and other debtors, where
the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the group after deducting
all of its liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010

ELZE20104F 12 431 HIFF/E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (other than derivative financial liabilities)
including trade creditors, bills payable, other creditors
and accrued charges and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
ELZE20104F 12 431 HIFF/E

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives (including embedded derivatives which are
not closely related to the host contracts) that are not
designated as hedging instrument are classified as held
for trading.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date the derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end
of the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss immediately.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts
are treated as separate derivatives when their risks and
characteristics are not closely related to those of the
host contracts and the host contracts are not measured
at fair value.

If embedded derivatives relate to equity instruments that
do not have a quoted market price in an active market
and where the fair value cannot reliably measured,
the embedded derivative is measured at cost less any
identified impairment losses at the end of the reporting
period. On initial recognition, the fair value of the
embedded derivative is the difference between the fair
value of the hybrid instrument and the fair value of the
host contract.
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ELZE20104F 12 431 HIFF/E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial
assets are transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial assets. On derecognition of a financial asset,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees after 7 November
2002 and vested after 1 January 2005

The fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of share options granted at the
grant date is expensed on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity
(share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected
to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss with a corresponding adjustments to
share options reserve.
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ELZE20104F 12 431 HIFF/E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

Share options granted to employees after 7 November
2002 and vested after 1 January 2005 (Continued)

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in the share option reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in the share option reserve will be transferred
to retained profits.

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the management are
required to make estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.
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EIZ 20104 12 31 HIEFZE
4. Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

(Continued)

Estimated impairment of goodwill and intangible
assets

Determining whether goodwill and intangible assets
relating to the sale and distribution of LPG and acquired
in a business combination are impaired requires
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
units to which the goodwill and intangible assets have
been allocated. The value in use calculation requires
the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected
to arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
The discount rate represents the rate that reflects the
current market assessment of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the future
cash flow estimates have not been adjusted. Where
the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a
material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December
2010, the carrying amounts of goodwill and intangible
assets are approximately HK$130,224,000 and
HK$12,498,000 respectively (2009: HK$120,509,000 and
HK$15,961,000). Details of the goodwill and intangible
assets are disclosed in notes 19 and 20 respectively.

Income taxes

As at 31 December 2010, a deferred tax asset of
approximately HK$1,610,000 (2009: HK$1,190,000) in
relation to unused tax losses has been recognised in
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position.
The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends
on whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future. In cases
where the actual future profits generated are less than
expected, a material reversal of deferred tax assets may
arise, which would be recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for the year in which
such a reversal takes place. Unused tax losses not
recognised amounted to approximately HK$286,428,000
(2009: HK$186,453,000) and are disclosed in note 32.
However, unused tax losses not recognised may be
utilised if the actual future profits generated are more
than expected.
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EIZ 20104 12 31 HIEFZE
5. Capital Risk Management and Financial

Instruments
Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt,
which includes the borrowings as disclosed in note 29,
and equity attributable to equity holders of the Company,
comprising issued capital and retained profits.

The management of the Group reviews the capital
structure on a continuous basis taking into account the
cost of capital and the risk associated with the capital.
The Group will balance its overall capital structure
through new share issues, payment of dividends and the
raise of bank borrowings or the repayment of the existing
bank borrowings.

The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged during
the year.

Categories of financial instruments

RERBRETERMBIA

RERRER

AEBZERNERRRASEASE
BREAASESIALE  ABEBRES
FHABEERARARRTRKEZAE
P o

AEEEARBRER(BRERHE
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ERZARFERNESRE - A5E
B BBEITR - IS R INERTT
ERRERREZRITETAFEEE
BEALE -

FRAREERBRBEARTIE

MBEIAZERN

2010 2009

HK$’000 HK$’000
F#T FET
Financial assets HEEE
Loans and receivables (including EREERFIE(BERE
cash and cash equivalents) NERREEER) 3,853,107 2,479,270
Available for sale investment AR ERE 3,526 —
Derivative financial instruments PTEBETA 44,023 6,057
Financial liabilities HMBAR
Amortised cost HSH AR 4,152,631 3,137,152
Derivative financial instruments PTEMBIA 88,172 3,450
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EIZ 20104 12 31 HIEFZE
5. Capital Risk Management and Financial

Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include bank
balances, pledged bank deposits, entrusted loan,
borrowings, trade debtors, bills receivable, other debtors,
deposits, the call option, trade creditors and bills
payable, other creditors and foreign exchange forward
contracts. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Market risk

(i) Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign
currency sales and purchases, which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk. Certain trade
debtors, bank balances and cash, pledged bank
deposits, trade creditors and bills payable and
borrowings of the Group are denominated in foreign
currencies as disclosed in notes 24, 26, 27 and 29
respectively. Approximately 19% (2009: 18%) of the
Group’s sales are denominated in currencies other
than the functional currency of the group entities
making the sale, whilst almost 11% (2009: 52%) of
costs are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the group entity’s functional
currency.
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5. Capital Risk Management and Financial 5. BXRAREERMEBEIAZ)
Instruments (Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies MEREEEEERBE(Z)
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued) mEmEE(E)
(i) Currency risk (Continued) () EEEER(E)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign REEINES| Bz B EERE
currency denominated monetary assets and BEBERHREEBHACERmAERT ¢
monetary liabilities at the reporting date are as
follows:

Assets Liabilities
wE R
2010 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET T FET TETT
usSD ey 88,823 425,473 1,491,533 2,631,738
RMB AR 1,133,657 — - —
During the financial years, the management has RAHEE  SEBECRITH M
entered into several foreign currency forward G 35 HE A 49 BURHE &5 ¥ R B 2 B2
contracts to reduce the exposure of currency 2 A2010F12 310 » "EE
risk. As at 31 December 2010, the Group has HAE B L E S RN 425,378,000
outstanding foreign currency forward contracts Tt (20094 : 170,837,000 7T ) 2
and interest rate swap contracts with an aggregate ARG E A RBINEIZHS 4 R
notional amount of USD425,378,000 (2009: RIEHAA 4] o PTG T B Y 315
USD170,837,000) in relation to RMB. The details of ERMIEE 42 3 5E o
the derivative financial instruments are disclosed in

note 42.
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5t

Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(1)

Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

Since the exchange rate of HKD is pegged with
USD, the currency risk is mainly arising from
exchange USD against RMB and RMB against USD.
The following table details the Group’s sensitivity
to a 5% increase and decrease in USD against
RMB and a 5% increase and decrease in the
RMB/USD forward exchange rate. 5% represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in the RMB/USD exchange rate and
the RMB/USD forward exchange rate. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and foreign currency
forward contracts and adjusts their translation at the
year end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates
or their fair value at the year end for a 5% change
in forward exchange rate. A positive number below
indicates an increase in post-tax profit where RMB
strengthen 5% against USD. For a 5% weakening of
RMB against the relevant currency, there would be
an equal and opposite impact on the profit and the
balances below would be negative.
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5. Capital Risk Management and Financial EFRREERMBEIAZ)
Instruments (Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies HERBEEEERBEZ)
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued) mEmEE ()
(i) Currency risk (Continued) () EEE(E)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued) BRE DT (&)
USD impact RMB impact
ERXRE ARBRE
2010 2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’°000 HK$’000
F#ETT FET F#T FET
Increase (decrease) in £ A% A& 41
profit for the year CRA) (BTaE)
(Note)
— monetary assets — BE®EER
and liabilities af& 66,641 94,034 58,162 -
— derivative financial — TS
instruments THA (112,141) (54,620) - —

Note: This is mainly attributable to the exposure
outstanding on bank balances, receivables, payables
and borrowings denominated in USD or RMB and
derivative financial instruments as at year end.
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EIZ 20104 12 31 HIEFZE
5. Capital Risk Management and Financial

Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s bank loans have exposure to cash
flow interest rate risk due to the fluctuation of the
prevailing market interest rate on variable-rate bank
loans which charge interest at prevailing market
rates.

In addition, the Group has exposure to fair value
interest rate risk through the impact of the rate
changes on pledged bank deposits and borrowings
which are at fixed interest rates. The Group’s fair
value interest rate risk relates primarily to fixed-
rate borrowings (see note 29 for details of these
borrowings) and derivative financial instruments
including pay fixed and receive floating interest rate
swaps. The purpose of the Group to enter interest
rate swap is to reduce the cash flow interest
rate risk but does not fulfill the hedge accounting
requirement.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on
financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk
management section of this note. The Group cash
flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on
the fluctuation of LIBOR arising from the Group’s
variable-rate borrowings and set off by the derivative
financial instruments including pay fixed and receive
floating interest rate swaps.
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5t

Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest rates
for variable-rate borrowings, excluding the exposure
from the bank borrowings offset by the derivative
financial instruments including pay fixed and
received floating interest rate swaps. The analysis
is prepared assuming the amount of outstanding
balances at the end of the reporting period was
outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point
increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December
2010 would decrease/increase by HK$6,732,000
(2009: HK$2,335,000). This is mainly attributable
to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its
variable-rate bank borrowings, excluding the
exposure from the bank borrowings offset by the
derivative financial instruments including pay fixed
and received floating interest rate swaps.
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EIZ 20104 12 31 HIEFZE
5. Capital Risk Management and Financial

Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2010, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by
the counterparties is arising from the carrying amount
of the respective recognised financial assets as stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position. The
Group has significant concentration risk on certain
customers and the loan advance to an entity. As at 31
December 2010, two (2009: three) customers amounted
approximately HK$599,868,000 (2009: HK$582,315,000)
and comprised around 80% (2009: 76%) of the Group’s
trade debtors. In order to minimise the credit risk,
the management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debtors, other debtors and
deposits at the end of the reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. The Group has provided a loan advance to an
entity and the details are set out in note 35. The loan
advance is deposited into a designated bank and there
are restrictions in the usage of the loan advance agreed
by the Group and the borrower. The management of
the Group has closely monitored the usage of the loan
by the borrower. The loan advance is pledged by 95%
equity interest of Et¥TaEIREEAR QA (“BEFTEEIR”). In
this regard, the directors of the Company consider that
the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ranking
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.
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EARREEREAEENEERR
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ERBEEFNRANRT  WRDHEEZ
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010

EIZ 20104 12 31 HIEFZE
5. Capital Risk Management and Financial

Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors the
utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures compliance
with loan covenants.

As at 31 December 2010, the Group has undrawn
short term borrowing facilities with floating rate
amounting to approximately HK$3,003,443,000 (2009:
HK$2,467,169,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its derivatives (excluding the call
option) and non-derivative financial liabilities. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date
on which the Group can be required to pay. The table
includes both interest and principal cash flows. The total
undiscounted cash flows adjustment column represents
the possible future cash flows attributable to the
instrument included in the maturity analysis which are not
included in the carrying amount of the financial liabilities
on the end of the reporting period.

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #/E8REBAER AT
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fERRL) »

MR2010F 12 A31 H » ANEE Z AR
5 H R B g 55 E 4 A& 3,003,443,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2010

EZ2010F 12 431 HiEFZE

5. Capital Risk Management and Financial

Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity and interest risk table

2010 #2010 %
Non-derivative FTETR
Trade creditors and ENESRTR
bills payable eSS
Other creditors EiEAER
Fixed interest rates TRER
borrowings
Variable interest rate ZEER
borrowings

Derivatives — net fTETIR — #8

settlement ek

Foreign currency HMNEEBAH
forward contracts it
outflow

Cross currency interest XX EHF| &
rate swap/interest B/ FI=
rate swap (inflow) FEHORA)
outflow i

5. RXRREEBERMBIAE

MERREZARRBE(Z)

ROELmEE(E)
REBE T RFF RS R

Carrying

Weighted amount
average at 31
effective December
interest 2010
rate Within Over  2yearsto #2010
migFEy 1 year 1 year 5 years 128318
ERfIE 1§/ 1§00 E 2FF5F ZIREE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET FET FET FET

= 460,605 = 6 460,611 460,611

= 98,852 4,279 20,860 123,991 123,991

2.52% 772,235 30,984 271,994 1,075,213 1,056,848
1.99% 1,957,706 503,086 111,974 2,572,766 2,538,727
3,289,398 538,349 404,834 4,232,581 4,180,177

8,299 13,782 2,510 24,591 24,591

(10,033) 64,226 12,571 66,764 63,112

(1,734) 78,008 15,081 91,355 87,703
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2010

BE2010F 12431 AIEFE
5. Capital Risk Management and Financial 5. BFRAREERMBEIAE)
Instruments (Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies HERBEEEERBEZ)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) RBELRRE(E)
Liquidity and interest risk table (Continued) HEE R RFIERERSF (E)
Carrying
Weighted amount
average at 31
effective December
interest 2009
rate Within Over 2 years to 12009
NEFY 1 year 1 year 5 years Total 12A31H
ERF= 1ER 1ENE 2EELF ek ZREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET AT FET TET FET
2009 R 2009
Non-derivative FITETR
Trade creditors and ENEZRTR
bills payable EREE - 954,001 = - 954,001 954,001
Other creditors H it e AR K - 139,332 = = 139,332 139,332
Fixed interest rates EBET
borrowings 1.88% 1,528,568 - - 1,628,568 1,611,037
Variable interest rate FEER
borrowings 2.96% 544,608 5,175 13,427 563,210 559,308
3,166,509 5,175 13,427 3,185,111 3,163,678
Derivatives — gross fTETER - #8
settlement ks
Foreign currency SN B
forward contracts aH
— inflow - R"A (1,302,344 = = (1,302,344) (1,302,344)
— outflow — il 1,304,951 - - 1,304,951 1,304,951
2,607 - - 2,607 2,607
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2010

EIZ 20104 12 31 HIEFZE
5. Capital Risk Management and Financial

Instruments (Continued)

Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
(excluding derivative instruments) is determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models
based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices
from observable current market transactions and dealer
quotes for similar instruments.

The fair values of foreign currency forward contracts are
determined based on discounted cash flow analysis using
quoted forward exchange rates and applicable yield curve
matching the maturities of the contracts. The fair values
of cross currency interest rate swap are determined
based on the quoted forward exchange rates and yield
curves of relevant interest rates matching the maturities
of the contracts.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.

All the financial assets measured at fair value are
grouped into Level 2 financial assets based on the
degree to which the fair value is observable, Level 2 fair
value measurements are those derived from inputs other
than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices).

BREXRBREERMBIAE)

AFE

MBEBERMBRETREITETR)
ZRFEDREAREEBR - RHFA
ARBRTTHERSMARTARRRE
ZHBRRESREDTETE o

SNSRI W2 X ETRRA R HRE
HIE = R S MBI HHIRMET 2 @R E
EHBRZMRBASREINERE - XX
BEHN R 87 N ETRATHRE HE
RRES DI HRBN 2 HEF RZE

EHRETE -

EERRREBERANGRAMBHRRSD
MRV BEERYHABZRHMESR
HAFERE -

MERMAVEMEZCHBEENEA
FEZABREEGRRE2EMBE
EREMBGEECAVFEFERA
HEIN ZBEERABZABEHAHK
B A REEDGIER)kRE A
REER) 28I -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AL vAr 2
ire B ERR N T
For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE2010F 12431 AIEFE

6. Revenue

Revenue represents the fair value of amounts received
and receivable for goods sold by the Group to outside
customers, less discount, related taxes and returns and
allowances, and rental income of LPG bottles for the
year, and is analysed as follows:

A

WA ERFRAAEERINAEFPLESR
m R R EWE @ ORI - B
MIA MR E ROFRL) R E &AL Rl
AZRFE - EDHIT :

2010 2009

HK$°000 HK$°000
FRET F&T
Sale and distribution of LPG SHE RS HBIER 7,216,004 5,713,597
Sale of electronic products HESTEM 1,245,421 760,497
Rental of LPG bottles HERERIA 16,290 9,025
8,477,715 6,483,119

7. Segment Information 7SHEEH

Information reported to the Chairman of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker (“CODM?”), for
the purpose of resources allocation and assessment of
segment performance focuses on nature and location
of the goods being sold. These revenue streams and
the basis of the internal reports about components of
the Group are regularly reviewed by the CODM in order
to allocate resources to segments and to assess their
performance. The directors have changed the name of
the operating segments from “international nature LPG
business” and “PRC nature LPG business” to “sales
and distribution of LPG through Zhuhai terminal and in
the international market” and “sales and distribution of
LPG through retail networks in the PRC and Macau”
respectively. The directors considered that the current
terms better describe their operating segments. There is
no redesignation of the Group’s operating segments as
compared with the operating segments disclosed in the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2009.

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited /88 REBERA T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R R

For the year ended 31 December 2010

HZE2010F 1231 HIFFZE
7. Segment Information (Continued) 7. REEHE)

Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by reportable segment.

For the year ended 31 December 2010

SR AR KRR

NTRIZZE
EEDH ©

DB D 2 AEEBAR

#HF2010F 125 31 HILEF

Sales and
distribution Sales and
of LPG through distribution
Zhuhai terminal of LPG through
and in the retail networks
I EGETE] in the PRC
market and Macau Sale of
EBH BB Ea&PER electronic
REERSS AMSE products
HERSSH ARABER HEET Consolidated
v 114 4 BRI ER ]
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Segment revenue LEELON 5,904,895 1,327,399 1,245,421 8,477,715
Segment profit AEEH 216,356 50,537 77,843 344,736
Interest income on pledged RMB B EMARMRi775
bank deposits ZHBIMA 47,088
Other interest income HipF 8 A 4,792
Central administration costs and ~ RREEHRARES
directors’ salaries e (49,784)
Changes in fair values of derivative #T4B%TAATE
financial instruments LBE (82,087)
Interests on bank trust receipts loans JAA R BT 2UE M5
pledged with RMB bank deposits {1+t 4R 2518 (40,946)
Other finance costs HivgERA (68,348)
Profit before taxation BRBERD &R 155,451
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2010

BE2010F 12431 AIEFE
7. Segment Information (Continued) 7. HEBEHE)
Segment revenues and results (Continued) SHEMAREEZ)
For the year ended 31 December 2009 EFE2009F 12531 HILFE
Sales and
distribution Sales and
of LPG through distribution
Zhuhai terminal of LPG through
and in the retail networks
international in the PRC
market and Macau Sale of
BRI BB BBTER electronic
REERTS BFTE products
HERDH BEHER HEET Consolidated
itle PHERIER Em o)
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FE8T FET FET
Segment revenue ESTION 5,019,762 702,860 760,497 6,483,119
Segment profit DR 159,123 35,817 36,624 231,564
Interest income on pledged RMB B AE 17775
bank deposits ZHBMA 17,190
Other interest income EiFIS WA 848
Central administration costs and ~ HREERARES
directors’ salaries Fe (24,543)
Changes in fair values of derivative #7148 I AATE
financial instruments L& 2,607
Interests on bank trust receipts loans JAA RSB T 2L e 1T
pledged with RMB bank deposits £l ER 2 718 (19,677)
Other finance costs EiRERA (62,896)
Profit before taxation BRBRDE R 155,093
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For the year ended 31 December 2010

ELZE20104F 12 431 HIFF/E
7. Segment Information (Continued)

Segment revenues and results (Continued)

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described
in note 3. All of the segment revenue reported above
is from external customers. Segment profit represents
the profit earned by each segment without allocation
of central administration costs and directors’ salaries,
changes in fair values of derivative financial instruments,
interests income on pledged RMB bank deposits, other
interest income, interests on bank trust receipts loans
pledged with RMB bank deposits and other finance
costs.

Segment assets and liability

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and
liabilities by operating segment:

Segment assets

SWEHE)
DHBARER(E)

E/A PG BREMTIMAZ A
SESHRER - EXAERZIAE
DEWABRBINBERF - 2
EDERIETFREEXRARESH
T TAEMBIARYEZHRE BER
BARBRITERZHABLEA - EAF
BWA -~ RARBRITEFEMAIRT
= REWCRAE SR A B K EL At B B A AN A Y
FRER R A -

AHRERAR

AT RIZEZENRED CAKBEER
BEN

DEEE

2010 2009

HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FETT
Sales and distribution of LPG F RGNS REBE TS
through Zhuhai terminal and in the HERDHRER
international market 1,561,433 1,485,223
Sales and distribution of LPG through i@ B KB P9 = & 4845 1
retail networks in the PRC and ERDHERIER
Macau 489,197 339,895
Sale of electronic products HESTEm 513,066 737,843
Total segment assets BB E 2,563,696 2,562,961
Available for sale investment Al EERE 3,526 =
Deferred tax assets RIEFIBE E 1,610 1,190
Bank balances and cash RITEHR MRS 380,181 194,716
Pledged bank deposits BHEBEITER 2,035,865 1,392,355
Derivative financial instruments PTG T A 44,023 6,057
Entrusted loan EHEEXR 638,053 =
Other unallocated assets EMADEEEE 132,645 69,163
Consolidated assets HEBE 5,799,599 4,226,442
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2010

BE2010F 12431 AIEFE
7. Segment Information (Continued) 7. HEIHEHE)
Segment liabilities SHEAE
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THET
Sales and distribution of LPG FRIEETE KRR TIS
through Zhuhai terminal and in the EE RS HRIES
international market 496,540 1,010,859
Sales and distribution of LPG through :#:BhE &IBFIZEMKE
retail networks in the PRC and ME RS IRILE
Macau 33,802 70,575
Sale of electronic products HEETEmM 20,247 11,153
Total segment liabilities ROFEEE 550,589 1,092,587
Derivative financial instruments PTHEMBT A 88,172 3,450
Tax liabilities HBEAE 26,401 18,807
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIABE 20,376 19,187
Borrowings B3R 3,595,575 2,070,345
Other unallocated liabilities Hib RDBLRE 39,895 5,849
Consolidated liabilities SEAaE 4,321,008 3,210,225
For the purposes of monitoring segment performances MEIENERBE RS EZEERDE M
and allocating resources between segments: =
U all assets are allocated to reportable segments . MEBRENPI AR, BE(ATHE
(other than available for sale investment, deferred ERmE - EEMBEBEE 51746
tax assets, bank balances and cash, pledged bank B RES - BE\ETESR T4
deposits, derivative financial instruments, entrusted MBIA  ZREERRETHME
loan and certain other assets, certain other E ETEMEKREZRLETETE
receivables and certain fixed assets); and BEBI) &
° all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments . MEBEIRE A2 R E(ENEE
(other than current and deferred tax liabilities, bank EERIBEE « $BITEF - T4
borrowings, derivative financial instruments and BT ARETHMBERZBRIN) o

certain other payables).
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
ELE 20104 12 531 HIFFE
7. Segment Information (Continued) 7. REEHE)

Other segment information Htt 3 EEHE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HF2010F 12831 HILERF

Sales and
distribution of Sales and
LPG through distribution of
Zhuhai terminal LPG through

and in the retail
international networks
market in the PRC
El%S and Macau Sale of
BAR FEATER electronic
EER ANsE products
THAER fRBER HERT Unallocated  Consolidated
AERER PERLR ER R ge
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HKS$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FET
Amounts included in the measure of B ERFIHHEE
segment profit or segment assets:  EBFTAZEH
Capital expenditure and increase in -~ BAR E REELEM
goodwill 39,452 91,163 - 413 131,028
Depreciation of property, plant and ~ #1% » BB RRkE2
equipment e 27,882 16,063 2 145 44,092
Amortisation of other intangible AtEpEEgS
assets - 3,820 - - 3,820
Amortisation of prepaid lease THENRETEES
payments for land 2,948 652 - - 3,600
Amortisation of prepaid lease ARENRETEEY
payments for coast 786 - - - 786
Loss (gain) on disposal and HERMEE - HaS
written off of property, plant and ~ REfEZEB(KE)
equipment 73 (173) - - (100)
Shares of profit of a jointly controlled A5 —F £ R4 E%E
entity 5 - (239) - - (239)
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For the year ended 31 December 2010

EZ2010F 12 431 HiEFZE

7.

Segment Information (Continued)

Other segment information (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2009

Amounts included in the measure of
segment profit or segment assets:

Capital expenditure and increase in

goodwil

Depreciation of property, plant and

equipment

Amortisation of other intangible assets
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments

for land

Amortisation of prepaid lease payments

for coast

Loss (gain) on disposal and written off
of property, plant and equipment

Impairment on goodwill recognised

Share of loss and impairment of a

jointly controlled entity

BN RN AN RAER
AALER

BARHRAEEN

n%  BERRE
g

LBV AERR

RSB

BFRNRENEEH

HERMENE  BERR
e BRkE)

ERZEEHE

ME-FAREHERER
Kt

Sales and
distrioution of
LPG through
Zhuhai terminal
and in the
international
market
BAER
EER
MAEER
AERILR
HK$'000
AT

1,987

8

60

7.

Sales and
distribution of
LPG through
retall
networks

in the PRC
and Macau
FRTER
AEE
BEHER
PERILR
HK$ 000
AT

35,675

13,293
3,271

433

(%)
7,500

5972

SWRE ()
HtaB\EHE(Z)
#EHFE2009F 12831 HILEE
Sale of
electronic
products
HEET Unallocated Consolidated
Em KA A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
— 55 48,904
149 221 41,187
- - 3,271
- - 2,420
— - 778
269 3 296
- - 7,500
= = 5,972
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R R

For the year ended 31 December 2010

ELZE20104F 12 431 HIFF/E

7. Segment Information (Continued) 7. SEEHERGE)
Geographical information mEZE
The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong and REBZEEEBURES - A - &
the PRC, Thailand and other countries. Bl R EMEIR o
The Group’s revenue from operations from external AEBIRINSRFHIBN B TS 2 555
customers based on their location and information about WARBBEREEMIBENE S 2k
its non-current assets by geographical location of the MEEEZERFNNT :

assets are detailed below:

Revenue Non-current assets
e A FEREDEE
2010 2010 2009
HK$’°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET FEIT FET
Hong Kong &5 160,209 402,215 20,184 10,878
The PRC (excluding FE(TRIERS)

Hong Kong) 4,195,631 3,639,413 992,501 849,974
Thailand ZR 3,206,121 1,740,874 - —
Other countries H B xR 915,754 700,617 7,511 46
Total EEr 8,477,715 6,483,119 1,020,196 860,898
Note: Non-current assets exclude deferred tax assets and i ERBEETEREERBEERA

available for sale investment. HEBERE -

Annual Report 2010 =B —TBHF{ 115



e

_.\’. 5 .. ___.__ 4 7 . . ' dli
‘ﬁ;:lgn r - i _ |
; &J& e W -5 .J.u T, 7| : ™
=t SR i ] .

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= AL YA £
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
ELE 20104 12 531 HIFFE
7. Segment Information (Continued) 7. SEEHEGE)
Information about major customers EREEERZEH
Revenues from customers of the corresponding years R 2010 F (2009 F * A TEF R IEE
contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group FEFERMASEEEATEI10% A L2
either in year 2010 or 2009 are as follows: WA
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFET FET
Customer A? BEA 1,245,421 760,564
Customer B' ZFB' 1,233,200 —
Customer C' ZEC 480,168 1,178,789
Customer D' ZED' 727,500 980,400
! Revenue from LPG business ! BAERFEFBLA
2 Revenue from electronic products : BETERBEA
8. Other Income 8. HfttlxA
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Interest income A EHA 4,792 848
Net exchange gain (Note) b 5 18 5 T RE (AT 7E) 58,462 6,721
Others HAth 4,978 3,270
68,232 10,839
Note: The amount included net exchange gain arising from K cEeREEKBEARERITERRE
pledged RMB bank deposits and the corresponding USD FEETERMELEZIE RIS FEEL
borrowings amounted to approximately HK$66,097,000 66,097,0007% JT(2009 4 : 4,243,000
(2009: HK$4,243,000). PEIL) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R R

For the year ended 31 December 2010

ELZE20104F 12 431 HIFF/E
9. Other Finance Costs 9. HMUIMERZE
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Interests on bank borrowings wholly ~ BRAERNEEEE Z BT
repayable within five years ERFI B 56,203 30,483
Bank charges related to bank trust AA R RITIF IR H
receipts loans pledged with RMB RITEERIBER
bank deposits HEE A 2,574 2,410
Other bank charges HEMIR1TER 9,674 22,406
Less: Amounts capitalised B BRME e (103) (2,403)
68,348 52,896
Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose from a FRERZBERARE BEKEGH
bank loan borrowed for the construction of gas plant and BRENEENE AN —IARITER °
facilities in Zhuhai.
10. Taxation Charge 10. REZH
The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated Rire2ENERANR 2 BERRE !

statement of comprehensive income represents:

2010 2009

HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&r FEIT
Other regions in the PRC R At 3 [

Current tax BREAR 18 17,914 39,915
Underprovision of prior years BEFEREBETR - 4,982
17,914 44,897

Deferred tax (note 32) BIETIE (M7 32)
Current year NEEFE 153 (2,255)
18,067 42,642
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10. Taxation Charge (Continued)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax
(the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT
Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1
January 2008 onwards.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the
PRC, #1/8sRCGKE)BRARE (“H&E(KE)") is entitled
to exemption from the PRC enterprise income tax for
the two years starting from its first profit-making year,
followed by a 50% tax relief for the next three years. The
tax charge provided has been made after taking these
tax incentive into account. The first profit making year of
18 (%8) is 2006.

Except for the profit generated by subsidiaries in Hong
Kong is wholly absorbed by tax losses brought forward,
there is no provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has
been made in the consolidated financial statements as
the Company and other subsidiaries had no assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong.

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #/E8REBAER AT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010
ELZE20104F 12 431 HIFF/E

10. RIAZH (&)

BBFISH T 5 WA E 2 b5+ R A
B E16.5%1H -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R R

For the year ended 31 December 2010
ELZE20104F 12 431 HIFF/E

10. Taxation Charge (Continued) 10. MRIRZH (&)

The taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to the FRZBMEX HABEES 2 E KR K25 T
profit per the consolidated statement of comprehensive EERIAT ¢
income as follows:

2010 2009

HK$’000 HK$’000
FRET FET
Profit before taxation R 250 A A 155,451 155,093
Tax at the domestic tax rate 25% R R 25% 5+ E 2 Fi1E 38,863 38,773
Tax effect of expenses not deductible N A] 054 B sz 2 T 75 S 28
for tax purpose 26,813 8,344
Tax effect of income not taxable for AR A 2 T 5 &
tax purpose (15,497) (8,027)
Tax effect of profit which are PRI EZHWER R 2
exempted from tax or under tax MG
concessions (59,697) (25,244)
Tax effect of tax losses not RERMIEE B 2 MG &
recognised 25,333 26,631
Tax effect of deductible temporary RERAUHR LR MEERE 2
differences not recognised Mg & 2,605 858
Utilisation of tax losses previously not B FR 4t Al R HER 2 Fi S E a8
recognised (353) (3,675)
Underprovision of prior year BEFEREDR - 4,982
Taxation charge for the year FAMIBXZ 18,067 42,642
The domestic tax rate (which is the PRC enterprise FRAIMERAESEFTELCEHMEEERNA
income tax rate) in the jurisdiction where the operation of Z AR R (B B EREEE) -
the Group is substantially based is used.
Details of the deferred tax asset and liabilities are set out BEFTBEER BB ZFIBENRMES2 -

in note 32.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010

ELZE20104F 12 431 HIFF/E
11. Profit Before Taxation 11. BRRETEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FRET FET
Profit before taxation has been arrived BFAD&EAME B TF)ER :
at after charging:
Amortisation of prepaid lease + b B AR & BB I
payments for land (included in (BREETHEZHA)
administrative expenses) 3,600 2,420
Amortisation of prepaid lease B TE & SR IE S
payments for coast (included in (BEETEZEA)
administrative expenses) 786 778
Amortisation of other intangible assets H i 24 k£
(included in cost of sales) (BIEEHEKRAA) 3,820 3,271
Auditor’s remuneration Z S AN B & 3,066 2,705
Depreciation for property, plant and VI - B REETE
equipment 44,092 41,187
(Gain) loss on disposal and write-off & R E  HERE
of property, plant and equipment 2 (W) B (100) 296
Minimum lease payments under KERNORERS -
operating leases:
— LPG vessel — RIEEM - 1,676
— Premises — EF 4,540 2,870
Staff costs BB KA
Directors’ fees (note 12) B (MiFE12) 380 330
Directors’ other emoluments EEHEMme (M7 12)

(note 12) 9,178 8,273

Contributions to retirement benefits B #790,000 7 7T (2009
schemes excluding approximately & : 81,00087C) BT A
HK$90,000 (2009: HK$81,000) =

included in directors’ emoluments B < 2 IR PR A8 FI 5T 2 3R 2,487 1,701
Others = s} 33,517 20,861
45,562 31,165
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
ELE 20104 12 531 HIFFE
12. Directors’ Emoluments 12. EEM&
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 11 (2009: BB F1102(2009F  1142)E
11) directors were as follows: EZMET ¢

Chiu Cheung
Sing Shum Kwan ~ Chan Yuk
Shum  Chung, Chun, Wu Hung, Wai, Xu

SiuHung  Raymond Lawrence  Hong Cho Anthony  Benedict  Mingshe
L ¢ £ HEE BHE WEG fAit

HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$000
FET T TET  TET  FET  FET  FET  TET  TET  TET  FET FER
(Note) (Note) (Note)
W) R )

Fees e = - - - - - - - 130 100 150 380
Other emolumens Efphe
Salaries and other benefits FEREMREA 3,000 1,625 1,046 35 137 929 1,43 783 - - - 9,088
Contrbutions to retrement RICER AR
benefits schemes 12 12 12 12 6 12 12 12 - - - 90
Total emoluments Heks 3,012 1,637 1,058 337 143 941 1,265 795 130 100 150 9,558
Chiu Cheung
Sing Shum Siu Kwan  Chan Yuk
Shum Chung, Cen Chun, Wu Cal Ka Fai, Wang Hung, Wai, Xu Total
SuHung  Raymond Znu  Lawrence  Hong Cho Xkun Brian Jan  Anthony  Benedict  Mingshe At

% B A7F 28 HER  Efm E%E 12 REE REE R 209
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$'000
AT fEr HEr TEr TEr FEr FEn tEr TR TEr TEr FEn
(Note) (Note) (Note)
W) R D)

Fees g - - - - - - - - 130 100 100 330
Other emoluments Eflie
Salaries and other benets Fe Rl 3000 1500 1,08 R k1] 13 810 405 - - -8R
Contrbutions to retrement RifER 8L
benefits schemes 12 12 12 12 12 7 7 7 - - - 81
Total emoluments ik 3,012 1,512 1,066 337 337 720 877 42 130 100 100 8,608
Note: The disclosed emoluments for individual director Kt ERESEZEHBEM S T E K 2009 F
represent the emoluments received or receivable after the 6RA1BHEZTAESHR 2B WKE
appointment of directorship on 18 June 20009. WM -
No director waived any emoluments during both years. RE AR EEEREEAHS -
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
ELZE20104F 12 431 HIFF/E

13. Employees’ Emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, four (2009: five) are directors of the Company
whose emoluments are included in the above disclosures.
The emolument of the remaining individual is disclosed
below. For the year ended 31 December 2009, of the
five directors included in the five highest emoluments
in the Group, two are directors appointed on 18 June
2009. The total emoluments of the individual in 2010
and the two directors (including emoluments received
after appointment as directors) in 2009 received and
receivable for the year ended 31 December 2010 and 31
December 2009 are as follows:

13. ERHM&

AEBSEZREH AL EE44(2009
F:5Z)ARAIES EMESFER
R EXHEE - AT Z2BE R T X
E - HZE2009F12 A1 HIEFE - &
EESE R HFALTRIEZSRES
o WA 5200946 A 18 H EE (T
ZEE2010F B B A+ &20094F
W% EEGAEE2010F812 318 &
2009F 12 A1 HIEFEE K R EK 2
HeBam(REREZEAE SR KE
ZEE)mT

2010 2009

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHETT FETT

Salaries and allowances e K2R 975 1,995
Contributions to retirement benefit  EREFIETE

schemes HE 12 24

987 2,019

Their emoluments are within the following bands:

HEZHEN FIATEE :

No. of employees

EA®AE
2010
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 77T 1 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T % 1,500,000 # 7T = 1

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited /88 REBERA T
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
ELZE20104F 12 431 HIFF/E

14. Dividend 14.

B2

2010 2009

2009 final dividend recognised as FAERBDIKZ 2009 F
distribution during the year — REARRE — &R 1.0
HK1.0 cent (2009 final dividend: (2009 FRHAMR S -
HKO.3 cents) per share 0.371)

HK$°000 HK$’000
FET TAET
11,558 2,890

Subsequent to 31 December 2010, the directors
proposed a final dividend of HK1.0 cent (2009: HK1.0
cent) per share be paid to the shareholders of the
Company whose names appear on the register of
members 7 June 2011. This final dividend is subject to
approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. On 18 March 2011, the number of
shares issued and fully paid is 1,305,853,374.

R2010F12A31H%&  EF#EZER
R2011F6A7H BF A QA RES
AR ARERERBRS - Tk
IR B 1.0 1L(20094F : 1.0l ) » 1tk
REREBERRREERERF KR
= A ER - FAEE - R2011453
A18H  EBETRBREZRMNEE B
1,305,853,374 % °
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
ELZE20104F 12 431 HIFF/E

15. Earnings per Share 15. BEERF

ARRl BBESRHA ARESRER
NESERN TR TSR E

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per
share attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the

Company is based on the following data:

2010 2009

HK$’000 HK$’000
FRET FET
Earnings ¥
Earnings for the purposes of basic STEERERREE
and diluted earnings per share AT TR 2 &7
(profit for the period attributable to (RRRIHEE AEIG
the owners of the Company) HAR= ) 136,647 112,451
Number of shares Bir& A
Weighted average number of ordinary st E &R EAZF
shares for the purpose of basic Fre A 2 L @R
earnings per share nRE 15 2 1,179,278,032 975,483,511
Effect of dilutive ordinary shares BEsHTmR s w8
Share options gl 17,793,666 —
Weighted average number of ordinary  5t2 &A% # 5% 2 7
shares for the purposes of diluted Fre A 2 L@k
earnings per share AN 5 28 1,197,071,698 975,483,511

The computation of diluted earnings per share does not
assume the exercise of the Company’s options because
the exercise price of those options was higher than the
average market price for shares for 2009.

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited /88 REBERA T
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For the year ended 31 December 2010

EtZ20104F 12 531 HIFF/E
16. Property, Plant and Equipment 16. %  -RBREME

Furniture,
fixtures
Gas  Gas pumps and

Construction Leasehold Plant and plant and and equipment Motor
in progress Buildings  improvements  machinery facilities ~ equipment ¥l EE vehicles
BRI BF HRWRRKE  MBRAR  REBRN  RRRRG Rl il |

HK§ 000 HKS000 HK§ 000 HKS 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000
7T 7Er 7 7Er T 7 Tr 7 TEr

COST BE

At January 2009 H00E1A1R 11,304 21,038 2,439 1114 467,542 148,326 11,123 13,89 677,472
Additions HE 8,865 - 137 5 4319 3781 655 1182 18,900
Acquired on acauistion of a subsidary ~ KENBARHE - - - - 3,704 18,787 % 5 2574
Transfer 1 154) 90 - - (166) 762 (762) - -
Disposals and wrie-off {HE Rl - - - (#52) - (154) (£49) 7130) (1,789)
Exchange realignment EiAE % % - 2 383 23 15 bl 73
At 31 December 2009 Ro009 124318 19,531 21,993 2576 1,269 475,782 7,711 10,606 14429 717897
Additions AE 91,506 104 1 - 14218 9,280 1,689 1416 124,834
Acquired on acauiston of a subsidlary  WENEBARHE - - - - - 30 2% 23 671
Transfer g2 (45,147 8,843 - - 30,036 6,052 Pl - -
Disposals and wrie-off {HE Rl - - 13 = 80) (840) (54 (104) (1.291)
Exchange realignment EfRg 1874 o7 10 44 9,367 6,229 37 603 19491
At 31 December 2010 120105124318 67,764 31,937 2,994 1313 529,322 193,192 13,053 2,021 861,602
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT ~ HiERHE

A1 January 2009 H00E1A1R = 4,486 1,913 20 45,854 40,179 6,386 5,267 105,435
Provided for the year g - 203 n 26 23,104 12472 106 2,152 4,187
Transfer &z - 62 - - 6 - - - -
Eliminated on disposals and wite-off WA ERMEEER - - - (183) - (102) (394) 672) (1,351)
Exchange realignment EiAE - 10 - - 53 7 10 9 15
At 31 December 2009 H2009E12A31 B = 6,09 2,084 293 68,949 53,222 1,028 6,756 145,426
Provided for the year e - 21% 8 7 2,440 14,381 840 2720 44092
Eiminated on disposals and write-off ~ REERMEEEH = = 8 = 13 (85) (] (648) (759)
Exchange realignment Eizg - 25 7 12 1,646 2,104 24 %5 4580
At 31 December 2010 B2010F12A318 - 9,014 2,431 383 93,962 69,792 8,504 9,193 193,339
CARRYING VALUES il

At 31 December 2010 R010E127318 67,764 2,923 563 930 435,360 123,400 4,489 12,634 668,263
At 31 December 2009 12009512831 B 19,531 15,399 49 976 406,833 118,469 3,078 1,673 512471
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
ELZE20104F 12 431 HIFF/E

16. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

Buildings Over the term of the lease
Leasehold improvements 20% to 33'/,%

Plant and machinery 5% to 33"/,%

Gas plant and facilities Over the shorter of the

lease term of coast use
right and land use right,

or 20 years
Gas pumps and equipment  10% to 33'/;%
Furniture, fixtures and 15% to 16%/,%
equipment
Motor vehicles 16%/,% to 33'/,%

The buildings are situated outside Hong Kong, in the
PRC, and are held on land under medium term leases.

The gas plant under construction are situated outside
Hong Kong, in the PRC, and are held under medium term
leases.

LPG bottles with carrying values of approximately
HK$7,072,000 (2009: HK$5,393,000) included in gas
pumps and equipment are leased to customers for
short term to generate rental income. The rental income
generated was approximately HK$16,290,000 (2009:
HK$9,025,000) for the year ended 31 December 2010.

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #/E8REBAER AT

16. %k  MBREM (L)

EF AR 4 8

HEYEEE 20% £ 33'/;%

W28 N 55 A 5% % 33'/,%

RUE R AR meEERAERT
HfsE FAREFR AV F
Hisk =+ &8
B SES

RR K& 10% 2 33'/,%

BRith -~ KE 15% % 16°/,%

S
B 16%/:% %= 33'/,%

BF IR B (FBREIN) - WA H
MA L EHA -

ERERBEHURTE(FAREIN) LA
REARARA -

RREREZHEIEAET 247,072,000 5T
(2009 £ : 5,393,000 7T ) 2 &AL =
TAEHBAERTES « URIES K
A > REZE 2010512 A31 BILEEAT
E4 e W A% A16,290,000 7% T
(2009 % : 9,025,000/87T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
ELZE20104F 12 431 HIFF/E

17. Prepaid Lease Payments for Land

2010 2009

17. TiWFAFHEERIE

HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEL
The Group’s prepaid lease payments  AN&EE 2 +iFELFRE KB
for land comprise: B
Land use rights outside Hong Kong,  RMAHE(FHEIEIN) -
in the PRC under medium term WA B OEE 2
leases T A R 67,511 68,814
Analysed for reporting purposes as: BHREBEHDHT
Non-current asset EMBNE E 64,631 66,164
Current asset MENEE 2,880 2,650
67,511 68,814
18. Prepaid Lease Payments for Coast 18. BERMHEAARER

2010 2009

HK$’000 HK$’000
F#T FET
The Group’s prepaid lease payments AN&EE 7 /G =RFENTAEHE
for coast comprise: B
Coast outside Hong Kong, in the PRC KRB (FBEIN) - S AP
under medium term leases HAABE 28R 11,912 12,290
Analysed for reporting purposes as: BREB DT
Non-current asset ERENEEE 11,106 11,5612
Current asset mMEN & E 806 778
11,912 12,290
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
ELZE20104F 12 431 HIFF/E

18.

19.

Prepaid Lease Payments for Coast (Continued)

The prepaid lease payments for coast represent the
rights to use coast in Zhuhai ranging from 20 years to 28
years, starting from 1 January 1999.

18. BEAMEARRE D)

BEBNAERBENERKEZ BRE
F#E  $199941 81 BRH% @ HEH
NF20F =284

Goodwill 19. &

HK$’000

FET

COST )% 3
At 1 January 2009 200941 A 1H 123,436
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 34) WiE—RKB AR (Mt 54) 4,538
Impairment loss recognised BRI EEE (7,500)
Exchange realignment M 5,58 B 35
At 31 December 2009 R 2009 12 A 31 H 120,509
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 34) WEE —RKIB R R (H/7£34) 9,523
Exchange realignment & 5 4,192
At 31 December 2010 R 2010F 12 A31 H 130,224
CARRYING VALUES ARE E
At 31 December 2010 72010412 A 31 H 130,224
At 31 December 2009 R 2009F 12 A31 H 120,509

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill set out
above has been allocated to nine (2009: eight) individual
cash generating units (CGUs) in the sale and distribution
of LPG segments. Eight (2009: seven) CGUs are included
in the segment of sale and distribution of LPG through
retail network in the PRC and Macau. The remaining one
(2009: one) CGU is included in the segment of sale and
distribution of overseas LPG through Zhuhai terminal and
in the international market.

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #/E8REBAER AT

REENRME XA ZHEE
BB EHER D HEBRIER D E 2@
(20094 : 81E)fERIRCEEEN - F
BHRE R EERE D HEEEERL
ROEHEME(20004F : 718 )R L E
A BA7 o 88N 1{E(2009 4 : 1 &) Jh&t
ABBRYEHRERTEBEETEHEE RS
HERIER D -
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
ELZE20104F 12 431 HIFF/E

19. Goodwill (Continued)

No impairment of goodwill is necessary for all CGUs for
the year ended 31 December 2010 since the financial
performance is expected to meet the management
expectation.

For the year ended 31 December 2009, the management
of the Group determined that there was an impairment
of HK$7,500,000 for the goodwill of one CGU (“Impaired
CGU”) and there was no impairment of the other CGUs
containing goodwill.

The basis of the recoverable amounts of the above CGUs
and their major underlying assumptions are summarised
below:

The recoverable amounts of these units have been
determined based on value in use calculation. That
calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a 5-year
period, and discount rate of 13% (2009: 14.5%). The
cash flows for the financial budgets are using a steady
growth rate ranging from 4% to 15% (2009: 3% to 12%)
for a 5 year period. The cash flows beyond this 5-year
period are extrapolated using a zero percent growth rate.
Other key assumptions for the value in use calculations
related to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows
which include budgeted sales and gross margin, such
estimation is based on the unit’s past performance and
management’s expectations for the market development.
Management believes that any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the
aggregate carrying amount of the CGU to exceed the
aggregate recoverable amount of the CGU.

19.

ARV ERRBERATEETEEHE
HZ2010F12 A31 B IEFEHAMFT
EReEASBMNTIRBERE -

HE2009F 12 A1 HILFE  A&EHE
ERER—ARESELBMNZEEET
7,500,000 T 2 B EEE( B RER
SEAEMN]) MARBZEMESE
A BRI EERE o

REREEABUZAINEESEREET
ZiERBRRMALAT

ZEBMN A WE S EE IR IETE
BEEET ZEEXKAEEEDR
HEZSFHMBBERPZESRENR
B K 8 28 R 13% (20094 : 14.5%) &t
B -HBEERZASREUNSFHZ
BEERERLI%E 15% (20094 : 3% &
12%)HEET o L5 FHEZIRESRE N
SRR - BAGTHEESRA R
HEAEEFEECEMEZRERRE
TBEHEEREF @ ZEhsRRIEEMZ
BREEELREEBREF 2T ERRME
e BEEMRE  ZEBREAMNEE
A RERE R T ERNSHEEELS
Uz ARmEBRBRESEEEN AT
ko
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
ELZE20104F 12 431 HIFF/E

20. HftEEEE

20. Other Intangible Assets

Distribution Business Leasing
network license agreements
bogEE ExmE HERR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET BT FE7T FET
COST %3
At 1 January 2009 200941 A1H 2,552 4,163 13,784 20,499
Acquired on acquisition of a ~ WE—RH B A A
subsidiary (note 34) RS (HfiZ 34) — 3,470 - 3,470
Exchange adjustments B 5 & 3 8 22 33
At 31 December 2009 20094 12 A31H 2,655 7,641 13,806 24,002
Exchange adjustments BEE 5 F8 2L 89 145 479 713
At 31 December 2010 R2010612A31H 2,644 7,786 14,285 24,715
AMORTISATION AND MR E
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2009 20091 A1H 142 876 3,742 4,760
Charge for the year FAZH 255 590 2,426 3,271
Exchange adjustments R 1 2 7 10
At 31 December 2009 720094 12 A31H 398 1,468 6,175 8,041
Charge for the year FAZH 258 1,114 2,448 3,820
Exchange adjustments BEE 5 8 2 21 56 279 356
At 31 December 2010 R2010F 12 A31H 677 2,638 8,902 12,217
CARRYING VALUES IEEE
At 31 December 2010 201012 A31H 1,967 5,148 5,383 12,498
At 31 December 2009 2009 12 A31H 2,157 6,173 7,631 15,961

DHEBPE EBRREABRSRIDER
BathREE=TEBA -

The distribution network, the business license and the
subcontracting agreements were acquired from third
parties in business combinations.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
B2 20104 12 31 HIFFZE
20. Other Intangible Assets (Continued) 20. HthIELEE(E)
The above intangible assets have definite useful lives. riEREEAERAERAFE - 25
Such intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line BIZEEABEAREIA T AR
basis over the following periods:
Distribution network 10 years paki=Fc ke 10
Business license 5 — 10 years E i 5F 104
Leasing agreements 5 — 9 years HE W= 5ZF9F
21. Interest in a Jointly Controlled Entity 21, — REFZEHERES
THE GROUP
%M
2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#TT FET
Cost of unlisted investment in a jointly A FEZEHIFEE 2 IE
controlled entity &R A 13,073 13,073
Share of post-acquisition profit TG A& &= 7 (E518) -
(losses), impairment loss and other WEEE & B 2 E A
comprehensive income (5,212) (6,903)
7,861 6,170
As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, the Group had R 2010F & 2009F 12 A31H * &
interest in the following jointly controlled entity: SEHEAR T EREGEE 2 e

Proportion of
nominal value of

Form of Principal registered capital
business Country of place of Fully paid up held by the Group
Name of entity structure incorporation  operation registered capital Z5EFHEM  Nature of business
NEEH RERHER EMEIER 2 EEERHE CHEERES RFmELH  REHE
2010 2009
BAMTRIMRARAA  Incorporated PRC PRC RMB2,250,000 49% 49% Sale and distribution
(TB# ) (Note) (Hft) BRI i hE AR 2,250,0007C of LPG
HERDHERILR

Annual Report 2010 —ZE—ZFF R

131



132

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2010

EIZ 20104 12 31 HIEFZE
21. Interest in a Jointly Controlled Entity (Continued)

Note:

The Group’s entitlement to share in the profits of its jointly
controlled entity is in proportion to its ownership interest after
the sub-contracting period mentioned in the following paragraph.

Pursuant to an agreement entered into between Qingxin Bai Fu
Yang Petrol Chemical Company Limited (“BFY”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, and the joint venture partner of #&#1
(the “Venturer”) on 3 November 2006, the operation of #&%7 has
been sub-contracted to BFY with a sub-contracting period of 8
years.

Included in the cost of unlisted investment in a jointly controlled
entity is goodwill of approximately HK$6,139,000 arising on
acquisition of a jointly controlled entity in prior years.

The basis of the recoverable amount of the jointly controlled
entity and its major underlying assumptions are summarised
below:

The recoverable amount of the jointly controlled entity has
been determined based on a value in use calculation. That
calculation uses cash flow projection based on the financial
budget approved by management covering a 5-year period,
and discount rate of 13% (2009: 14.5%). The cash flows for
the financial budget use a steady growth rate of 4% (2009:
5%) for a 5 year period. The cash flows beyond this 5-year
period is extrapolated using a zero percent growth rate. Other
key assumptions for the value in use calculations related to
the estimation of cash inflow/outflow which include budgeted
sales and gross margin, such estimation is based on the
jointly controlled entity’s past performance and management
expectations for market development.

For the year ended 31 December 2010, no impairment loss
was provided (2009: HK$6,139,000) for the interest in a jointly
controlled entity.

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #/E8REBAER AT

21.

—RiARNERER(Z)
Hat

AEBESEEARENERE 2B 2R
TRLATE“%EPTE&Z%“ HHF'EJ&EWME*?E
EZ AR PIFE

BEARBIZZ2ENBRARBEHHES A
MIETERAR(BEBE)RBHF2EEE
H(AEE|)N20065F11 A3HEI M 2 1
FRBFZEBBINATEEFE  HNHHA
84 o

FLETFHREN—BEREFHERZRAE S
FREFEEWE LR ERSREL
2 #16,139,000 7 7T 2 B o

SREARENERZAIKRE SR EERH
Ix*ﬁﬁﬁfﬁj“ﬂ% g

B 6B B 2 Al W Bl & %8 AR IR 51 & A {
RAEEET - ZtEERBE IEIEET&/EZ
SEMBEERY 2B mETER KA X
13% (2009 : 14.5%) T H - I B TEHE R
ZHEERENSFHZIBEE R XK 4% (2009
F5%)HH - WoFHBZEERENT
WRREE - BREREAA S AHEAEE
EEZEMFERIBREEEHERTE
Mo bt REREENBEEEREEE
TRtz TG ERMIEL -

HE2010F12 A31HIEFE » WER R
HEE S BB ST RREE B (2009 F
6,139,000,%71)
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ELE 20104 12 531 HIFFE
21. Interest in a Jointly Controlled Entity (Continued) 21, —RERRHERER(Z)
The summarised financial information in respect of the AEBUERSFHEARZ EREHE
Group’s jointly controlled entity which is accounted for BB ERESHS T ¢

using the equity method is set out below:

2010 2009

HK$’000 HK$’000
F# FET
Current assets mEEE 1,140 745
Non-current assets EREEE 5,927 6,125
Current liabilities mENaE (38) (194)
Income recognised in profit or loss REEERZWA 33,699 19,647
Expenses recognised in profit or loss RERERZFX (33,460) (19,480)
Other comprehensive income HEa 2wk 1,452 —
22. Other Assets 22, HthEE&E
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FET
Deposit for acquisition of LPG stations W& EM B/ RINRIE 2 RS
in Guangzhou (Note a) (et a) 99,891 —
Deposit for purchase of property, BEYE ERENREZEE
plant and equipment 25,722 =
Deposit for establishment of a RABIKY —R AR RS
company in the PRC (Note b) (HtaEb) - 68,111
125,613 68,111
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22. Other Assets (Continued)

23.

Notes:

(@)

The amount represents the deposit paid by the Group to a
lawyer firm for it to act as the agent for acquisition of LPG
stations in Guangzhou. Pursuant to the agency agreement
signed between the Group and the lawyer firm as a
refundable deposit in December 2010, RMB85,000,000
was transferred to the lawyer firm to arrange the
acquisition of not less than 15 LPG stations in Guangzhou
and handle the related share transfer procedures. Up to
the date of this report, no acquisition agreements have
been signed.

The amount represents the deposit paid by the Group
for establishing a company in the PRC (the “Associate
Company”). Based on an agreement and supplemental
agreement entered into by the Group and an independent
third party (the “Major Shareholder”) in 2009, the
Group agreed to contribute RMB120,000,000 and own
20% equity interest in the Associate Company. The
deposit of approximately HK$68,111,000 (equivalent to
RMB60,000,000) was paid to the Major Shareholder.
During the year ended 31 December 2010, the agreement
was cancelled by both parties and the deposit paid was
refunded to the Group.

Inventories

2010 2009

22, HthWEFE&E(Z)

Wit -

(a)

23. 8

ZHREEAEER —KEZMITENZ
Be - WEEETREEIMNRER N
Rub 2 KRB o RIBAEEHAZERIT
BEZREWZE - R2010F128 © —
% AR #85,000,0007t 2 A] R EIR S
HE T 2T AZHWRERMR
D15 ERIER MR - Rk EER
BNERFE - HEAREAH A
KEZBWERE -

ZAREEANEBPA R KA A
((BaRE ) ZEMERSE - REASE
B B% 78 = H(RKRE]) 2009
FIUZ kLT HE ~A5E
[ & X% AR #¥120,000,0007¢ * I
WA B S DA Z220%0% AN R e
#4768,111,0007% o(HE & X A R #
60,000,0007T) 2 & E X F A&
HeREZE2010F12 31 B IEFE
AN ZHEDETNESEHE M
MEEBRETAER -

HK$’000 HK$’000

FRET FAET

LPG i E = 163,727 110,786
Electronic products BFEMm 306,000 315,060
469,727 425,846

The cost of inventories charged to the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income for the year
amounted to approximately HK$8,030,917,000 (2009:
HK$6,087,801,000).

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited /88 REBERA T
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24. Trade Debtors, Bills Receivable, Other Debtors, 24, BHRHER BHRRE - HftufE
Deposits and Prepayments IR - MERFAMRE
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#TT FET
Trade debtors FEW B 5 BR K 749,481 762,023
Bills receivable e E IR 6,880 —
756,361 762,023
The Group allows an average credit period of 120 days. AEE 2 FHEEHRI120K BE
The bills receivable are matured within the range of 2010F 12 A31 HIEFERKRERE 2 E
30 days to 90 days for the year ended 31 December HBHNFI0KREIKR - REFRHRK
2010. The following is an aged analysis of trade debtors ZEWE 5 8RR R W E R BR R 5 1T iR
and bills receivables at the end of the reporting period HEAEESWT

presented based on the invoice date:

2010 2009

HK$’000 HK$’000
FRET F&T
0 — 30 days 02 30k 371,195 362,059
31 — 60 days 31 £ 60X 22,958 231,479
61 — 90 days 61 290K 135,222 29,860
91 — 180 days 91 £ 180K 224,790 84,618
Over 180 days BB 180K 2,196 54,007
756,361 762,023
Included in the Group’s trade debtors, are debtors of AEE 2 EUWE SIRFF - 957,176,000
approximately HK$57,176,000 (2009: HK$365,380,000) 75 70(2009 £F : 365,380,000/ 7T ) IAETT
denominated in USD, which is not the functional currency EE ELWIIEHAEEER 2hEE

of the relevant group entities. ¥ o
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24. Trade Debtors, Bills Receivable, Other Debtors,
Deposits and Prepayments (Continued)

Included in the Group’s trade debtors balance are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$223,312,000 (2009: HK$136,651,000) which are past
due at the reporting date for which the Group has not
provided for impairment loss. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances. The trade debtors
past due but not provided for were either subsequently
settled as at the date of this report or no historical
default of payments by the respective customers. The
average age of these receivables is 100 days (2009: 138
days).

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but
not impaired

24. BHRHIER BEURE HfhfE
B - ReRAMKRR(E)

AEBEZREBEZRABEFR - B
M 1B #4223,312,000/% 7T(2009 4 :
136,651,00078 70 ) Z FEUER F i 2 3 B
EiBH - BXREERIERBEEBERE -
REBEWEFBEMBRZEHRE 2H
e BBHEREREBECERKESE
RERAREBRERE  EERFB
W B R FRIE - ZEREBERR 2 19
BRER A 100K (2009 4F : 138K) °

il FB K iml (B 2 FE I | 5 IR 3R Z AR e

2010 2009

HK$’000 HK$’000

FETT FETT

61 — 90 days 61 = 90K 234 137
91 — 180 days 91 &180K 221,284 82,850
181 — 365 days 181 2365k 1,794 53,664
Total &5 223,312 136,651
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For the year ended 31 December 2010

HZE2010F 1231 HIFFZE
24. Trade Debtors, Bills Receivable, Other Debtors,

25,

Deposits and Prepayments (Continued)

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts

24.

B BRR - BURE - HfufE
BiRR - ReRAMKRR(E)

S TR 458 i S

2010 2009

HK$’000 HK$’000

FRET F&T

Balance at beginning of the year FEE R - —
Impairment losses recognised on EREWE 5 RN R EAM

trade and other debtors FEWBR FUR B E51E - 2,256

Amounts written off as uncollectible YE RS AT [ M # 85 2 I8 - (2,256)

Balance at end of the year FIREER - —

Included in other debtors, there are trade deposits paid
to suppliers of approximately HK$369,893,000 (2009:
HK$541,197,000) in relation to the purchase of LPG
which will be delivered within one year commencing from
the date of the signed purchase contract.

Amount Due (to)/from a Jointly Controlled
Entity

As at 31 December 2010, the amount due to jointly
controlled entity is approximately HK$458,000. The
amount is aged within 30 days of the end of the
reporting period. The amount is unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.

As at 31 December 2009, the amount due from a jointly
controlled entity was approximately HK$341,000. The
amount was aged within 30 days of the end of the
reporting period. The amount was unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand.

25.

EMEBEERY  BERBERERGE
REBHESHASRBT —FRME) R
HIEE BN 2 B 5 1% $ 493869,893,000
77T (2009 4 : 541,197,000 7T) ©

FE(f1),—RILF R REREA

R2010FE12 B31 B @ BN — R LR
| B B2 R IB 4 A& 458,000 78 TT © :Z ik IA
ZERER B2 IREIRAET 30K » ZE
BERE - B8 REREREE o

M 20094F12 318 » R — R LR
I B B2 FRIB 49 A& 341,00078 7T © :Z 2B
ZIRIR A2 IREAREBETS0RNA © ;2K H
BEEE R RERERERE -
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ELZE20104F 12 431 HIFF/E

26. Pledged Bank Deposits, Bank Balances and

Cash

The amounts represent deposits pledged to banks to
secure banking facilities granted to the Group. The
deposits have been pledged to secure short-term
bank loans, and are therefore classified as current
assets. The pledged bank deposits of approximately
HK$265,282,000 (2009: HK$7,748,000) carry at floating
interest rates which ranged from 0.01% to 2.35% (2009:
0.01% to 2.96%) per annum and will be released upon
settlement of the relevant bank borrowings. The pledged
bank deposits included an amount of approximately
HK$1,770,583,000 (2009: HK$1,384,607,000) carried at
fixed interest rates which ranged from 0.01% to 2.79%
(2009: 1.76%) per annum and will be released upon
settlement of the relevant bank borrowings.

The bank balances carried interest at market rates which
ranged from 0.01% to 0.36% (2009: 0.01% to 0.72%)
per annum.

At the end of the reporting period, the RMB pledged
bank deposits of approximately HK$2,015,149,000 (2009:
HK$1,343,238,000) were pledged for the bank trust
receipts loans.

At the end of the reporting period, the pledged bank
deposits and bank balances and cash of approximately
HK$2,346,235,000 (2009: HK$1,486,256,000) were
denominated in RMB which is not freely convertible
into other currencies. Included in the Group’s pledged
bank deposits and bank balances, are approximately
HK$31,647,000 (2009: HK$60,093,000) denominated in
USD and approximately HK$1,133,657,000 (2009: nil)
denominated in RMB, which is not the functional currency
of the relevant group entities.

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #/E8REBAER AT

26.

EBEHRITER  BITERRRAS

ZHREREBTROEAAEEHE
BRETHREZERZER %5
EREEBEAREHRTERZE
R BARBEE - BHFRT
7 3 £9265,282,0007% JT(20094F :
7,748,000/ 7T ) L IF B FF XK N F
0.01% £2.35% (20094 : 0.01%
F296%) B R BERITE
RBERHER ERBRITEREIE
7 8 #91,770,583,00078 JT(2009 4F :
1,384,607,0008 7T ) + #HE EF F E N
TF0.01% £2.79% (2009 F : 1.76%)
B Wi R A ERITE RS E R
|§§J§o

R 1T IR N F0.01% & 0.36% (2009
F:0.01%E0.72%) Z TS FFIEFEE ©

R 2 H K 42,015,149,0007% 7T
(2009 £ : 1,343,238,0003 7T ) 2 & &
HAREETEAERETRELEE
AR o

REMBR - BEBRITERRIRITE
4 N IR & 492,346,235,000% 7T (2009
F :1,486,256,000%8 7T ) LA A R &
HIME - WA ERERSHEMEE-
REBZBRITERRBRITESRT - 4
31,647,000 7t (2009 £ : 60,093,000
BIT)LAETTYIME  491,133,657,00078
TL(20004F : T)AILAARKZ|E - £
TRARBIIEHBEEERE 2NEE
ﬁg o
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27. Trade Creditors and Bills Payable

27. BENESBRRREMRE

2010 2009

HK$’000 HK$’000
F#T FET
The aged analysis of trade creditors FERTE 5 R BRER
is as follows presented based on TR
invoice date: Z5T ¢
0 to 30 days 02 30K 182,133 437,473
31 to 60 days 31 260K 6,795 127,555
61 to 90 days 61 290K 1,552 36,155
91 to 180 days 91 £180K - 8
Over 180 days HE 180 K 1,589 418
192,069 601,609
The aged analysis of bills payables is = 2 BRiEE D
as follows: s
0 to 30 days 02 30K 84,942 43,086
31 to 60 days 31 260K 96,195 92,109
61 to 90 days 61 290K 87,405 137,025
91 to 180 days 91 £180:K - 80,172
268,542 352,392
460,611 954,001

Included in the Group’s trade creditors and bills payable
are amounts of approximately HK$18,949,000 (2009:
HK$588,624,000) denominated in USD, which is not the
functional currency of the relevant group entities.

AEBZENE 5 ERKER
Zikh 0 #918,949,00078 7t (2009 4F :
588,624,000 7T ) LAZETTE(E » ETi
ISR ERE I NEE -
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28. Other Creditors and Accrued Charges 28.

At 31 December 2009, the other creditor included a
refundable deposit of HK$40,000,000 from a subscriber
(the “Subscriber”) for acquisition 10% equity interest of
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. The amount
was unsecured and borne interest at 2.42% per annum.
On 8 April 2010, a subscription agreement was signed
and the subscriber agreed to acquired 10% equity
interest of a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
Best Resources Base Limited, for a consideration of
HK$40,000,000. The disposal was completed in June
2010.

29. Borrowings 29.

HEF R R ERB

R20094F 12 A31 H @ EH b & 1+ B 3K
BRERBEBRAAR—FR2ENB QA
Z10% R EmmRE A (REH )UK
HY 2 Al 3R 8 3% £ 40,000,000 T ° 3%
BTy - WL F F) K 2.42% 5
B R2010F4 A8H  REWH=CH
5] R EE 5 A & LA R {E 40,000,000
BTN A B —RE &M B A 7] Best
Resources Base Limited (8 ZHBRE A
A)Z210% f&#E - BESIER 2010466
AR o

e

2010 2009

HK$’000 HK$’000
TFET FET
Bank trust receipts loans RITEAREER 1,027,408 532,174
Bank trust receipts loans (pledged RITEBIBEER
with RMB bank deposits) (AARBRITFRZEM) 1,962,641 1,362,408
Other bank loans HAniR1TER 605,526 175,763
3,595,575 2,070,345
Analysed as: Y=
Secured B HE R 2,230,790 1,511,380
Unsecured 4 4% 1 1,364,785 558,965
3,595,575 2,070,345
Carrying amount repayable: BREE AN A T HAREERE
Within one year —F R 3,341,329 2,052,545
More than one year, but not BE—FENZHRME
exceeding two years 140,387 —
More than two years, but not BREMEENZNASE
exceeding five years 113,859 17,800
3,595,575 2,070,345
Less: Amounts due within one year 7 IRBREABA AR
shown under current liabilities —FREIH 2 3B (3,341,329) (2,052,545)
254,246 17,800
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29. Borrowings (Continued)

Bank trust receipts loans include approximately
HK$773,615,000 (2009: HK$1,511,037,000) fixed-rate
borrowings which are due within one year. They carry
average interest at 2.68% (2009: 1.76%) per annum. The
remaining bank loans are variable-rate borrowings which
carry interest at 1-month LIBOR + 0.6% and HIBOR + 2%
(2009: Hong Kong Inter-Bank Offered Rate + 1.75% to
Best Lending Rate + 0.75%) per annum ranging from
0.65% to 6% (2009: 1.08% to 6%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2010, other bank loans of the
Group comprised of an amount of approximately
HK$322,293,000 drawn under term loan facilities which
carry variable interest ranged from 2.05% to 3.89%
per annum. Included in the balance, approximately
HK$148,768,000 is secured by bank deposits of
the Group and guaranteed by the Company and its
subsidiary. The remaining bank loans of approximately
HK$283,233,000 are guaranteed by the Company and its
subsidiaries which carry fixed interest ranged from 4.37%
to 5.885% per annum.

As at 31 December 2009, other bank loans of the
Group comprised of: (a) an amount of approximately
HK$70,642,000 drawn under a term loan facilities
secured by a floating charge over the assets of the
Company, and by share mortgages of the issued capital
and floating charges over the assets of the wholly owned
subsidiaries, Sound Hong Kong Limited and NewOcean
(Shenzhen) Energy Investment Limited; (b) an amount
of approximately HK$23,347,000 drawn under a term
loan facility guaranteed by the Company; and (c) an
amount of approximately HK$81,774,000 drawn under
a short term loan facility for PRC companies guaranteed
by the Company. Included in this amount, an amount
of approximately HK$13,629,000 drawn under a term
loan facility secured by fixed charge over the assets of
a wholly owned subsidiary, Shenzhen Baorun Liquefied
Petroleum Gas Company Limited, that represented
additional charge of the guarantee.

29.

(%)

IRITIEFEWIEE R+ 4 773,615,000
JL(20094 : 1,511,037,00078 JT ) A
EEBR AR —FREE  FHF
A & 52.68% (20094 : 1.76%) ° 4
TIRITERBZEMER  FARE—
A mBRITRFEFE+ 0.6% KBS
BITRIERB+ 2% (2009 % : FB R
TRERE+ 1.715%EREREZRF
E 4+ 0.75%) * 7" F0.65% = 6% (2009
& :1.08% E6%) °

R2010F 12 A31 8 » AEE Z HthiR
TERBE—SREBERFENE2.05% 2
3.89% 2 ZEFN KT E 2 EHEREE
IR HEN49322,293,000 7 JT 2 T IH © % AL
B+ #9148,768,000 7 7T LA AN £ E 4R
TEZREER  TEARRREWBA
AIPER - HER3ER1T B 540 283,233,000
BITEARARENBATER - BN
TR E 4.37% & 5.885% < [E E Fl| &
it B e

R 2009F 12 31 H » A&EE 2 HAibiR
TERBRE : (o —FREBETHEFEE
IREN49 70,642,000/ 702 758 © LAKRA
REEZHHI  URUEEKERR
FEEBERAREIECRI) LR
BBERAFZEEITRARNDIZIBRE
EFBWRIEER () —ERBEAAA]
BR2 EHEFREE R4 23,347,000
BILZARE: Mo)— 2REARQF
ERzZBPEAREHERBEE R
81,774,000 87T 2 538 © Z R EA + —
EREBEUZEHBARRIMEERR
ERARZEEBEEHL(KRRERZ
EOMRR ) (EEF 2 THEFEE IR
#713,629,000 & T 2 A °
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For the year ended 31 December 2010

EIZ 20104 12 31 HIEFZE

29. Borrowings (Continued) 29. fE®(#&)
The Group’s borrowings that are denominated in AEBZERUFEHESEERIIESE
currencies which are not the functional currencies of the B EBYIE - HIWT -

relevant group entities are set out below:

HK$’000
FET
As at 31 December 2010 7K 2010F 12 431 H 1,472,584
As at 31 December 2009 R 20094 12 A 31 H 1,943,114
30. Share Capital 30. =&
Number of
shares Amount
;2178 4= &
HK$’000
FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each (2009: FAXE{E 0.10 7 T 2 T A%
HK$0.10 each) (20094 : BR0.10%7T)
Authorised share capital: VERERRA
At 1 January 2009, M2009F1H1H -
31 December 2009 2009 F }& 2010 F
and 2010 12 A31H 20,000,000,000 2,000,000
Issued and fully paid share capital: BT MR
At 1 January 2009 7K2009F 1 H1H 963,353,374 96,336
Issue of shares due to placing (Note a)  EIEC&E M (Hlita) 192,500,000 19,250
At 31 December 2009 200912 A 31 H 1,155,853,374 115,586
Issue of shares due to placing (Note b)  HEECEMmEE1TRD (H1ath) 150,000,000 15,000
At 31 December 2010 R 201012 A31 H 1,305,853,374 130,586
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30. Share Capital (Continued)

31.

Notes:

(@ On 9 December 2009, 192,500,000 shares of HK$O0.1
each were issued by way of placing at a placing price of
HK$1.0 per share. These shares rank pari passu in all
respects with other shares in issue.

(o)  On 5 November 2010, 150,000,000 shares of HK$O0.1
each were issued by way of placing at a price of HK$1.78
per share. These shares rank pari passu in all respects
with other shares in issue.

Share-based Payment Transactions
Equity-settled share option scheme:

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the Special
General Meeting of the Company held on 18 June
2003, the Company adopted an option scheme (“Option
Scheme”).

30. B&& (&)

31.

it -

(@) # 2009412 A9 H ' 192,500,000 f%
SREE0IBITZBMNE NEET X
BB 1.0BT ZEEERT - &
FRONSENEREMBRTRGE =
BRI S HT -

(b) # 2010511 A5H - 150,000,000 &%
EREE0IBITZEMNEARETRX
BRERRD1.78 BT 2 BB AT ° %
FRONSTERELMBEHTRE=
BRSHAI -

DIt HERZZH
ESEERRED -
BN A RIR2003F6 A 18 AR 1T 2
BEREIASBEBLEBREBR &

XA PR A — TR P b G 8 (T8 A &t
gll) o
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HZE2010F 1231 HIFFZE
31. Share-based Payment Transactions (Continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme: (Continued)

The purpose of the Option Scheme is to provide
incentives or rewards to participants including directors,
employees, suppliers and customers etc. Under the
Option Scheme, the Board of Directors of the Company,
may at their discretion grant options to participants to
subscribe for shares in the Company in accordance with
the terms of the Option Scheme. The subscription price
shall be a price determined by the directors, but shall not
be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet
on the date of offer for grant of options, which must be
a trading day; (i) the average closing price of shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of
the offer for grant of options; and (iii) the nominal value
of a share. The total number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the Option Scheme and any other share option scheme
of the Group must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares in issue. Based on the 1,305,853,374 shares
(2009: 1,155,853,374 shares) in issue as at 31 December
2010 and 32,582,284 options (2009: 32,582,284
options) outstanding under the Option Scheme, the total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Option Scheme
and any other schemes must not in aggregate exceed
130,585,337 shares (2009: 115,585,337 shares).

The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options might be granted to a participant, when
aggregated with shares issued and issuable (including
exercised and outstanding options and the options
cancelled) under any option granted to the same
participant under the Option Scheme or any other share
option scheme within any 12 month period, must not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue from time to time.

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #/E8REBAER AT

31.

DB EBRZIH(2)
HaREmREn : (2)

EREASZEZEENARNES B
8 HEREEFE2HEERMMEIS
Bl - RIBERES F FARESE
A B R 28 E B T ] R IRE R T &
BERRBARE R 2 BAKE - REE
FREFET EIBER)REET
EREZBWAARZRH)  BRHE
BRI EERERMIR SR E
(N EFREFRTEREZBASERS
B BOEBIMSERERAHR T
HRHE: Rii)ROABLERER
A) o 2ETFEBRERS RAEE T
o] EL Ath B2 AR AE 5T 8 P #% (0 BB AR i 1 8 T
BT 2ROBRE  TSBBRARRE %
T2 10% #2010 12 A 31 B
Z B %17 I 5 1,305,853,374 i (2009
4 :1,155,853,374 /% ) RIS T
R 17 ff 232,582,284 17 (2009 4F :
32,582,28410 ) iE IR H - AR FAIE
AR A 5T B R AF A E M RS AR A AT 3R 2
EMEREEITER - KAAF A T
2 H B EE L1538 130,585,337
A% (2009 4F : 115,585,337 f%) °

= EAR IR AR A A T B Sk () H At A
AERT2EEZEMBERERTZE
BORAITRTZBRODBB(BRHRENT
ERRTEZEBRE) REFER  ©
E12EAANER2EEER 2 BRE
ik emBBRNHBE NMEBEETED
BTN 2 1% °
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HZE2010F 1231 HIFFZE
31. Share-based Payment Transactions (Continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme: (Continued)

There was no requirement for a grantee to hold the
option for a certain period before exercising the option
save as determined by the board of directors of the
Company and provided in the offer of grant of option.

The exercise period should be any period fixed by the
board of directors of the Company upon grant of the
option but in any event the option period should not go
beyond 10 years from the date of offer for grant.

The acceptance of an option, if accepted, must be
made within 28 days from the date of grant with a non-
refundable payment of HK$1.00 from the grantee to the
Company.

Option Scheme

The following tables disclose details of the Company’s
share options granted under the Option Scheme held by
employees (including directors) and movements in such
holdings during the two years ended 31 December 2010:

31.

LIEktr HERZTH (&)
HaREmREE : (2)

BRARBESZSRE MR BB
REIN - IR T AR ABRITRER
R ABRE—REE -

TEHAEARARNESERREEBER
EREE MM EREMER
T BREHEIASBEeRREENA
HA#EET 10 FRER o

AR AMBEMERE  NEARKDA
HI#E EF28 H A A A A &) 81 X 1.007%
TC 0 WEIEETERE -

RERR a2
TREBEAQAFDBEERES 2R TR

E(EEEE)NEE2010F12A31H
IEMEFEZHE REBER :
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For the year ended 31 December 2010

ELE 20104 12 531 HIFFE

31. Share-based Payment Transactions (Continued) 31. LIBRinBERZIH &)
Option Scheme (Continued) Mg (&)
Both 2010 and 2009 2010 F & 2009 5

Number of

share options
outstanding at

1 January 2009,

31 December 2009
and

31 December 2010
®2009%1A18 »

Date Exercisable Exercise 2009 12831HR
Option type of grant Vesting period period price 2010%F12A31HM
R R R AR REH friEsy fiEfl RITEZHWERESE
HK$
BT
2006A 15 May 2006 16 May 2006 to 17 June 2006 to 0.625 14,910,537
16 June 2006 31 December 2015
20065E5H15H 2006F5F16HE 2006 6H 17HE
20066 A 16 H 2015128 31H
2006B 16 June 2006 - 17 June 2006 to 0.625 17,671,747
31 December 2015
2006FF6 A16H — 200656 H17HE

2015%12A31H

32,582,284

Details of the share options held by the directors FRABHESHE 2BREFBOT
included in the above table are as follows:

Outstanding at

1 January 2009,

31 December 2009
and 31 December 2010

®2009%1A18 »
2009F12A31 AR
2010 12 A 31 A AFKFTHE

1 January 2009 to 31 December 2010 2009F1 A1 HZ2010F 12 A31 H 22,641,926
There was no share option granted for the years ended HZE2010F & 2009F 12 A31 HIEFE I &
31 December 2010 and 2009. P2 B A o
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HZE2010F 1231 HIFFZE

32. Deferred Taxation 32. ERERIA
The following are the major deferred liabilities (assets) FARBARZRFE  AEEEBRRAZ
recognised by the Group and movements thereon during FERTEAE(EE) RBBESHNT:

the year and prior reporting year:

Accelerated Other
tax Tax intangible
depreciation losses assets
MERERE REGR HEMEEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TFET TET FE7T FE7T
At 1 January 2009 R2009F1A1H 11,067 (1,556) 3,935 13,446
(Credit) debit to profit/loss AAREEIEZ
for the year (ABR) X (1,804) 366 (817) (2,255)
Acquisitions Logi 5,850 — 868 6,718
Exchange adjustments (e 18 — 70 88
At 31 December 2009 720094 12 A31H 15,131 (1,190) 4,056 17,997
(Credit) debit to profit/loss AAREEIEZ
for the year (ABR) X 1,484 (376) (955) 153
Exchange adjustments fE 5 R 568 (44) 92 616
At 31 December 2010 1201012 A31 H 17,188 (1,610) 3,193 18,766
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances AT AES B 23R A % 2 BERTE &%
for financial reporting purposes: DT
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFET FBT
Deferred tax assets REHIBEE 1,610 1,190
Deferred tax liabilities BEEFRIEAE (20,376) (19,187)
(18,766) (17,997)
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ELZE20104F 12 431 HIFF/E

32. Deferred Taxation (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
estimated unused tax losses of approximately
HK$292,549,000 (2009: HK$192,784,000) available for
offset against future profits. Deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of approximately HK$6,121,000
(2009: HK$6,331,000). No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in relation to remaining balances of
approximately HK$286,428,000 (2009: HK$186,453,000)
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The
unrecognised tax losses of approximately HK$6,605,000
(2009: HK$3,718,000) will be expired before year 2013
(2009: year 2012). Other losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
deductible temporary differences of approximately
HK$21,932,000 (2009: HK$11,512,000) in respect of
accelerated accounting depreciation. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in relation to such deductible
temporary differences as it is not probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned
by PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards.
Deferred taxation has not been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary
differences attributable to accumulated profits of the
PRC subsidiaries amounting to HK$205,903,000 (31
December 2009: HK$57,161,000) as the Group is able
to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #/E8REBAER AT

32.

RE2MEAR - ANE B F 0] R 2K
a2 R BRI IBEE A R 292,549,000
7 70 (2009 4F : 192,784,000/ 7T ) ° &
L% 6,121,000 7875 (2009 4 : 6,331,000
B )ERELERIEEE - AR K&
TEOR B 18 2 % 7 2R - iR EBL R T
4 B 49286,428,000# JIT(2009 £
186,453,000/ 7T ) 1 R IE & 1 &
E o 3% 2 496,605,000 T (2009 £F :
3,718,000/8 7T ) Z AR FER B IHEE AR
20134 (20094 : 2012 4 ) A HAm - &
fth 518 1) °] ZE PR HA 45 8 o

REMBR - BRANRBETES - &
EE A R Z 5% 21,932,000 75
JC(20094F : 11,512,000/ 7t ) » A A
A aE] B] A R AT H A B R A= RE DA SE A
B ERTORER 2 JREMET KR - )
W Z S AR S R E AR RET R
HEE °

BIEFRRTEHE - B2008F1A1H
#E - PR BB B A A BT BREN 2 v A T E A
2B D IRBSTEINR o AL B &
REFARENBARZ 25T RFNZE
2= %8 ,5205,908,000 #7T (2009 4F 12
A 31H : 57,161,000/ 7T ) RN ér & B 15
MR ATIRECETH BREE - LA RA
EEA O TR R mA
R EREAIRE TSR] RASREE o
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
ELZE20104F 12 431 HIFF/E

33.

Obligation for Put Option to Non-controlling
Shareholder of a Subsidiary

Pursuant to an agreement dated 1 July 2007 (the
“Agreement”) entered between a wholly owned
subsidiary, Qingxin NewOcean Transportation Company
Limited (“Qingxin NewOcean”) and the non-controlling
shareholder of EM M EZEM R BR A A ("Z #E")
(“NCS”), NCS granted a call option (“Call Options”) to
Qingxin NewOcean to acquire the 10% equity interest
from NCS at a consideration of RMB4,500,000 for the
period from 1 July 2007 to 30 June 2009. In addition,
Qingxin NewOcean has granted a put option to NCS to
sell the 10% equity interest to Qingxin NewOcean at a
consideration of approximately HK$5,288,000 (equivalent
to RMB 4,500,000 translated at year end exchange rate)
from the period from 1 July 2009 to 31 July 2009 (“Put
Option”). The obligation of the Put Option was recorded
as current liabilities in the statement of financial position.
Qingxin NewOcean exercised the Call Option on 30
June 2009 and proposed to settle the consideration by
the other receivables due from NCS. NCS did not agree
the settlement arrangement and requested for cash
settlement of RMB4,500,000. The case was referred
to the court on 17 January 2011, a final judgement
of the court in the PRC was issued. Based on the
court judgement, Qingxin Newocean has to settle the
consideration of RMB4,500,000 by cash. In addition,
due to the delay of the completion of the acquisition,
a compensation of approximately RMB1,670,000 has
charged to Qingxin Newocean.

33.

BT HE LTSRN EEL
RiE

BEEFGNEEGERAR(BH
SZEHEDEENMEERTER AR
([ ]) 2 IEFE IR 3 ([ FEFE HIA%R R 1)
R2007F7B1H % 5 2 % &%
&) o FEIEGHIR R ME FB e E
REE(RE#]  UR2007%F7A
1H ZE200946 A30H Hf  UMAR
& 4,500,000 7T (B 1A FE 12 i) A 2R Uk
10% %% - BE - BB GMIEE
il % A% SR AT 52 20094 7 A1 H
£2009F7 A31 B HME - #10% % #
LA #5,288,000 7% 7T (LA F R [E =0 &
HERARKA4500000T)HE FiE
NG BRG] - ZREEERT
R EARRKRIERREBELER « B
S E 8 2 R 2009 %6 A 30 H 17 #3208
R - IR DA FE ST I IR R 2 Ho Ath &
IWHIEZARE - EEHREILTRZ
TNZH YERURE T AR
4,500,000 ° BLER2011F1 H17 B
AR - P EUABLEE &R HR o AR
BORBT IR - BB IBANR S A
AR #4,500,0007C ° I 4h - A Uk BB IE
B - INRB GBS BUR AR
1,670,000 7T °
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34. Acquisition of Subsidiaries
For the year ended 31 December 2010

On 28 February 2010, the Group acquired a 100% equity
interest in 5 AH from an independent third party for
cash consideration of approximately HK$6,065,000.
% 75 A A operates a LPG retail office in Macau. This
acquisition has been accounted for using the acquisition
method of accounting. The amount of goodwill arising
as a result of the acquisition was approximately
HK$5,523,000. The main reason for the acquisition of
W7 AH is to expand the LPG retail and wholesales
operation to Macau.

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #/E8REBAER AT

34. KWWHELT

HE2010F 1231 HILEE

MR2010F2H28H @ K & LA 49
6,065,000 T2 REREBERBILE =
T U BB R 77 A M 2 100% A% 4 R 5 A
HRVBPFEERIEREE QT o ZHK
BEBEEHRAKBEEAR - A%
WHE = IHE & 2 B2 4974 5,523,000 %8
T WBRESFABZETERERHRR
R EE R BEEE IR -
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EE2010F 12431 HILF/E
34. Acquisition of Subsidiaries (Continued) 34. IRREMIE AT (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 (Continued) BE2010F 12831 BILEE (&)
The net assets acquired in the transaction and the N GHKE FEENAYELEZR
goodwill arising are as follows: EMR
Assets and
liabilities
recognised
at the date of
acquisition
RERA#
RIS AH AN
BREZEERAR
HK$’000
FHETT
Net assets acquired: FSFEE :
Property, plant and equipment M - S REE 671
Inventories FE 783
Trade debtors FEULE B BRI 161
Other debtors, deposits and prepayments Hab U IR « 1Be RIB A 45
Bank balances and cash RITEHR KB E 107
Trade creditors B2 SRR (61)
Other creditors and accrued charges Hi MRS R ERTE A (1,164)
542
Goodwill arising on acquisition WS EE A 2 PR 5,523
Total consideration BARE
Satisfied by cash AR & S 1+ 6,065
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition IREEE A 2 IR &M R
Cash consideration paid BENBEeRE (6,065)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FriszRie kIReERIAE 107
(5,958)
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34. Acquisition of Subsidiaries (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 (Continued)

Acquisition related costs amounting to approximately
HK$60,000 have been excluded from the cost
of acquisition and have been recognised as an
administrative expense in the year.

The receivables acquired (which principally comprised
trade receivables and other debtors, deposits and
prepayments) with a fair value of approximately
HK$206,000 had gross contractual amounts of
approximately HK$206,000. The best estimate at
acquisition date of the contractual cash flows not
expected to be collected is nil.

None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition is
expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

In the opinion of the directors, the carrying amounts
of the assets and liabilities are approximately equal
to their fair value as at the acquisition date. The
goodwill arising on the acquisition is attributable to the
anticipated profitability of the distribution of the Group’s
products in the new markets and the anticipated future
operating synergies, revenue growth and future market
development from the combination. % J5 /4 d contributed
approximately HK$6,893,000 to the Group’s revenue and
incurred a loss of approximately HK$329,000 during the
period between the date of acquisition and the reporting
date respectively.

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #/E8REBAER AT

34.

IeREM B AT (2)
#E2010F12A1 BILEE(E)

Y BB R AR FR B HE 49 60,000 78 TT Y R
BRARKA - YN FABRR/ITE L -

Rz RB(EERENRE ZEX
REMEKER e RFANFIE) S
#)206,000/8 T2 A FEMNBRZLO T
#)7%206,0008 7T - R R - AR
REWEMRNB SR 2 &EGBFRE

AWERMELENHEEE T THERE
1g o

EERAEERABENEREREREK
BEHNATFERBMES - WEELZ
B EERETME D EAEEER
EH M REHETEREREEEE Y
R RSB REAKRTISERE -
HARWER L 2HRBEHK - R A7
o R AR B 2 WA F R 496,893,000
75 7T 2 #9329,000 7 TTHY 518 °
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34. Acquisition of Subsidiaries (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 (Continued)

Had the acquisition of X 7 /A )il been effected at 1
January 2010, the revenue of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2010 would have been increased
by approximately HK$1,599,000 to approximately
HK$8,479,314,000, and the profit for the period would
have been decreased by approximately HK$164,000
to approximately HK$137,220,000. The proforma
information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of revenue and results of
operations of the Group that actually would have been
achieved had the acquisition been completed at 1
January 2010, nor is intended to be a projection of future
results.

For the year ended 31 December 2009

On 1 October 2009, the Group acquired the entire equity
interest in %4 for cash consideration and related expenses
of approximately HK$37,140,000. The acquisition had
been accounted for using the purchase method of
accounting. The amount of goodwill arising as a result of
the acquisition was approximately HK$4,538,000.

34.

IeREM B AT (&)
#E2010F12A31 BILEE(E)

WM EE R 5 A M R2010F1 A1 8 &£
W BIAREBEZ2010F12 31 H 1k
FE 2 WA IN4 1,599,000 T &
#498,479,314,00078 7t © F W& £ B &
A > #7164,000 78 7T £ % 137,220,000
BT BEERMEERBRAR T — %
B WER2010F1 A1 BT » &%
EEREEE WA RGBS  NE
BIERKRFEEMTEA -

BE2009F12A31HIELFEE

R2009F10A1H» & & LA %9
37,140,000 %8 7T 2 3 & KB KR H
WEET kB2 HEm - ZBEREE X
SHEEEAAR B EREEEZY
E495 4,538,000 7T °
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ELZE20104F 12 431 HIFF/E

34. Acquisition of Subsidiaries (Continued) 34. IKREMIE AT (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Continued) #HE2009F 12831 HILEE(Z)
The net assets acquired in the transaction, and the MR GHKE 2 FEERBREEZ
goodwill arising, were as follows: PEEMT -

Acquiree’s
carrying
amounts

before
combinations Fair value
S 13 T 4 e B adjustments Fair value

ZREE NEEAR [FH

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
. TR TET TET
Net assets acquired: IS FEE
Property, plant and equipment  #)% - 2R RE 6,774 15,800 22574
Prepaid lease payment for land T3t 78{I7H E 718 6,741 7,600 14,341
Other intangible asset HEREE = 3,470 3,470
Inventories "B 432 — 432
Trade debtors JEU B 5 B 178 - 178
Other debtors, deposits and Hip MR « & &
prepayments SSEINE 1,315 = 1,315
Bank balances and cash RITEBRRIE S 1,635 - 1,635
Trade creditors B SRR (3,118) = (3,118)
Other creditors and accrued H B RN
charges AR (1,507) - (1,507)
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE - (6,718) (6,718)
12,450 20,152 32,602
Goodwill Sk 4,538
37,140
Total consideration satisfied by: #@RELATFH A A
HK$'000
BT
Cash e 37,140
Deposit paid (Note) Bf&E (A1) (16,313)
20,827
Net cash outflow in respect of the acquisition for the year HZE2009F 12 A31 HIFEE BB
ended 31 December 2009 was as follows: 2SR EEINT ¢
Cash consideration paid 1‘J‘ﬁ%1ﬂﬁ (20,827)
Bank balances and cash Fﬁ S RITEBR
acquired Re 1,635
(19,192)
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2009, a cash Kt - R2009E12 A1 AIEEE  EFEND
consideration of approximateh;5 HK$16,313,000 was 16,313,000 B TIEBKBE L > B
prepaid for the acquisition of % and the amount was e ST -
disclosed as other asset in the consolidated statement of & ﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬂa%2908¢12i§1
financial position as at 31 December 2008. ALFEZGAMBERARARES
Hih&E -
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34. Acquisition of Subsidiaries (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Continued)

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of & % was
attributable to the anticipated profitability of the
distribution of the Group’s LPG in the market and
the anticipated future operating synergies from the
combination. In addition, /%4 owned several LPG stations
close to the LPG terminal owned by #/& (&), in the
opinion of the directors, this acquisition would enhance
logistic efficiency and improve the market share in
Guangdong region.

&% contributed approximately HK$18,713,000 to the
Group’s revenue and the Group’s profit before taxation of
approximately HK$785,000 for the period from the date
of acquisition to 31 December 2009. If the acquisition
had been completed on 1 January 2009, total group
revenue for the period would have been approximately
HK$6,515,000,000, and profit before taxation would
have been approximately HK$158,000,000. The pro
forma information is for illustrative purposes only and
is not necessarily an indication of revenue and results
of operations of the Group that actually would have
been achieved had the acquisition been completed on
1 January 2009, nor is it intended to be a projection of
future results.

34.

IeREM B AT (&)
#E2009F12A1 BILEE(E)

WEXBMEEZEHE  ARARED
SoEAKRERERERENEA G
BRIEHKREEEE < HRME - Ut
sh o KB BEABERERMEY - W E
R 7 %8 (308 ) BB 2 B RIS A M
AT o BER AL TR IR YRR
WekEBRME 2 TIHIEE X -

R Uk B B H 22009412 A31H It
HE: XBAAEE 2 W ATRLY
18,713,000 7t * W AA &£ B 2 Bk
AT Y% 1) 25 21 49 785,000 7 7T © iU BE B
MR2009F1A1H &K Bl A& B R
HAA 2 U R Br 7 A St A1 15 9 B 49 &
6,515,000,0007% & & #J158,000,000
BT HEEAREHRFB A T—F
=WEER2009F 1 A1 HEK » A5 H
EREEECRAREEREE  MER
TERIRFEERTER -
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35. Entrusted Loan

Pursuant to the framework agreement dated 21
October 2010 (the “Agreement”), the subsidiaries of
Group entered into the following transactions with two
independent third parties (the “Transactions”):

A.

A wholly owned subsidiary, ¥8# /8 RE B
BAR ("BRERIR") agreed with BMIREM R A
FRAF] to acquire 5% registered capital of Bf#TaE
JR at a consideration of RMB3,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$3,526,000). Ht¥T8E)R is a privately owned
entity incorporated in the PRC that operates 17
LPG stations in Guangzhou. The acquisition was
completed on 23 December 2010 and the 5%
registered capital of E#ZT8EJR has been classified as
an available for sale investment in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December
2010. The investment is stated at cost less
impairment (if any).

A wholly owned subsidiary, /88 2/ R EBR A A
("“B=EFIEE") agreed to provide an entrusted loan
of RMB580,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$681,607,000) to ZK/EMEEBMEERAA (“HE
BMTE") (the “Entrusted Loan”). BE #8575 owned
95% of the registered capital of EtF 45/ . Based on
the terms set out in the Agreement, the Entrusted
Loan is repayable on 23 December 2011 with total
interest of HK$120,000,000 payable at maturity.
The Entrusted Loan is pledged by 95% registered
capital of BtFTEEJR. On the same date, AEEMITS
also issued a call option to B & /F# & which allows
A= F#% & to acquire the 95% registered capital of
B#78E)R (the “Call Option”). The detail of the Call
Option is set out in note 42(c). There are several
conditions set out in the Agreement to be fulfilled
by Bf @75 before B = F& & will consider to
exercising the Call Option, including i) a special
audit on HBFTEEIR, i) FEBMS to pay up all the
interests in respect of the Entrusted Loan, iii) all
required operating licenses of Af i iy 7% are still
effective etc. Even if these conditions are all met,
the exercise of the Call Option is at the discretion
of BEAKRE.

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #/E8REBAER AT

35.

FiERR

B IE2010FE 10821 B 5] 2 Z {E 22 #
FZ(ZpzEl) AEEZ2HE AR &
WMEBYE=ZHETUTRZ([ZER
1) :

A.

2EWBRRKEFEERE
BRAB(ERERE ) 82 E M &K
BEMBERARRE @ MREAR
#& 3,000,000 7T (A8 1 3,526,000
B ) WEBFEREMELRZ
5% o B %7 66 IR Th 1A R B o AR
NZAMABEEER  REMNEE
17 BB AR IME U - WEEEER
20104 12 A 23 H S 5K » 1M B %7
REIRFEM & AN 2 5% B 1R 20104
12 A31 B2 Ik kHta
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HERBE (B R ©

2EWNBRANEEE FRE
ERAAAEE ¥1KE DR
EMRETHEEMBAERAQ A
((EBEME DREZTTER
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&R - ZEEREAER 2011412 A
23HEE  REHBESZHE
4858 5 120,000,000/87C © £t E
XA B T BE TR RE R & AN 2 95% 1B
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RERNREE BEEFEE
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([REERE]) - REEZFBIR
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For the year ended 31 December 2010

HZE2010F 12 31 HiFF/&F
35. Entrusted Loan (Continued)

36.

The Entrusted Loan has been split into two portions
according to Hong Kong Accounting Standard 39
“Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”.
(The loan receivable is carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.) The Entrusted Loan is
classified at initial recognition as a loan receivable on 23
December 2010 at approximately HK$638,053,000 with
effective interest rate at 25.5% per annum. The remaining
amount represented a Call Option of approximately
HK$43,554,000 which is measured at cost less any
identified impairment losses at the end of the reporting
period. In the opinion of the Directors, the Entrusted
Loan will be recovered within the next twelve months and
therefore classified as current assets.

The detail of Transactions is set out in the circular issued
by the Company dated on 2 December 2010.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group had no significant contingent liabilities at 31
December 2010 and 2009.

35.

36.

FREER(E)

L ERIBEE B SRS 395 B
BIE : BRAKTEIDAEMBD o (&
W E SR BB B BOE LA 8 AR AR 5
IR )EZFEERN2010F12 A23H #]
FTHERFENERENE25.5% D EHAME
I & 7 #7 638,053,000 JC ° #REE TS R
BERE4) 43,554,000/8 7T © JhR 2HRERK
ERARERE #FREREfE - &2
ERE ZERBRARTZEAR
e - Mo EAEREEE -

ZERGZFBERARRR20104F
12 A28z @BHA -

RRAR

R 20104 K2009%F 12 A31H - KN &
B EERFAEE -
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ELZE20104F 12 431 HIFF/E

37. Lease Commitments
The Group as lessee
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under

non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as
follows:

37. HEXRIE
FEE®SEREA
REFRAR AEBERETATHEL

EHEREAXNZAREIBE X
i BIBEMT :

2010 2009

HK$’000 HK$’000

FRET FAET

Within one year —FR 7,838 7,126
In the second to fifth year inclusive —ERFAN(BRREEREMSE) 10,631 13,828
Over five years BB hF 2,203 3,205
20,672 24,159

Operating lease payments mainly represent rentals
payable by the Group for office premises. As at 31
December 2010, rentals are fixed for an average of 4
years (2009: 3 years).
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For the year ended 31 December 2010

HZE2010F 12 31 HiFF/&F
38. Other Commitments

39.

38.

Hfih A &

2010 2009

HK$’000 HK$’000
FRET FAET
Capital expenditure contracted for but B a]&ERNREGE B EHE
not provided in the consolidated B 2 B AR S 2 e
financial statements in respect of: (N
Purchase of gas plant and machinery B & R /E Kk ikes 130,563 10,169
Capital contribution to the Associate  [AEfE <A FEE (M7 22(b))
Company (Note 22(b)) - 68,111
Retirement Benefits Plans 39. BFiEFIGHE

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets
of the schemes are held separately from those of the
Group, in funds under the control of trustees. The Group
and each employee employed in Hong Kong are required
to make a contribution of 5% on the employees’ monthly
relevant income with a maximum monthly contribution of
HK$1,000 per person.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC
are members of state-managed retirement benefit
schemes operated by the PRC government. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute fixed percentage
of payroll costs to the retirement benefit schemes to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefit schemes is to make the
specified contributions.

AEESENTEZ2RAERERE
HRBIERTEEFE - ZetEIZEER
AEBEEDFAFE  BHELARES
s c AEEERELERZES
BEARREARFTBMAZEREDL
K FAHKERBETA1,00087T

AEERTERBEARZEEZ2MNTH
B EE 2 RINEFE - ZFHERA
RERMAERAREFEARERAZEE
EEBIER - REBERIR SR 82 ME—
BEERELEEHRRK -
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
ELZE20104F 12 431 HIFF/E

40. Related Party Transactions

During the year, the Group entered into the following
transactions with related parties:

40. MEALX S

FA ANEBHEBEATET TR
5

2010 2009

Sales to a jointly controlled entity

Neo (Note) (Haz)

MEEREGIEEHE
Rental expenses paid to Shum Ho, INTFEEzHERE

HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TATT
11,304 5,145

660 584

Note: Shum Ho, Neo is the son of Mr. Shum Siu Hung and Ms.
Tong Shiu Ming.

On 16 May 2009, Sound Management Services Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company entered into
an office tenancy agreement with Shum Ho, Neo for
the use of office premises provided by Shum Ho, Neo
located on 20th Floor, Times Tower, 393 Jaffe Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong at HK$55,000 per calendar month
for a period of one year commencing on 16 May 2009.
On 16 May 2010, the agreement was renewed for one
year to 15 May 2011 at HK$55,000 per calendar month
with the same terms.

Save as disclosed above and note 25, there were no
other significant transactions with related parties during
the year or significant balances with them at the end of
the year.

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited /88 REBERA T

Hiet « BETE DR EREPNRALLEZF -

R2009F5 816 H » AAQ Al 2 & &K
BARFEERRE AR A RESER]
YW AEML - A A H55,000% T
FZ AR BB & 1 3 278 393 9% 3
REBPL20BZHRAEYE - HAHH
2009F 5 A16 B A H — & - KR 2010
F5H816 8 ' AL BRGKERR—
FE2011F58158 BEAZES
/55,0008 7T °

BROA ERNHMEE25 PR EEE SN - FRHE
FEATYEREMEARS  NERLE
TRARE BR LSRR ERAEER
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
ELE 20104 12 531 HIFFE
40. Related Party Transactions (Continued) 40. REALRZ(E)
Compensation of key management personnel FEETBARZEMN
The remuneration of directors and other members of key AEEEERHEMEBZERE AB 2 FH
management during the year was as follows: (N
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFET FEIT
Short-term benefits 52 HAtE A 9,702 8,522
Contribution to retirement benefits BB FIET IR
schemes 101 81
9,803 8,603
The remuneration of directors and key executives is ESRTEEBRABZTHEFMES
determined by the remuneration committee having regard ERBEAARBELTSEBHET -

to the performance of individuals and market trends.
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41. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of the 41. ELAFZEEMELFHS
Company
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 KA B R2010 %2009 12 A31H 2
December 2010 and 2009 are as follows: FEMBABFBOT

Proportion of

Place of Issued and nominal value of
incorporation/ fully paid up  issued/registered
registration/ share capital/ capital held
operation Class of registered capital by the Company
Name of subsidiary B EM/  share held BRTRBE HLFAMBERT/ Principal activities
HEARER BEmE Fris iR %R k*/iMEs EREFEERH EXRE
2010 2009
EHGAEEAMILIERAS PRC* Registered RMB5,000,000 100 100 Sale and distribution of LPG
("BFY") el capital AR®5,000,0007 HERDHERILR
(ragxl) HHER
NewOcean Resources Singapore Ordinary SGD100 100 100 Sale and distribution of LPG
(Singapore) Pte Ltd. b el 100 7 M3 7T HERDHERILR
Shenzhen Baorun Liquefield PRC * Registered RMB15,000,000 100 100  Sale and distribution of LPG
Petroleum Gas Company e capital A& 15,000,000 HERDERILR
Limited HEMER
AMEEREERAA
Sound Hong Kong Limited British Virgin Ordinary USD1 100 100 Investment holding
MEEEARLA lslands (‘BVI")  EilMk & REAER
EBRENS
((EBExS])
Sound Agents Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100 100 Sale and distribution of LPG
MERBEAERAHF BE LER 2B and electronic products

HERDHRICRRETER
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For the year ended 31 December 2010

B2 20104 12 31 HIFFZE
41. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of the 41. FLFIZEEMBE LTS Z)

Company (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

WELRER

Place of
incorporation/
registration/

operation
HRRI &R/
BEmE

Class of
share held

P i (7

Issued and

fully paid up
share capital/
registered capital
BRITRME
k¥ BREF

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued/registered

capital held
by the Company
FARMBERT/
BEREFEELA
2010 2009

Principal activities

ERRE

Sound Industrial Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100 100  Trading of electronic
MBEXERAF i Lk 28T products
EEETEMm
Sound Management Services ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100 100 Providing management
Limited i el 2B services to group
MEEBRBEERLA companies
MEERAREERRY
Sound Technologies Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100 100  Trading of electronic
MENRERAT B LBk 2B products
EEETEM
Qingxin Yong Long Gas and PRC * Registered RMB4,280,000 80 80  Sale and distribution of LPG
Chemical Company Limited ~ #E * capital AR 4,280,000 HERMHERILR
(Yong Long’) (Note a) HMER

AHEAEIMEERAR
(Ix&EDHia)
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For the year ended 31 December 2010

EtZ20104F 12 531 HIFF/E
41. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of the 41. FLFIZEEMBE LTS Z)

Company (Continued)

Proportion of

Place of Issued and nominal value of
incorporation/ fully paid up  issued/registered
registration/ share capital/ capital held
operation Class of registered capital by the Company
Name of subsidiary B/ EM/ share held BERTRME HLFMBERT/ Principal activities
HELARER BEmE FrisBR iR %R k% /itMEs EREFEERA TERE
2010 2009
EMIERERERARA PRC f Registered HK$6,600,000 100 100 Sale and distribution of LPG
FE capital 6,600,000 7 RERMHERILR
HER
ENZETERRER AR PRC * Registered HK$1,400,000 100 100 Sale and distribution of LPG
PE capital 1,400,000 BERAHRILR
HER
BMGBEREERATE PRC * Registered HK$1,600,000 100 100 Sale and distribution of LPG
PE capital 1,600,000 7T FERMWRILR
HER
BMmHenEaRAR PRC * Registered RMB500,000 100 100 Sale and distribution of LPG
(TBMEE ) (Note fiztn) I - capital AR#500,0007 HERDERIER
HER
AREHARRARAR PRC * Registered RMB500,000 100 100 Sale and distribution of LPG
([BR#HE)) e - capital AR500,0007 HERAHRILR
(Note fiitc) HMEA

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited /88 REBERA T
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
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41. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of the 41. FLRFRZEEMBLEFEZ)

Company (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

WELRER

Place of
incorporation/
registration/
operation
AL R
BENE

Class of
share held

P i (7

Issued and

fully paid up
share capital/
registered capital
BRITRBE
k¥ BREF

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued/registered

capital held
by the Company
FARMBERT/
BEREFEELA
2010 2009

Principal activities

ERRE

mECRE) PRC * Registered USD29,150,000 100 100 Sale and distribution of
FE capital 29,150,000 %7 LPG
HER HERMHERILR
2z PRC * Registered RMB7,755,100 20 90 Sale and distribution of LPG
R ¢ capital AE#7,7551007 HERAERIR
HER
BN e aRAR PRC * Registered RMB2,000,000 90 90  Sale and distribution of LPG
B capital AKE2,000,0007 HERDHERILR
HER
EEERERRARAR PRC * Registered RMB990,000 100 100 Sale and distribution of LPG
i - capital AR%990,0007 HERABERILR
HER
Baifuyang Macao Commercial ~ Macao Ordinary Macao dollar 100 100 Sale and distribution of LPG
Offshore Limited BP9 LER 100,000 and electronic products
BEARMEREEREBRAR 100,000 HERDHRIERRETER
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For the year ended 31 December 2010

HZE20104F 12 31 HiFF/Z

41. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of the

Company (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

WELRER

NewOcean (Shenzhen) Energy
Investment Limited

e (R ERREERAR

KB B R RBR AR

NewOcean Development
Limited

Best Resources Base Limited
(Note #f2d)
EEERAT

Place of
incorporation/
registration/
operation
AL R
EEHE

BVI
ABRAE

PRC *
W’

BV
RERKS

BVI
RERZS

Class of
share held

i 5 B £ 46 B

Ordinary

Registered
capital

AR

Ordinary
LER

Ordinary
kR

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited /88 REBERA T

41.

Issued and

fully paid up
share capital/
registered capital
BBITRERE

2 94301 £

US$1
E

USD17,670,000
17,670,000 7

1US$50,000
50,000% 7T

US$50,000
50,0007

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued/registered

capital held
by the Company
FORRBERT/
EMESEELH
2010 2009
100 100
100 100
100 100
90 100

FOFZEERMBLTIFERS &)

Principal activities

EERE

Investment Holding

REER

Sale and distribution of LPG
HERDHERILR

Investment Holding
REER

Investment Holding
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For the year ended 31 December 2010

HZE20104F 12 31 HiFF/Z

41.

Name of subsidiary

WELRER

Rise Smart Industrial Limited

BREZERAA

RAhhim

Domestic — invested enterprises

NEDZE

Wholly-owned foreign enterprises

REINEDRFE

Place of
incorporation/
registration/
operation
AL R
EEHE

Hong Kong
BB

PRC *
E”

Macao

P

Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of the
Company (Continued)

Class of
share held

i 5 B £ 46 B

Ordinary
sk

Registered
capital

Ordinary
Al

41.

Issued and

fully paid up
share capital/
registered capital
BBITRERE

2 94301 £

HK$10,000
10,000 7T

RMB5,015,700
AR#5,0157007C

Macao dollar
3,300,000
3,300,000 B¢

FLAFIZEEMBLFIFR )

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued/registered

capital held
by the Company
FORRBERT/
EMESEELH
2010 2009

100 100

100 100

100 =

Principal activities

EERE

Providing management
services to group
companies

MEERARMER RS

Sale and distribution of LPG
HERDERILR

Sale and distribution of LPG
HERDERILR
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For the year ended 31 December 2010

ELE 20104 12 531 HIFFE
41. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of the

Company (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

Pursuant to an agreement entered between BFY and the
minority shareholder of Yong Long, (“PRC Investor”), the
operation of Yong Long was sub-contracted to BFY with a
sub-contracting period of 5 years. The PRC Investor was
entitled to a fixed sum of sub-contracting fee payable of
RMB200,000 (2009: RMB180,000) per year by BFY. BFY
entitled to 100% of the results of Yong Long during the
subcontracting period.

M F/E is indirectly held by the Company through the
declarations of trust executed by &t and £\ who
held the interest in 1B /I F1/& of 20% and 20% respectively.
The remaining interest in & /N%1/& is indirectly held by the
Company.

EFBF/E is indirectly held by the Company through the
declarations of trust executed by & F4 and 2/ who
held the interest in E#E#1/8 of 20% and 20% respectively.
The remaining interest in Z#B#1/& is indirectly held by the
Company.

In June 2010, the Group disposed of 10% of its equity
interest in Best Resources Base Limited, reducing its
controlling interest to 90%. The proceeds on disposal of
HK$40,000,000 were received in cash in advance in 2009
and included in other creditors and accrued charges.

Except Sound Hong Kong Limited which is owned
directly by the Company, the above principal subsidiaries
are owned indirectly by the Company.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results or assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #/E8REBAER AT

41.

FOFZEEMBLFIER &)

HaE -

(@) REBEEFRKEEDBER(H K
BE DB Z2HE - KEZEBEI
HisBEF MRS F - PRIKRE
ERREDAEFRMN ZEEIHE
R&EF AR 200,000 7t (2009 F : A
K% 180,0007T) - RHMIEIE - BE
FEHERKEE100% 2 545 o

(o) FEMFEERBFTETRENETL
ZEAEAEHARRAMEERE - &
FF R BN DR BB IMNFTE 20% #
g o BINFESR T 2 e m AR R H
BRA -

) EEMNEBEBOLSFLERENFRTL
ZIEEBAEAARBREREE - 5
FHERENFDRFBEBIE20%H#
o BBAERT 2 ERAARRME
EREA -

(d) M2010F6H AEEBHETEAR
NEZ10% B « < B = HR
ZE90% ° & Z BT 15 3 78 40,000,000
BT T AR & U (R 2009 FF 2
) Wat AHtEMBRR R ETE
}Eﬁ °

BHEBEBERABR/RARFERESR
Oh . PR T EMBARIGALRRDRE
BHA -

BB R BN FRIFREAREEHRE
ERERERES

LRI EFERREIBZFELAKEEE
BREBEEZARFIMNBRR - EFERS
IR BB AR ZEHEBNITE -
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EZ2010F 12 431 HiEFZE
42. Derivative Financial Instruments 42. FTEMBIAR

Derivatives financial instruments

fTE@mIA
Assets Liabilities
BE afR
HK$’000 HK$’000
TRET FHET
2010
Foreign currency forward contracts INESIRERE 49 267 24,858
Cross currency interest rate swaps RYXBEEFERIEEHE L
contracts - 53,877
Interest rate swaps contracts FIEI=EE A 202 9,437
Call Option RAETE 43,554 —
44,023 88,172
2009
Foreign currency forward contracts INESIR RS 49 6,057 3,450
Major terms of the derivative financial instruments are PTEMBT A TEEFEMIT :
summarised as follows:
A. Foreign currency forward contracts A. HSMEEEHISH
Notional amount Maturity Exchange rates
ZReH H8E Ex
2010
Buy USD216,681,160 6 January 2011 to 25 February 2013 ~ RMB/USD6.29 to RMB/USD6.77

(approximate to
RMB1,420,093,000)

B A 216,681,160 7T 201141 A6 HE 201342 A25H 6.2 AR /ETE6.77T ARY /FET
(#9 AR#1,420,093,000 7T

2009

Buy USD170,837,058 7 April 2010 to 23 December 2010 RMB/USDS6.61 to RMB/USDS6.82
(approximate to
RMB1,170,257,000)

B A 170,837,058 % 7T 201054 A7 HZE 20105 12 A 23 H 6.61 AR¥E ETLE6.82 AR¥E ET
(B ANE#1 170,257,000 7T)
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42. Derivative Financial Instruments (Continued)

B. Cross currency interest rate swaps contracts/
interest rate swaps contracts

Notional amount

TEMBIRE)

B. XRAHHRAYEH FIEHEN
an

Exchange rates/interest rates

BREN

2010

UsSD208,696,680
(approximate to
RMB1,352,521,000)

208,696,680 F T (K AR
1,352,521,0007T)

20122 A4BZE201452 8191

C. Call Option

AE@M 7S issued a Call Option to & & F#% & which
allows A& ¥ & to acquire 95% registered capital
of Bt¥1EEJR. The exercise price of the Call Option
is RMB580,000,000 and the exercise period of
the Call Option is from 23 December 2011 to 22
January 2012.

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited /88 REBERA T

4 February 2012 to 19 February 2014

E®

Floating rate ranging from one month
LIBOR + 0.4% to one month LIBOR +
3.04% per annum to fixed rate ranging
from 0.15% to 3.02% per annum

RMB/USD6.34 to RMB/USD6.82

FEFRENT—E A RIEETRERE
+0.4% ZEMIERITRZER B +3.04% =&
TEMENTF0.15% = 3.02%

6.34 N\R¥E / ETTE6.82 ARE / ETT
C. HRhig

HEMBEREEFRERDRE
- EAEFRERER R
FMERZI5% - REBEZITHE
BA AR 580,000,000 * MR
BEZITHEEA2011F12 A 23
HZE20124F1 8220 -
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Financial Summary

MG E

Results X8

For the year ended 31 December

BE12AALFE
2009 2008 2007
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT

Revenue PN 8,477,715 6,483,119 6,158,614 3,890,225 2,387,531
Profit before taxation M5 AR A 155,451 155,093 54,122 52,559 43,951
Taxation (charge) credit I (Z ) RA (18,067) (42,642) (1,211) (2,109) 179
Profit for the year FNEF 137,384 112,451 52,911 50,454 44,130
Attributable to: R
Equity holders of the VNN 5

Company BAA 136,647 112,451 52,911 50,454 44,130
Non-controlling interests JEPE IR 25 737 - — - —

137,384 112,451 52,911 50,454 44,130

Earnings per share R &H

Basic (in HK cents) EAR (L) 11.59 11.53 8.48 9.52 9.16

Diluted (in HK cents) #wECEIL) 11.42 11.53 8.48 9.49 9.16
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Financial Summary

MG E

Assets and Liabilities BERARE
At 31 December
®12A31H
2009 2008
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET F&T FET FEIT FET
Total assets BAE 5,799,599 4,226,442 2,700,263 2,319,532 1,461,813
Total liabilities med (4,321,008) (3,210,225) (1,982,655) (1,795,689) (1,014,332)
1,478,591 1,016,217 717,608 523,843 447,481
Equity attributable to VNN P %
equity holders of the A AEE
Company % 1,468,708 1,014,690 716,077 513,130 445,950
Non-controlling interests  FE¥Rl#E % 9,883 1,527 1,531 10,713 1,531
1,478,591 1,016,217 717,608 523,843 447,481
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